
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 08, 2020 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via video conference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 
 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the minutes of the Regular City Council meeting of August 17, 2020 and the Special City 
Council meeting of August 19, 2020. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2020 
Street Patching Project. 

a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published August 21, 2020) 

b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 

c) Staff comments. 

d) Public comments. 

e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2020 Street Patching Project. 

Old Business 

3. Pass Ordinance #2969, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property 
located north of West 27th Street and west of P E Center Drive from the A-1, Agricultural District, 
and placing the same in the P, Public District, upon its second consideration. 

4. Resolution adopting a face mask mandate for the City of Cedar Falls. 

1



 

Page 2 of 4 

New Business 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing the week of September 6-12, 2020 as Suicide 
Prevention and Recovery Week. 

6. Receive and file a proclamation recognizing the week of September 17-23, 2020 as Constitution 
Week. 

7. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions. 
a) Nathan Arndt, Historic Preservation Commission, term ending 03/31/2022. 

8. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of August 17, 2020 relative to City Council 
Committee Structure. 

9. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of August 26, 2020 relative to COVID-19 
Mitigation Options Discussion. 

10. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of August 31, 2020 relative to COVID-19 
Mitigation Options Discussion. 

11. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports for July 2020. 

12. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Panther Travel Center, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue. 
b) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street. 

13. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
b) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
c) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
d) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 
e) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 
f) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
h) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
i) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 
j) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer – change in ownership. 
k) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street, Class E liquor – new. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution approving the recommendation of the Mayor to proceed with consideration of the removal 
of a Planning & Zoning Commissioner. 

15. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Settlement Agreement and Release with JKC 
Investments, LLC relative to the Cyber Lane-2018 Street Construction Project. 

16. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
1227 West 22nd Street. 

17. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow the property located at 
2208 Coventry Lane. 

2



 

Page 3 of 4 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Managed Content Licensing and Servicing 
Agreement with Gordon Flesch Company, Inc. relative to replacement of the City’s document 
imaging system. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a lease relative to property vacated by the 2008 
flood buyout programs. 

20. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Peterson Contractors, 
Inc. for the Campus Street Box Culvert Project. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Prairie Winds 4th 
Addition. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Iowa Transportation Alternatives Program 
(TAP) Project Federal-Aid Agreement with the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) relative to 
the Lake Street Recreational Trail Project – Central Avenue east to Big Woods Trail Connection. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & Associates, Inc. relative to the Union Road 
Recreational Trail Project – 12th Street to 27th Street. 

24. Resolution approving and authorizing payment, not to exceed $88,930.00, to River Place Properties, 
LC for brick paver upgrades to the Plaza public sidewalk in the event that an Amendment to the 
Agreement for Private Development with River Place Properties, LC is not executed. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to Agreement for Professional 
Services with Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc. for additional Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

26. Resolution setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on proposed funding 
distribution of the State’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV) funding relative to the 
CARES Act. 

27. Resolution setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption for Owen 5, LLC for construction of an industrial use 
shop/office facility at 1325 Rail Way. 

28. Resolution setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption for Zuidberg NA, LLC for construction of an industrial use 
warehouse and office facility at 2700 Capital Way. 

29. Resolution setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing on a proposed ordinance 
granting a partial property tax exemption for Tjaden Properties, LLC for construction of an industrial 
use manufacturing/shop facility at 2800 Technology Parkway. 

30. Resolution setting September 21, 2020 as the date of public hearing to consider entering into a 
proposed Agreement for Private Development with Panther Builders, LLC. 

Ordinances: 

31. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to establishing a 4-way stop at the intersection of West 12th Street and Walnut Street, upon 
its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Payroll 

32. Allow Bills and Payroll of September 8, 2020. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

3



 

Page 4 of 4 

Staff Updates 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 

business.) 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 17, 2020 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:01 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and 
announced that the meeting was being conducted electronically in conformance 
with the Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency to limit the spread of 
COVID-19. Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. 
Absent: None. 

 
  Mayor Green welcomed newly elected Councilmember Kelly Dunn.  
 
52942 - It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of August 3, 2020 be approved as presented and ordered of 
record. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52943 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of August 7, 

2020, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public District, of certain property located north 
of West 27th Street and west of P E Center Drive, and also on an associated 
amendment to the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from 
Medium Density Residential and University to Schools. It was then moved by 
Darrah and seconded by Kruse that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
52944 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning and 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposed 
rezoning and responded to a question by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street. There 
being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
52945 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #2969, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing property located 
north of West 27th Street and west of P E Center Drive from the A-1, Agricultural 
District, and placing the same in the P, Public District, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52946 -  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #22,077, 

amending the Future Land Use Map by changing the designation from Medium 
Density Residential and University to Schools, for property located north of West 
27th Street and west of P E Center Drive, be adopted. Following due consideration 
by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,077 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52947 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Darrah that the following items and 

recommendations on the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 
Receive and file a proclamation recognizing August 18, 2020 as the 19th 
Amendment Ratification Centennial Day. 
 
Receive & file the following resignations of members from Boards and 
Commissions:  
a) Jeremy Rosel, Art & Culture Board.  
b) Jeffrey Zaputil, Human Rights Commission.  
c) Marvin Mattfeld, Park & Recreation Commission. 
 
Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of 
members to Boards and Commissions.  
a) Chelsey Bowermaster, Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, term ending 

12/31/2020. 
 
Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of August 3, 2020 relative to 
the following items:  
a) Washington Street Reconstruction.  
b) Bills & Payroll. 
 
Receive and file the Abstract of Votes for the July 7, 2020 Special Election to fill 
vacancy (TFV) and the August 4, 2020 Special Runoff Election to fill vacancy 
(TFV). 

 
  Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses:  

a) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service -        
renewal.  

  b) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal.  
c) Whiskey Road Tavern & Grill, 402 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service 

- renewal.  
d) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C liquor & 

outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 22, 
2020)  

e) Main Street Sweets, 307 Main Street, Class B native wine – new.  
f)  The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 

service – new with exceptions.  
 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
52948 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

Resolution #22,078, supporting the Sister City relationship with Ferizaj of the 
Republic of Kosovo. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
Resolution #22,079, naming official depositories for the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
Resolution #22,080, approving and authorizing a request for reimbursement from 
the Iowa Covid-19 Government Relief Fund for eligible costs related to the Covid-
19 public health emergency. 
 
Resolution #22,081, approving and adopting a Benefits Certificate for the City of 
Cedar Falls Employee Dental Plan. 
 
Resolution #22,082, approving and adopting Summary Plan Descriptions for the 
City of Cedar Falls Health Benefit Plans. 
 
Resolution #22,083, approving and authorizing execution of a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the City of Waterloo and Black Hawk County relative to the 
2020-2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 
funding for the Tri-County Drug Enforcement Task Force. 

 
Resolution #22,084, approving and authorizing execution of an extension of an 
Agreement for Custodial Services with Fresh Start Cleaning Solutions, Inc., 
relative to providing custodial services for city buildings from September 1, 2020 
through August 31, 2021. 
 
Resolution #22,085, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Peters Construction Corporation for the Place to Play Playground Project. 
 
Resolution #22,086, approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement with AutoZone Inc. relative to a post-
construction stormwater management plan for 6130 University Avenue. 
 
Resolution #22,087, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the 2018 Street Construction Project. 

 
  Resolution #22,088, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 

work of Iowa Bridge & Culvert, LC for the 2017 Levee/Floodwall System 
Improvements Project. 
 
Resolution #22,089, approving a Central Business District (CBD) Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for facade improvements at 212 ½ Main Street. 
 
Resolution #22,090, approving a Central Business District (CBD) Overlay Zoning 
District site plan for facade improvements at 515 Main Street. 
 
Resolution #22,091, approving an S-1 Shopping Center District site plan for 
installation of a permanent kiosk for online order pick-up service at 6301 University 
Avenue. 

 
  Resolution #22,092, receiving and filing, and setting September 8, 2020 as the 

date of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2020 Street Patching Project. 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 
The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,078 through #22,092 duly passed and 
adopted. 

 
52949 -    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Darrah that Resolution #22,093, 

approving the Mayor's nomination of Assistant Chief Craig Berte for appointment 
as Police Chief, be adopted. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Sires, Harding, Miller and Dunn, Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, 
Bob Manning, 2908 West 3rd Street, and Richard Congdon, Western Home 
Communities, and responses by Mayor Green and Public Safety Services Director 
Olson, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Darrah. Nay: Sires. Abstain: Dunn. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,093 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52950 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,094, receiving 

and filing, and approving and accepting the bid of Feldman Concrete, in the 
amount of $38,899.20, being the only bid received for the 2020 Sidewalk 
Assessment Project - Zone 3, be adopted. Following a question by Jim Skaine, 
2215 Clay Street, and response by Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,094 duly 
passed and adopted. 

 
52951 -    It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that Resolution #22,095, approving 

and authorizing execution of a Contract for Economic Development Marketing 
Services with Brand Acceleration, Inc., be adopted. Following a comment by Jim 
Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call 
of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,095 duly passed and adopted. 

 
52952 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Miller that the bills and payroll of August 

17, 2020 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Following a comment by Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. 
Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
52953 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole moving forward with plans to reconstruct Washington Street as a one-way 
street, while incorporating safety features. Following questions and comments by 
Mayor Green and Councilmembers Kruse, Miller, deBuhr and Darrah, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers, Public Works Director Schrage and City 
Administrator Gaines, the motion failed 3-4 with Councilmembers Miller, deBuhr, 
Darrah and Dunn voting Nay. 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

   
  It was moved by Darrah and seconded by Miller to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole discussion of a facemask mandate comparable to Waterloo.  Following 
comments by Mayor Green and City Clerk Danielsen, Councilmember Darrah 
withdrew his original motion. It was then moved by Councilmember Darrah and 
seconded by Miller to refer discussion of a facemask mandate to a Special 
Meeting of the City Council. Motion carried 5-2 with Councilmembers deBuhr and 
Kruse voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Darrah to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a presentation by the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee on what 
Cedar Falls can do to prepare for the ‘Great American Rail Trail’ event. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
52954 - City Administrator Gaines and Finance and Business Operations Director 

Rodenbeck responded to a question by Councilmember Harding regarding an 
ordinance for motorized bicycles on trails. 

 
  Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a question by 

Councilmember Darrah regarding an update on the Downtown Visioning project. 
 
  Mayor Green, City Administrator Gaines and Finance and Business Operations 

Director Rodenbeck responded to questions by Councilmember Miller regarding 
electronic meeting timelines, alternate voting order and the compost facility fire. 

 
52955 -  Public Works Director Schrage announced that the City of Cedar Falls will be 

sending two crews to Cedar Rapids to assist with their traffic operation needs 
following the severe weather event. 

 
Mayor Green provided information on how to get involved in the Cedar Rapids 
recovery efforts by contacting the Linn Area Partners Active in Disaster (LAPAID).  

 
52956 -  Rick Sharp, 1623 Birch Street, requested that Councilmembers indicate the 

reason when abstaining from a vote, and commented on the compost facility fire 
and censorship of social media posts.   

 
 Jim Skaine, 2215 Clay Street, spoke about the First Amendment and requested 

the term “germane” be removed from agendas. 
   
52957 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned at 

8:17 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AUGUST 19, 2020 

SPECIAL MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Special Session, pursuant 
to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member thereof, at 
5:30 P.M. on the above date. The Mayor opened the meeting and announced that 
the meeting was being conducted electronically in conformance with the 
Governor’s Proclamation of Disaster Emergency to limit the spread of COVID-19. 
Members present: Miller, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Darrah, Sires, Dunn. Absent: 
None. 

 
52958 -    It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Darrah that a resolution adopting a face 

mask mandate for the City of Cedar Falls, be adopted. City Attorney Rogers 
commented briefly and Mayor Green read a section of the proposed resolution. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Darrah, deBuhr, Miller, 
Kruse, Harding, Dunn and Sires and responses by City Attorney Rogers, Mayor 
Green, Police Chief Berte and Black Hawk County Health Department Doctor 
Nafissa Cisse Egbuonye, the Mayor called for public comment. 

 
      The following individuals spoke in support of the proposed mandate: 
       Penny Popp, 4805 South Main Street 
       Sheryl Jaramillo, Community Main Street Board member, 1716 Clay Street 
       Laura Jimenes, University of Northern Iowa student, 204 Magnolia Drive       

 Kathryn Sogard, Executive Director of College Hill Partnership, 330 
Columbia   Circle, Waterloo 

       Dianne Larsen, 1016 Columbia Drive 
       Jessica Vickers, 1531 Andover Court 

 Doctor Catherine Zeman, University of Northern Iowa Professor of 
Environmental Health Science      

 
      The following individuals spoke opposed to the proposed mandate: 

 Travis Biggs, 1515 Rainbow Drive 
 Vicki Van Hauen, 1315 Franklin Street 
 LeaAnn Saul, 1825 West Greenhill Road 
 Jenny Bagenstos, business owner, 220 Main Street 
 Lindsay Messerer, business owner, 922 Rainbow Drive 
 Zachary Thoma, 861 Maucker Road 
 
The following individuals provided general comments: 
 Lauren Holst, 1212 West 16th Street 
 Mike Butler, 1022 Washington Street 
 Julie Shimek, 104 Main Street 
 Kim Bear, Community Main Street Executive Director, 3815 Union Road 
 

      Mayor Green announced numerous phone messages received both in favor of and 
opposed to a face mask mandate. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Darrah to amend the resolution to state “recommending” instead of “requiring” face 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

masks. Following additional questions and comments by Councilmembers Miller, 
Harding, deBuhr, Darrah, Sires, Kruse and Dunn, Mayor Green, Doctor Egbuonye 
and City Attorney Rogers, Councilmember Kruse withdrew his motion to amend. 

 
      It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to postpone the original 

motion indefinitely. Following due consideration by the Council, the motion to 
postpone carried 6-1 with Councilmember Dunn voting Nay. 

 
52959 - It was moved by Miller and seconded by Kruse that the meeting be adjourned at 

7:39 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
     _________________________________ 

  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

11

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: 2020 Street Patching Project  
  Project No. RS-000-3243 
  Public Hearing 
 
This project involves the construction of forty-three (43) utility patches on existing City streets. 
Work shall include roughly 1,015 SY removal and replacement of existing pavement; 167 ton of 
asphalt patches; 572 LF of concrete curb and gutter; subgrade preparation; and replacement of 
driveway approaches and pedestrian ramps. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $367,039.35. The project will be 
funded by Cedar Falls Utilities.   
 
The Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities are available for your review at 
the City Clerk's office or the Engineering Division of the Public Works Department. 
 
xc: David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

  

12

Item 2.



ITEM#

DESCRIPTION

UNITS

BID 

QUANTITY
UNIT PRICE

TOTAL 

ESTIMATE PRICE

1 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 1014.5 10.00$        10,145.00$        

2 REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER L.F. 571.2 10.00$        5,712.00$          

3 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 6.8 50.00$        340.00$              

4 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 46.3 20.25$        937.58$              

5 REMOVAL OF PAVED MEDIAN S.Y. 24.8 15.00$        372.00$              

6 SAW CUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 2217.2 10.00$        22,172.00$        

7 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10 C.Y. 349.8 25.00$        8,745.00$          

8 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 309.4 40.00$        12,376.00$        

9 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 232.1 46.00$        10,676.60$        

10 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 3.0 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 30.2 52.00$        1,570.40$          

11 MODIFIED SUBBASE C.Y. 349.8 18.00$        6,296.40$          

12 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 20.19 75.00$        1,514.25$          

13 HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.Y. 181.9 1.00$          181.90$              

14 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 6.8 80.00$        544.00$              

15 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 43.1 47.25$        2,036.48$          

16 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 3 51.75$        155.25$              

17 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING EACH 1 50.00$        50.00$                

18 UTILITY PATCH, P.C.C., TYPE "C" CLASS III S.Y. 777.8 300.00$      233,340.00$      

19 UTILITY PATCH, HMA (ST),  PG58-28S TONS 167.3 250.00$      41,825.00$        

20 Median, P.C.C., 6", TYPE "C" Class III SY 24.8 75.00$        1,860.00$          

21 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE S.Y. 1014.5 1.00$          1,014.50$          

22 VALVE ADJUSTMENT EACH 1 175.00$      175.00$              

23 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 5,000.00$   5,000.00$          

367,039.35$      Project Estimate:

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

2020 Street Patching Project                                                                                                                                          Project No.: RS-000-3243

13

Item 2.



1 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria, Planner I 

 DATE: August 13, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request Cedar Falls High School (RZ20-005) 
  Land Use Map Amendment (LU20-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Amend Future Land Use Map to reflect public use of the property. 
Rezone property from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public Zoning District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Cedar Falls Community School District / Brian Sanderman, INVISION 
Architects 
 

LOCATION: 
 

North of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The Cedar Falls Community School District has requested to rezone 20 acres (871,200SF) of 
property from the A-1, Agricultural District, to the P, Public Zoning District. This property is 
located north of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive.  
 
BACKGROUND 
Cedar Falls Community School District (CFCSD) owns the subject property. This parcel was 
purchased by CFCSD last year from the adjacent property owner to the west in order to provide 
additional area for the new high school campus.    
 
CFCSD also owns the abutting property at 2701 W 27th Street to the east of the subject property 
which is approximately 50 acres (2,178,000SF).  The property west of the subject property is 
currently being rezoned to allow development of West Fork Crossing, a large planned residential 
area. The area to the east is owned by the University of Northern Iowa. The 50-acre parcel to 
the east of the subject property was purchased from UNI, so is already zoned Public.  
 
If the petitioner’s request to rezone the property to P zone is approved, the intent is to combine 
the subject property with the lot to the east in order to accommodate a new Cedar Falls High 

14

Item 3.



2 
 

School campus on a total land area of about 70 acres. The applicant will be submitting a site 
plan for the new Cedar Falls High School facility at a later date.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Existing and Proposed Zoning 
The request is to rezone 20 acres of land north of W 27th Street and west of PE Center Drive 
from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public Zoning District. The purpose of A-1 Agricultural 
District is to act as a "holding zone" in areas of the city that are undeveloped and not served 
by essential municipal services (i.e., sanitary sewer, water, roadways) but where future growth 
and development is anticipated according to the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Public Zoning District Zone designation is reserved exclusively for structures and uses of 
land owned by the federal government, the state, the county, the city and the Cedar Falls 
Community School District. Although such publicly owned property is generally exempt from 
zoning regulations and requirements, it is expected that such governmental authorities will 
cooperate with the City to encourage structures and uses of public land which will be compatible 
with the general character of the area in which the public property is located.  
 
The rezoning is a necessary first step to allow development of the new high school. The request 
aligns with the intent to develop the land for public purposes. 
 
Compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 
 
The Future Land Use Map in the City’s Comprehensive Plan indicates that this property is 
designated for Medium Density Residential use. With the purchase of the property by the school 
district, the Future Land Use Map will need to be amended for both the property purchased from 
UNI, which is currently designated as “University,” and the property that is the subject of this 
rezoning.  Staff recommends amending the map to reflect the “School” designation for both 
properties. See excerpt from the Future Land Use Map below with properties labeled.  
 

 
Future Land use Map (Legend) 

University- 
Low Density Residential -  
Medium Density Residential- 

15

Item 3.



3 
 

 
Access to Public Services 
The property is located in a developed area of the city and will have access to utilities. The City 
will be re-constructing W. 27th Street to facilitate development of the new school. With that 
project a sewer main will be extended from the south to serve the new school and the West Fork 
Crossing development.    
 
Access to Adequate Street Network 
A traffic study has been conducted to assess the traffic circulation needs for the school, with two 
driveway access points anticipated along W. 27th Street, one from PE Center Drive and a local 
neighborhood street connection on the west side of the property.  The subject property will have 
adequate street connections in order to regulate the traffic flow and accessibility to the site.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
Notice of the rezoning proposal was mailed to the adjoining property owners with the potential 
date of public hearing and public hearing notice was also published in Waterloo Cedar Falls 
Courier on 16th July, 2020. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of rezoning of the subject property 
from A-1, Agricultural District to P, Public District and an amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map changing the designation of the entire high school site from “Medium Density Residential” 
and “University” to “Schools” at their regular meeting on July 22, 2020 with a vote of 6 ayes and 
0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends approval of the proposed 
Rezoning and Future Land Use Amendment. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction  
7/8/2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion 
& Vote 
7/22/2020 

Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the Cedar Falls Community School District is 
requesting a rezoning for property north of W. 27th Street and west of PE Center 
Drive from A-1, Agricultural,  to P, Public.  The school district intends to use the 
land for construction of a new high school. He noted that the Future Land Use 
Map will also need amending to acknowledge the public ownership and use of the 
property by the public school district. The proposed land use map amendment 
would change the designations on the map from “Medium Density Residential” 
and “University” to “Schools.” Staff recommends setting a date of public hearing 
for July 22 to discuss the proposed rezoning and amendment to the future land 
use map. Andy Pattee, superintendent of Cedar Falls Schools, stated that he is 
available for any questions and thanked the Commission for their work.  

Mr. Schrad asked if notification letters will be sent out before the next meeting. 
Mr. Atodaria stated that notices have been sent out and notification will also be 
posted in the newspaper. The matter will be continued at the next meeting. 

 
Chair Holst introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information, explaining that Cedar Falls Community School District is proposing to 
rezone the property North of W 27th Street and West of PE Center drive from A1, 
Agriculture District to P, Public Zoning District for the proposed new Cedar Falls 

16

Item 3.



4 
 

High School campus. The Future Land Use map will also have to be amended 
from “Medium Density Residential” and “University” to “Schools”. Mr. Atodaria 
explained that improvements are planned along W.27th Street and to extend the 
sewer from the south so there will be access to public services, as well as 
adequate street access to the property. Staff recommends approval of the 
rezoning and future land use map amendment.    
 
Mr. Prideaux made a motion to approve the land use map amendment. Ms. 
Adkins seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Adkins, Hartley, Holst, Lynch, Prideaux and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
Mr. Hartley made a motion to approve the rezoning. Ms. Prideaux seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Adkins, Hartley, 
Holst, Lynch, Prideaux and Schrad), and 0 nays. 

 
 

Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning Plat 

17

Item 3.



Dry Run Creek (W)

University of
Northern Iowa

Le
xin

gto
n D

r

Quail Hollow LnWaterbury Dr
Quai lRunLn

W 22nd St

W 31st St

Quail RidgeRd

Pendleton Dr
PE

Center Dr

W 27th St

W
Gr

een
hill

Rd

R-1

R-4

M-1 C-2

RP

RP

P

R-2
A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls City Council
August 3, 2020

Cedar Falls High School
A-1 to P

W Viking
Industrial Park

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

Center St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

Ma
in

St

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

gRd Ceda
rH

eig
hts

Dr

W Viking Rd

Waterloo Rd

Un
ion

 R
d

W 27th St

E Greenhill Rd

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
v er

se
eR

d

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

18

Item 3.



PLANNING ARCHITECTUREINTERIORS

OWNER SIGN-OFF:

REVISIONS:

DATE

SHEET:

NAME

SHEET NAME:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SHEET SET:

501 Sycamore
Suite 101
Waterloo, IA  50703
PO Box 1800
Waterloo, IA 50704-1800
319.233.8419
319.233.9772 Fax
www.invisionarch.com

CONSULTANT:

1 of 1

C
ED

A
R 

FA
LL

S 
HI

G
H 

SC
HO

O
L

W
 2

7T
H 

ST
RE

ET
, C

ED
A

R
FA

LL
S,

 IA
 5

06
13

C
ED

A
R 

FA
LL

S 
C

O
M

M
UN

ITY
 S

C
HO

O
L 

D
IS

TR
IC

T

2020-06-05

REZONING PLAT

19116

PLANNING & ZONING

STORY CONSTRUCTION

RAKER RHODES

ENGINEERING

MODUS

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

STRUCTURAL

MEP

CIVIL ENGINEERING AND

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

RITLAND-KUIPER

NORTH

Description Date No.

DESCRIPTION:

” 

” 

” 

” 

” 

R

E

Z

O

N

I

N

G

 

R

E

Q

U

E

S

T

"

A

-

1

"

 

T

O

 

"

P

"

19

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright  C  2020

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C A L E  I N  F E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S C A L E  I N  F E E T

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
600

AutoCAD SHX Text
300' NOTIFICATION LIMIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCUMENT #2020-7423 A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼) OF SECTION 15, T-89-N, R-24-W OF THE 5TH PM., BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST (SE) CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼) OF SAID SECTION 15; THENCE ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 00°08'50” WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 75.00 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 27TH STREET, THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EAST LINE, NORTH 00°08'50” WEST FOR A DISTANCE WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1251.33 FEET TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SW ¼ SE ¼); THENCE ALONG SAID NORTH LINE, SOUTH 89°45'30” WEST FOR A DISTANCE WEST FOR A DISTANCE OF 680.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°08'50” EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 1244.81 FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 27TH STREET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, SOUTH 85°35'04" °EAST FOR ADISTANCE OF 77.49 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°46'48” EAST A DISTANCE OF EAST A DISTANCE OF 602.75 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. TRACT CONTAINS 19.53 ACRES AND IS SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS OF RECORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 27TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENHILL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RP



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2969 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 26-118,  

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES OF DIVISION I GENERALLY  

OF ARTICLE III DISTRICT AND DISTRICT  

REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER TWENTY-SIX (26), ZONING,  

OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 

AND RE-ENACTING SAID SECTION 26-118 OF SAID ORDINANCE, AS 

AMENDED, SO AS TO APPLY AND INCLUDE TO THE  

CHANGE IN THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF  

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AS PROVIDED BY THIS ORDINANCE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning is consistent with the proposed use of Cedar Falls New High School Project 

which is identified as “Public” use for the City of Cedar Falls and therefore has recommended to the 

City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that all that area described as follows shall be removed 

from the A-1 Agricultural Zoning District and placed in P Public Zoning District, as follows: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to P: 

 

A parcel of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 

89 North, Range 24 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa and more particularly described 

as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, thence 

along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for a distance of 75 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line 

of 27th street, the point of beginning, thence continuing along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for 

a distance of 1251.33 feet to the North line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 

thence along said North line, South 89°45’30” West for a distance of 680 feet, thence South 00°8’50” 

East for a distance of 1244.81 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of 27th Street, thence along said 

right of way line, South 85°35’04” East for a distance of 77.49 feet, thence North 89°46’48” East a 

distance of 602.75 feet to the point of beginning. Tract contains 19.53 acres and is subject to all 

easements of record. 

 

And 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to the best interests 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 
20

Item 3.



 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; now, therefore, 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate: 

 

Legal description for land to be rezoned from A-1 to P: 

 

A parcel of land located in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 

89 North, Range 24 West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa and more particularly described 

as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, thence 

along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for a distance of 75 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line 

of 27th street, the point of beginning, thence continuing along said East line, North 00°8’50” West for 

a distance of 1251.33 feet to the North line of said Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter, 

thence along said North line, South 89°45’30” West for a distance of 680 feet, thence South 00°8’50” 

East for a distance of 1244.81 feet to the northerly right-of-way line of 27th Street, thence along said 

right of way line, South 85°35’04” East for a distance of 77.49 feet, thence North 89°46’48” East a 

distance of 602.75 feet to the point of beginning. Tract contains 19.53 acres and is subject to all 

easements of record. 

 

Be and the same is hereby removed from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the P Public 

Zoning District.  

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the P Public Zoning 

District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as amended. 

 

 Section 3. That said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby repealed and hereby re-

enacted in the identical language as the same now is, in order that the same shall apply to and include 

the change hereby made in the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

INTRODUCED:    August 17, 2020    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  August 17, 2020    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

21

Item 3.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 DATE: August 18, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Special City Council Meeting for Mask Resolution 

 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-187(c): Mayor Powers and Duties 

  (b) Iowa Code §21: Official Meetings Open to the Public (Open Meetings) 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a) and (b), I am convening a special meeting of the Cedar 

Falls City Council via electronic means (Zoom) on Wednesday, August 19, 2020 at 

5:30pm.   This meeting is being held in response to a referral by City Council in its 

August 17, 2020 regular meeting, for an opportunity to discuss and vote on a resolution 

to require facial coverings in Cedar Falls in response to the CoVID-19 pandemic. 

2. To facilitate the discussion, Waterloo’s approved resolution from its August 17 meeting is 

is included as enclosure (1).  Attorney Rogers will be prepared to present changes he 

believes would be legally necessary for the council’s due consideration. 

3. A ‘process sheet’ from the Black Hawk County Public Health Director was provided to 

me this week; it is also included as enclosure (2) to consider in your deliberations.  

4. During this meeting, the Black Hawk County Public Health Director, Dr. Nafissa Cisse-

Egbuonye, will be attending virtually and will be able to answer questions posed by 

council members. 

xc: City Administrator 

      City Clerk 

 

Encl:  (1) Approved Waterloo Resolution for a Facial Mask Mandate 

(2) Black Hawk County Board of Health Face Covering Regulation Process Document 

# 

22

Item 4.



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING A FACE MASK MANDATE FOR THE 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
 WHEREAS, we, the elected representatives of the City of Cedar Falls, took an oath 
to uphold and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State 
of Iowa, and  
 

WHEREAS, the emergence of the novel coronavirus, SARS-CoV-2, that causes the 
disease COVID-19, can result in serious illness or death and can easily be spread from 
person to person, and 

 
 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services declared a national public health emergency related to the dangers posed 
by COVID-19, and  
 

WHEREAS, on March 9, 2020, the Governor of the State of Iowa, Kim Reynolds, 
signed a proclamation of disaster emergency for the entire State of Iowa based on the 
increasing numbers in the State of Iowa testing positive for COVID-19, and  

 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-

19 outbreak to be a worldwide pandemic, and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States signed an 

emergency declaration under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Act authorizing emergency response measures in all fifty states in response to 
COVID-19, and  

 
WHEREAS, the most current local data relating to COVID-19 as provided by the 

Iowa Department of Public Health (“IDPH”) and the Black Hawk County Department of 
Public Health (“BHCDPH”) show that the State of Iowa and Black Hawk County continue to 
experience significant community spread of this disease, and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa has a compelling interest to protect the 

lives of its residents, and  
 
WHEREAS, Article III, Section 38A of the Iowa Constitution grants municipalities the 

power to determine their local affairs and government not inconsistent with the laws of the 
general assembly, and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 364 of the Iowa Code reaffirms the constitutional grant of home 

rule authority to municipalities “to exercise any power and perform any function it deems 
appropriate to protect and preserve the rights, privileges, and property of the city of its 
residents, and to preserve and improve the peace, safety, health, welfare, comfort and 
convenience of its residents”, and  

 
WHEREAS, a city “may exercise its general powers subject only to limitations 

expressly imposed by state or city law,” and the exercise of a city power “is not inconsistent 

23

Item 4.



with a state law unless it is irreconcilable with the state law.” Iowa Code section 364.2(2) 
and (3), and  

 
WHEREAS, a city may set standards and requirements which are higher or “more 

stringent than those imposed by state law, unless a state law provides otherwise.” Iowa 
Code Section 364.3(3)(a); City of Des Moines v. Gruen, 457 N.W.2d 340, 343 (Iowa 1990); 
Bryan v. City of Des Moines, 261 N.W.2d 685, 687 (Iowa 1978), and 

 
WHEREAS, the Center of Disease Control (“CDC”), the IDPH, and BHCDPH, have 

all determined and encouraged that face coverings are an critical tool in the fight against 
COVID-19 that could reduce the spread of the virus particularly when used universally 
within a community, and 

 
WHEREAS, the Governor’s current proclamation requires that businesses and 

gatherings ensure social distancing of employees, customers, and attendees, increased 
hygiene practices, and other public health measures to reduce the risk of transmission of 
COVID-19 consistent with the guidance of the IDPH, and  

 
WHEREAS, the IDPH’s reopening guidance advises that members of the public 

consider the use of cloth face coverings when distancing is not possible because wearing a 
face covering in public places where social distancing measures are difficult can help slow 
the spread of COVID-19, and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa wear face 

coverings is essential to reducing the risk of transmission of COVID-19, and necessary to 
protect the health, welfare, and safety of residents and visitors and to accelerate local 
recovery efforts, and  

 
WHEREAS, a requirement that persons wear a face covering is not irreconcilable 

with the Governor’s proclamations and the guidance of the Iowa Department of Public 
Health, and  

 
WHEREAS, this resolution is not meant to be stigmatizing or punitive and is in the 

best interest of the health, welfare, and safety, and economic recovery of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa and its residents. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Every person in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa must wear a face covering 

when:  
a) In public, as opposed to one’s place of residence, when one cannot stay 

six (6) feet apart from others.  
b) Inside any indoor public settings, including but not limited to:  

1. Grocery stores  
2. Pharmacies  
3. Hardware stores  
4. Retail stores  
5. Other public settings that are not one’s place of residence and when 

24

Item 4.



among people who do not live in the same household  
6. City buildings  

c) Outside if maintaining a distance of six (6) feet apart is not possible  
d) Using public transportation or private car services (including taxis, ride 

share, or carpooling) 
  

Section 2. No business that is open to the public may provide service to a customer 
or allow a customer to enter its premises, unless the customer is wearing a face covering as 
required by this resolution, and businesses that are open to the public must post signs at 
entrance(s) instructing customers of their obligations to wear a face covering while inside.  

 
Section 3. Those who are exempt from wearing a face covering are:  

a) Persons younger than 2 years of age due to the risk of suffocation.  
b) Anyone who has trouble breathing, on oxygen therapy, or ventilator.  
c) Anyone who is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove 

their face covering without assistance.  
d) Anyone who has been told by a medical, legal, or behavioral health 

professional not to wear face coverings.  
e) Anyone actively engaged in a public safety role, including but not limited 

to law enforcement, firefighters, or emergency medical personnel. 
 

Section 4. Places and times where persons are exempt from wearing a face 
covering:  

a) While traveling in a personal vehicle alone or with only household members.  
b) While a person is alone or with only household members.  
c) While exercising at moderate or high intensity e.g. swimming, jogging, biking. 
d) While seated at a food establishment in the process of eating or drinking.  
e) While obtaining a service that would require temporary removal of the 

person’s face covering.  
f) When federal or state law prohibits wearing a face covering or requires the 

removal of a face covering.  
 

Section 5. If a cloth face covering is chosen, appropriate use of a cloth face covering 
includes:  

a) A snug fit, but comfortable against the side of the face.  
b) Completely covers the nose and mouth.  
c) Is secured with ties or ear loops.  
d) Includes multiple layers of fabric.  
e) Allows for breathing without restriction.  
f) Can be laundered and machine dried without damage or change in shape.  

 
Section 6. This resolution shall be in effect for six weeks from the date it is signed by 

the Mayor. Prior to the expiration, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa may 
extend the mandate by adopting a new resolution.  

 
Section 7. If any section, provision, or part of this resolution is adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the resolution as a whole or 
any section, provision, or part of this resolution not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

25

Item 4.



 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of August 2020. 
 
 
        
        ___________________________ 
         Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

26

Item 4.



Black Hawk County Board of Health 
Face Covering Public Health Regulation Analysis1 

 

Process Sheet 
 

August 17, 2020 
 

Problem Statement:   

The COVID-19 pandemic, also known as the coronavirus pandemic, is an ongoing global pandemic of coronavirus 

disease 2019 (COVID-19), caused by severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 (SARS-CoV-2). COVID-19 

is a respiratory illness that spreads readily from person-to-person, especially when in close contact, and can result in 

lengthy illness, hospitalization, and death. As of 08-14-2020, 5,176,018 confirmed cases and 165,148 deaths have 

occurred in the United States. The State of Iowa has 50,808 confirmed cases and 964 deaths. Black Hawk County 

(Iowa) has 3,834 cases and 66 deaths to date. The Black Hawk County Board of Health finds that COVID-19 poses 

a continuing and immediate threat to the public health of Black Hawk County, Iowa residents and visitors. 
 

Background:  

1. Evaluation of laws2 for consistency with public health evidence-based and/or promising practices:  

a. The World Health Organization (WHO) declared COVID-19 a public health emergency of international 

concern and global pandemic on January 30 and March 11, 2020, respectively. 

b. The Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services declared a national public health 

emergency on January 31, 2020, concerning COVID-19. 

c. The Governor of Iowa, Kim Reynolds, issued a Proclamation of Disaster Emergency, followed by a series 

of additional proclamations concerning COVID-19 beginning on March 9 through July 24, 2020.  
 

2. Use of model public health laws, checklists, templates or other standard outline or guide:  

a. City of Dubuque, Iowa  

b. County of Johnson, Iowa   

c. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Director, Dr. Robert Redfield, stated in a press release 

dated July 14, 2020, “Cloth face coverings are one of the most powerful weapons we have to slow and stop 

the spread of the virus – particularly when used universally within a community setting. All Americans 

have a responsibility to protect themselves, their families, and their communities.” 

d. The U.S. Surgeon General, Jerome Adams, stated in an interview dated July 12, 2020, “We can turn this 

thing around in two to three weeks if we can get a critical mass of people wearing face coverings, 

practicing at least six feet of social distancing, doing the things that we know are effective.” 

e. The Iowa Department of Public Health advises on its website, “Cloth face masks can help slow the spread 

of COVID-19 in Iowa. Protect yourself and your community by wearing a face covering when out in public 

and when social distancing is not possible.” 

f. More than 50% of U.S. States mandate face coverings to slow and stop the spread of COVID-19. 
 

3. Input solicited from key partners and stakeholders in the form of professional organization engagement, public 

notice, hearings and Black Hawk County/Health Department website:  

Black Hawk County is Iowa’s fifth most populous county; is located in Iowa’s fourth most populous 

metropolitan area; and is home to Iowa’s eighth most populous and thirteenth most populous cities, in addition 

to other towns.  Due to the varying populations and population densities, the appropriate level of care and 

caution varies; as well as the appropriate measures, and appropriate enforcement of those measures, vary from 

county-to-county in Iowa.  

a. The Iowa Public Health Association advocates for a mask mandate and local control. 

b. Black Hawk County serves as a regional hub for retail and other businesses. The spread of COVID-19 is 

facilitated by close employee interaction in workplace environments, by attendance at retail centers and 

other places of business by the general public, and by interaction between employees and the general public 

                                                 
1 Public Health Accreditation Board (PHAB) Standards v1.5 
2 In the absence of available laws, reference to best practice recommendations may be utilized. 

27

Item 4.

a.%09https:/www.cityofdubuque.org/DocumentCenter/View/46491/Ordinance-No-31-20-Title-6-Facing-Covering-Requirement
a.%09file:/C:/Users/phd012/Downloads/2020_08_06%20Johnson%20County%20face%20covering%20resolution.pdf


Black Hawk Co Board of Health Face Covering Public Health Regulation Analysis 

 

2 

 

at local businesses. In addition to many local businesses, the following national chains are requiring 

employees and visitors to wear face coverings:  https://kwwl.com/2020/07/16/list-these-national-retailers-

are-requiring-customers-to-wear-masks/ 

 

c. K-12 school districts are requiring students, staff and faculty to wear face coverings: 

I. Cedar Falls  

II. Dunkerton  

III. Hudson  

IV. Union  

V. Waterloo   

d. Higher educational institutions are requiring students, staff and faculty to wear face coverings: 

I. Hawkeye Community College  

II. University of Northern Iowa  

e. The Black Hawk County Board of Supervisors requires all employees and visitors to wear a face covering 

in county buildings. 

f. Throughout the pandemic, local municipalities are implementing mitigation efforts including face covering 

requirements in municipal buildings, social distancing and restricted hours of operation.  

g. Healthcare institutions are requiring health screening and face masks upon entry into all facilities. 
 

4. Assessment of health equity impact on population groups:  

a. Black Hawk County is home to diverse communities with citizens of several nationalities, socioeconomic 

backgrounds, and household customs.  

b. Active cases of COVID-19, both locally and nationally, are disproportionately impacting low income, and 

marginalized communities, which comprise a significant component of the workforce and population of 

Black Hawk County.  

c. The Black Hawk County Board of Health recognizes that continued operation of essential services and 

workplaces is necessary to ensure the availability of a safe food supply, adequate health care system, and 

for the Iowa economy to serve all people in its jurisdiction. 
 

5. Collaboration with other governmental levels and peer counties of public health, as indicated:  

a. The Black Hawk County Board of Health joined peer counties to endorse an Iowa Public Health 

Association, “Mask Mandate and Local Control,” position statement on 07-29-2020.  

b. The Black Hawk County Board of Health believes that essential businesses and services exist to serve Iowa 

workers and families, rather than Iowa workers and families existing to sacrifice themselves for the benefit 

of business. 

c. Black Hawk County and other (peer) more populous counties have denser populations and greater business 

activity, than most other Iowa counties; and warrants allowing local governments more latitude to enact 

and enforce measures designed to stop the spread of COVID-19 in the county, such as a requirement to use 

face coverings in certain situations.  

Next Steps: The Black Hawk County Board of Health is preparing a notice for public hearing regarding a face 

covering health regulation.  As a community stakeholder, please provide your feedback on this proposed issue by 

Thursday, August 20, 2020 12N. 

 

28

Item 4.

https://kwwl.com/2020/07/16/list-these-national-retailers-are-requiring-customers-to-wear-masks/
https://kwwl.com/2020/07/16/list-these-national-retailers-are-requiring-customers-to-wear-masks/
https://sites.google.com/cfschools.org/cedarfallscommunityschoolstlch/home
https://www.dunkerton.k12.ia.us/vnews/display.v/ART/5f1600bfada17
https://www.hudsonpiratepride.com/42114_1
https://www.union.k12.ia.us/return-to-learn/
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gERWCsmvdhBCPkLPLAagQ5BmuJHK72fq_HTnuoE8Dvs/edit
I.%09https:/www.hawkeyecollege.edu/COVID-19
I.%09https:/forwardtogether.uni.edu/


29

Item 5.



30

Item 6.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 DATE: September 2, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Nomination of Mr. Nathan Arndt for Historic Preservation Commission 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-343: Historic Preservation Commission 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate Mr. Nathan Arndt for appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission to fill 

a vacancy with a term ending to end on March 31, 2022.  

 

2. Mr. Arndt has been interviewed by the Selection Committee and by me separately, and we 

have collectively determined him to be the most qualified citizen for this appointment; his 

General Application and Candidate Questionnaire are attached for your consideration. 

 

# 

 

Encl:  (1)  Mr. Nathan Arndt – General Application and Candidate Questionnaire 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

31

Item 7.



 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

The City of Cedar Falls appreciates your interest in serving the community and welcomes your application. 

Please complete all sections of this application. If you have any questions, please contact City Hall at (319) 

273-8600. The City of Cedar Falls is committed to providing equal opportunity for citizen involvement. 

 

Name:  Nathan Scott Arndt    Gender: Male   Date: 2/22/2019 

               

Home Address: 809 Walnut Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613     Phone:  515-339-2291 

Work Address: 1227 W. 27th Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50614     Phone: 319-273-6922 

Email Address: Nathan.Arndt@uni.edu       Cell: 515-339-2291 

Employer: University of Northern Iowa    Position/Occupation: Museum Assistant Director/Chief Curator 

If Cedar Falls resident, length of residency: 4 Years - Ward: 1 

NOMINEE FOR THE FOLLOWING (check any that apply): 

 
Planning & Zoning Commission   

 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT:  Please describe your present and past community involvement including 

voluntary, social, city, church, school, business and professional that are applicable. (Include dates of involvement, 

and any offices or leadership positions held.) 

 

Member of the Cedar Falls Rotary Club (July 2015 – Present) 

Board member for the Cedar Falls Historical Society (2015-Present) 

Friends of the UNI Museum (Cedar Falls Community Based Group) (2015-Present) 

Cedar Valley Hospitality Partners 2017-Present 

Iowa Museum Association Conference Planning Committee (For Cedar Falls) 2016-2018  

 

 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS:  Please list any special qualifications for serving on a board, including skills, 

training, licenses and certificates that are applicable. 

 

Prior experience serving on the board for the Warren Preservation Society (Rhode Island). This group’s 

mission was to promoting the preservation of historic buildings throughout the Town of Warren through a 

program to plaque homes, public exhibits, guest speakers, renovation projects, and education. Our goal 

was to work with city hall to find ways to preserve our past while updating our community to keep it vibrant 

and growing. 

 

 

32

Item 7.



List reasons why you would like to be appointed and what contributions you believe you can make. 

 

Cedar Falls has a unique history that I think needs to have a voice on the Planning & Zoning Commission. I also 

believe that voice has to be fair, willing to work with different perspectives, and needs to be able to stand up to what is 

ethical and right for the community. I believe that transparency is key. I practice this at my museum and I believe it is 

best in government as well. I think bringing a historical perspective to the commission will give that new voice.   
 

Are you aware of any conflict of interest, or potential conflict of interest, that may prevent you from carrying 

out your responsibilities on this Board/Commission in the best interest of the City of Cedar Falls? If so, 

please describe. 

 

I see no conflicts serving on the commission. 

 
Please mail completed application to:  City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 

50613 or email to boards@cedarfalls.com. 

33

Item 7.



 
 HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 

 
 
    Name: Nathan Arndt                                                                                               Date:  7/15/2020  

Can you regularly attend board meetings on the 2nd Tuesday of the month at 5:30pm at City Hall?     X Yes    ❑ No  

1. Why are you interested in serving on the Historic Preservation Commission?  
 
As a museum professional for over 10 years with a background in preservation and a deep love of our historic 
towns, it bothers me how quickly people are willing to remove pieces of our history. I firmly believe there are 
ways to balance modern innovation with historic preservation. I love the history of our towns but know that 
once it is removed we can never get it back. Cedar Falls has a rich history that should be maintained and the 
city should encourage people to value these pieces of history. 
 

2. What is your background and experience in being a voice for historic preservation?  
 
I currently teach conservation and preservation at the University of Northern Iowa and serve on the board of 
the Iowa The Iowa Conservation and Preservation Consortium. When I lived in Rhode Island, I served on the 
Warren Preservation Society where we worked to preserve the history of our small fishing community. This 
included researching, plaquing, and giving money to help preserve historic homes. We worked with the city 
council to encourage preservation and stop the destruction of our historic buildings.  
 

3. What would you see as your role in this advisory board? 
 
My roll would be simple, to find a way to preserve the character and history of Cedar Falls while allowing 
progress to move forward. This means I will be willing to hear people out, have open and difficult 
conversations, and possibly go against popular projects that would remove important aspects of our towns 
heritage. As a board member, I will have to be that voice that looks at all sides objectively and removes my 
own bias for the betterment of the community.  
 

4. What unique perspective or insights could you bring to the Historic Preservation Commission? 
Researching and documenting historic buildings / Plaquing opportunities for homes that uphold a true 
historical goal. Museum perspective of how to preserve something to keep it available to the public for a 
long period.  
 

5. What changes would you like to see in how the City carries out historic preservation responsibilities? 
 
I would like to see the community focus on repurposing buildings and locations for the public good instead 
of tearing them down to start fresh. I would like to see the town work with homeowners who want to 
restore properties to their original form to make them gems in the local community. I want to see more 
partnerships built, and less kickback from the town for these kinds of preservation projects remembering 
that they are putting codes on buildings that were built 100-150 years ago. There needs to be some 
flexibility that I don’t think we are seeing with the city yet. 
 

6. What historic preservation resources, tools and activities would you employ to be an informed and 
engaged member of the Historic Preservation Commission? 

- Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs (Historic Preservation Office) 
- Work directly with the Cedar Falls Historical Society as a partner and research tool 
- Cedar Falls Preservation Society (Not one currently established but should be considered to include the 

neighborhoods in these conversations) 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________
_____ 
 
Please send this completed Candidate Questionnaire by the published deadline to:  
City of Cedar Falls, Boards & Commissions, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, fax to (319) 268-5126, 
or e-mail to boards@cedarfalls.com. You will be notified shortly if selected as a Finalist for the appointment 

34

Item 7.

mailto:boards@cedarfalls.com


CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
City Hall – Council Chambers  

August 17, 2020 
 

The City Council held a special work session at City Hall via teleconference at 6:00 p.m. 
on August 17, 2020, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. Green, 
Frank Darrah, Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, and 
Dave Sires.  Staff members attended from all City Departments. Andrew Wind with the 
Waterloo Courier, as well as members of the community teleconferenced in.   

The Mayor introduced the first item on the agenda City Council Committee Structure.  
Ron Gaines City Administrator stated this was a referral from Councilmember deBuhr.  
He reviewed the history of committee meetings.  Previous committees had five of the 
seven council members assigned to them.  He explained the current Committee of the 
Whole structure was changed with Ordinance #2605 and Administrative Policy #7 was 
updated to reflect the ordinance change in 2014, having all seven members assigned to 
this committee.  He also stated in 2014 Council Referral was added to the Council 
agenda as an item.  He stated the change to have all seven council members on the 
Committee of the Whole allowed the Mayor to chair the committee; the Mayor was left 
out of the discussion with previous committee structure, because a council member was 
the chair of the sub-committee.    City Administrator Gaines stated another reason for 
the change was an item may pass in sub-committee, but fail on the council agenda.  
This created extra work for staff.   He reviewed what other cities have for committee 
structure.  He stated most cities do not have standing committees.  

Mayor Green opened it up for discussion.  Councilmember deBuhr stated sub-
committee’s would provide better communication and provide a better dialog on topics.  
She stated the current structure is very formal, televising doesn’t allow council to 
discuss candidly.  Councilmember Miller stated he doesn’t want to create more work for 
city staff. Councilmember Sires reviewed the prior sub-structure provided by Stan 
Smith.  He stated there was better discussion between council with the sub-committee 
structure.  Councilmember Kruse stated he sees it as a pre-screening of a topic.  
Councilmember Harding stated this may allow for more time on a topic, rather than 
receiving information on Friday and reviewing over the weekend prior to the Monday 
Committee of the Whole meeting.  Councilmember Darrah stated this sounds like a 
topic for goal setting, stating he wants the change to make sense and be purposeful.  
He said this change will be extra work for staff.  Councilmember deBuhr stated the 
residents aren’t comfortable with televised meetings.  Councilmember Miller stated 
there are a lot of questions to be answered in order for this to make sense.  Kevin 
Rogers City Attorney stated an ordinance change would be necessary if we changed 
the committee structure and if four or more council members were assigned to a sub-
committee, it must follow the public meeting rules.  City Administrator Gaines stated the 
seven committee structure (pre-1986) was when the City had more departments, stating 
we currently have four departments. Councilmember Sires stated this is a way for 
council to direct staff rather than staff directing us, and added a better way for us to be 
involved.  Councilmember Darrah stated we work with the recommendations from city 
staff, and rely on their professional training for these recommendations.  

35

Item 8.



Councilmember Miller stated we have the opportunity to call and ask questions from city 
staff and if we don’t do it, it’s our fault.  He stated he doesn’t want to have meetings to 
have meetings.  Mayor Green gathered from the discussion another work session will 
be needed to discuss an outline of a sample sub-committee structure. 

There being no further discussion, Frank Darrah moved for adjournment. Daryl Kruse 
seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.  Mayor Green adjourned the 
meeting at 6:56 p.m.  

Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

36

Item 8.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

August 26, 2020 

 

The City Council held a special work session at City Hall via teleconference at 4:00 p.m. 
on August 26, 2020, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. Green, 
Frank Darrah, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, Dave Sires, and Kelly Dunn.  
Absent:  Susan deBuhr.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Amie 
Rivers from the Waterloo Courier attended, as well as members of the community. 
 
Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, COVID-19 Mitigation Options 
Discussion.  Mayor Green read an opening statement regarding tonight’s work session.  
Councilmember Harding commented to inform the public this was a work session and 
there would be no motions or voting at a work session.  Councilmember Dunn stated 
she is for the mask mandate and keeping all citizens safe.  She also would like to 
educate the citizens and have reliable/acceptable resources.  Councilmember Miller 
commented there are baseline facts that are important and stated that numerous cities 
in Iowa have a mask mandate.  Mayor Green stated the baseline for information and 
recommendations are from the County Health Representative.  Councilmember Miller 
posed the question of waiting for the governor to put something in place or take it on as 
a city.  Mayor Green presented the current COVID tracker from Black Hawk County.  
Councilmember Dunn stated we all need to pretend we have it, wear the mask, make 
changes as needed, and as data is collected make recommended changes.  
Councilmember Harding stated concern from local business owners that the mask 
mandate pushes customers away.  Councilmember Miller stated the local businesses 
and UNI want to keep everyone safe; the goal is to get back to normal and there’s not 
much guidance from the state.  Mayor Green stated we need to get everyone 
comfortable to get back out and educate local merchants.  Councilmember Miller 
suggested closing streets to accommodate business owners to expand in the street; 
review what ordinances would need to be changed before spring.  Councilmember Sires 
stated this is a freedom of business owners and they need to manage their businesses.  
Things need to get back to normal and council meetings need to return to City Hall 
Council Chambers.  Councilmember Sires stated that he’s against this and it’s infringing 
on freedoms.  Kevin Rogers City Attorney clarified questions from councilmembers 
regarding court cases, resolutions and ordinances.  Councilmember Harding posed the 
question is the city liable if we have a resolution.  Attorney Rogers stated the city is not 
liable and cases would need to be upheld in court.  Mayor Green stated 7 or 8 cities in 
Iowa currently have a mask mandate at various levels.  Craig Bert Assistant Public 
Safety Director/Police Chief stated City of Ames is drafting an ordinance with no 
penalty, Dubuque has a $10.00 fine and have had no citations issued, Mt. Vernon has a 
resolution and it’s unenforceable, Iowa City has an ordinance and a $450.00 fine and no 
citations have been issued.  Police Chief Berte stated that enforcement will be 
problematic and challenging.  Councilmember Sires suggested an educational 
commercial on Channel 15.  Councilmembers discussed what should be the next steps; 
education, should mask mandate resolution be the next step, would an ordinance be 
more effective with fines/enforcement.  Police Chief Berte explained loitering ordinance.  

37

Item 9.



Councilmember Miller suggested these goals:  Get businesses to 100% capacity, keep 
UNI/Schools open, resident’s safety, and don’t overload the hospitals.  Councilmember 
Miller suggested another work session.  Councilmember Harding agreed with another 
work session meeting. Mayor Green stated he will schedule another work session in the 
coming days. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 5:15 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

38

Item 9.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

August 31, 2020 
 

The City Council held a special work session at City Hall via teleconference at 5:00 p.m. 
on August 31, 2020, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Robert M. Green, 
Frank Darrah, Simon Harding, Daryl Kruse, Mark Miller, Dave Sires and Kelly Dunn.  
Absent:  Susan deBuhr.  Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Amie 
Rivers from the Waterloo Courier attended, as well as members of the community 
teleconferenced in. 

Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, COVID-19 Mitigation Options 
Discussion.  Mayor read an opening statement regarding tonight’s work session.  
Councilmember Harding stated that he’d like to find out if we have a consensus to push 
forward on the mask mandate education and compliance.  If we don’t have consensus 
we can’t do anything.  Mayor Green explained that we are not voting on the mandate, 
that we are seeing who’s in agreement and then staff can create formal documents or a 
resolution for council to vote on at a later date.  Mayor Green reiterated Councilmember 
Harding’s support for the mandate.  Councilmember Sires met with the governor and he 
explained that no city, county or municipality has the authority to do this.  
Councilmember Sires stated he had handouts for the all Councilmembers from the 
governor’s office.  Councilmember Sires supports the governor and would like to follow 
along with her guidelines.  Mayor Green referred to Step Up Mask Up Iowa and it was 
released July 23rd and numbers are still on the rise.  Mayor Green stated that cities 
have the authority to create rules and regulations that are stricter than state mandates 
we simply can’t go more lax than the state requires.  Attorney Rogers confirmed that 
some cities have taken that position.  Attorney Rogers discussed concepts that are not 
addressed in the latest governor’s proclamation and any enforcement by the attorney 
general.  Councilmember Darrah discussed strongly encouraging our residents to be 
responsible, education and we need to work with the bar owners.  Councilmember Sires 
agreed with Councilmember Darrah.  Councilmember Harding discussed the bar 
owners are under restrictions on how many patrons they are allowed in.  
Councilmember Sires recommends we do what the governor says and to do a video.  
Councilmember Dunn stated what the governor has done has not gotten us in a great 
place.  We need to use the word mandate and we need to educate.  Waiting till the next 
council meeting is concerning.  Councilmember Dunn discussed handing out masks to 
people and expressed her concern about people not wearing masks.  Councilmember 
Miller agreed the time is now that we need to do something and agrees it should be a 
mask mandate.  When you can’t social distance, you need to wear a mask.  A mask 
outside is not necessary.  Mayor Green commented that we need to look at the 
numbers after trusting Iowans to do the right thing and what we are doing isn’t enough.  
We have the highest COVID risk in the nation for COVID spread.  Councilmember Miller 
stated that we need to get back to normal and we are not getting the leadership from 
above.  Councilmember Kruse discussed the cases and if the mask mandate has been 
effective.  Councilmember Kruse stated he’s in favor of education and suggesting mask 
wearing.  Councilmembers Harding and Darrah stated that we need to do something.  
Mayor Green believes we have a consensus with four councilmembers that are 

39

Item 10.



interested in proceeding forward with a mandate.  Councilmember Sires believes in 
individual/businesses rights, but wants everyone to be healthy.  Mayor Green stated 
most cities proclamations are the same language.  Councilmember Miller discussed if 
the city had money in the budget that we could offer masks and signs to business 
owners.  Councilmember Harding commented that he doesn’t want to see schools or 
businesses close again.  Mayor Green asked if there would be a consensus to keep the 
mandate in effect until September 20th and then re-evaluate.  Councilmember Dunn 
stated information about the 5% threshold.  Councilmembers would like to see the 
infections breakdown by county.  Councilmembers discussed the expiration of the 
mandate.  Mayor Green stated that we will have something ready for the September 8th 
City Council Meeting for council to evaluate and vote on.  Councilmember Harding 
recommended a similar mandate as Waterloo.  Mayor Green stated Des Moines 
mandate is identical to Waterloo.  Councilmember Miller suggested expanding Main 
Street into the street and re-evaluate liquor licenses.  Councilmember Dunn suggested 
doing this for College Hill businesses as well.  Director Sheetz stated this has been 
discussed with Community Main Street and there was concern about increased costs, 
would the streets be utilized and it was determined it wouldn’t be worthwhile at this time.  
Councilmembers discussed the survival of businesses.  Mayor Green believes we have 
a consensus to move forward on a resolution with no enforcement.  Councilmember 
Harding suggested a commercial/PSA to keep the Cedar Valley open.  Councilmember 
Dunn suggested reaching out to our local experts.  Mayor Green will email COVID 
numbers to councilmembers. 

There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:03 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor             

 

40

Item 10.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
  

 

   

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: September 4, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Departmental Monthly Reports Submission – July 2020 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa §2-187(b)7 

 

1. As required by reference (a), I have reviewed the activities of the City’s departments for 

the month of July and am providing them as enclosure (1).  

2. Of special note and recognition for July, I commend the quick work of the city’s Public 

Works Department, Public Safety Department, Cedar Falls Utilities, and other city staff 

to restore services and remove debris following the July 9th windstorm.  Many downed 

branches, a significant stormwater surge, and damaged signs and signals had to be 

addressed to bring the city back to full operation.   

3. In past years, the police shift log has been included in the departmental reports.  As the 

Departmental Monthly Reports are intended to be a summary of all activities rather than a 

detailed accounting of every activity, the police shift log has been excised from the 

document.   All other Public Safety summary activities have been retained. 

4. Please contact the City Administrator or me with any questions about this report. 

# 

 

Encl: (1) City of Cedar Falls Departmental Monthly Reports, July 2020 

41

Item 11.



42

Item 11.



43

Item 11.



44

Item 11.



45

Item 11.



46

Item 11.



47

Item 11.



48

Item 11.



49

Item 11.



50

Item 11.



51

Item 11.



52

Item 11.



53

Item 11.



54

Item 11.



55

Item 11.



56

Item 11.



57

Item 11.



58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.



61

Item 11.



62

Item 11.



63

Item 11.



64

Item 11.



65

Item 11.



66

Item 11.



67

Item 11.



68

Item 11.



69

Item 11.



70

Item 11.



71

Item 11.



72

Item 11.



73

Item 11.



74

Item 11.



75

Item 11.



76

Item 11.



77

Item 11.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  September 3, 2020 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Fleet Farm, 400 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 

b) Fleet Farm Fuel, 108 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 

c) Hampton Inn & Suites, 101 West 1st Street, Class C beer & Class B wine - 
renewal. 

d) Metro Mart, 103 Franklin Street, Class C beer - renewal. 

e) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer - renewal. 

f) Hilton Garden Inn, 7213 Nordic Drive, Class B liquor, Class B native wine & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

h) Wilbo, 118 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

i) Casey's General Store, 1225 Fountains Way, Class E liquor - renewal. 

j) Chuck E. Cheese's, 5911 University Avenue, Class B beer – change in ownership. 

k) United Wine & Liquor, 2211 College Street, Class E liquor – new. 

80

Item 13.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor 
 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: City Council 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green  

 DATE: September 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Recommendation for Council Consideration to Remove Commissioner LeaAnn 

Saul as a Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commissioner 

 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-159: Removal of appointed officers 

  (b) Personnel Policies, City of Cedar Falls 801(2)(s): Behavior of Employees 

 

1. Executive Summary.  In accordance with reference (a), I recommend that Ms. LeaAnn 

Saul be removed from her appointed office as Planning and Zoning Commissioner for 

just cause, specifically for making public false statements regarding an elected official 

and City operations.  I request that the City Council approve a resolution to consider 

removal, and to initiate the removal consideration proceedings specified in reference (a).  

2. Background.   

a. On Monday, August 24, 2020, Commissioner Saul posted to her city campaign 

Facebook Page, “LeaAnn for Cedar Falls” the following (included as Enclosure (1)):  

“FYI, the CF mask mandate is trying to get pushed through by Mayor Green, 

Joyce Coil, and Dee Vandeventer - who are sending out a petition via Facebook. 

The CFPD was asked to go out and take photos of youth sports practices and 

churches to prove, or disprove, they weren't wearing masks with the goal of 

shutting them down. Privately, the head of Public Safety is not happy about it 

and doesn't want to be put in the position to enforce it. The state has said they 

will not support any city's efforts to implement a mask mandate, nor will they 

defend any city against lawsuits resulting from mask mandates. Apparently, 

there's a "company in the industrial park" soliciting $500 contributions to fight 

the mandate, etc. Call your city council rep to voice your displeasure and ask 

your friends to do the same. 

Let all CF friends know about this and share.” 

b. Since August, 24, I have had to field numerous phone calls and e-mails expressing 

anger at ‘my’ actions noted above. The Police Chief has also been required to spend 

time answering false charges that the city is surveilling mask use among residents.  

81

Item 14.



2 
 

c. During the evening of August 25, I was made aware of the existence of 

Commissioner Saul’s false public statement, which provides the basis for the 

unfounded constituent complaints regarding my participation in a petition, and of 

alleged abuse of authority and misconduct by the Cedar Falls Police Division.    

 

d. The statement regarding my “pushing” of a petition regarding a mask mandate is 

false.  I have had no contact with the two individuals Commissioner Saul references 

in her post, nor have I created, forwarded or signed any petitions for a mask mandate.   

 

e. The statement regarding police surveillance is false.  I have confirmed with Police 

Chief Berte that that no orders have been given for any officers to surveil churches 

and youth activities for mask-wearing.  While Ms. Saul stated that the Cedar Falls 

Police “was asked” to carry out this activity, her follow-on statement that Public 

Safety Director Olson “is not happy about it and doesn't want to be put in the position 

to enforce it” strongly implies that either I or City Administrator Ron Gaines did the 

‘asking’. Again, this is false. 

3. Recommendation Justification. 

a. Expected Standard of Ethics for Appointed Officials.   

(1) While City elected and appointed officials are not required by City Ordinance to 

comply with the City’s Personnel Policies, accepted practice is that the City’s 

public officials adhere to the spirit of the provisions, and to the letter where 

appropriate. In this case, reference (b) states that the following conduct is 

prohibited for City employees and may subject the individual involved to 

disciplinary action, up to and including termination:  

“Making false, inaccurate, or misleading statements or misrepresentations 

about another City employee elected or appointed public official, citizen, 

customer, City operation, practice, policy, or other matters.”   

(2) Commissioner Saul’s false statements regarding the Cedar Falls Police Division 

and about me (as Mayor) unquestionably violate the spirit of the City’s Standards 

of Conduct.  Whether she actually invented the false information herself, or 

instead simply passed along rumors provided to her, is irrelevant. The posting of 

this information on public social media under her own name means 

Commissioner Saul is culpable for the issuance of these false statements. 

 

(3) While a private resident may make false statements with impunity, elected and 

appointed officials can (and must) be held to a higher standard. Public service 

requires special trust and confidence from the Council, Mayor, and public; if 

public officials violate commonly accepted standards of ethics and integrity, then 

appropriate consequences must be meted out to preserve the public trust.   

 

82

Item 14.



3 
 

b. Jurisdiction of the Council. The Chair of the Planning and Zoning Commission, Mr. 

Mardy Holst, has expressed to me that the Commission lacks the internal expertise to 

discipline commissioners. For this reason, any disciplinary action against members 

falls under the jurisdiction of the City Council. Additionally, per reference (b), 

removal of appointed officials can only be carried out by the appointing authority, 

which in this case is the City Council and Mayor.  

c. Existence of a Public Emergency. Commissioner Saul has issued false statements 

about City operations in response to a declared public health emergency. This is no 

small consideration; passions are already inflamed regarding the city’s deliberations 

of a facemask mandate and the proper role of local government during this pandemic. 

The City’s decisions may have significant consequences for our community’s public 

health and economy. Commissioner Saul’s willful false statements have fomented 

needless additional anxiety, anger, and distrust of local government and its actions. 

While it is unconscionable for a public official to stoke anger and distrust for personal 

and political gain at any time, it is all the more egregious when done in a crisis. 

4. Recommendation and Next Actions.  

a. In accordance with reference (a) I recommend that the City Council vote to consider 

Commissioner Saul’s removal from the Planning and Zoning Commission due to the 

misconduct detailed above. The misconduct is too egregious to merit lesser action. 

 

b. Upon approval of my recommendation, reference (a) requires that Commissioner Saul 

be notified in writing of the Council’s decision (within three days) with the reasons 

for the removal consideration.  She may then (within five days) request a private 

hearing with the Council in executive session to present evidence and arguments prior 

to the Council’s rendering of a final decision.  This final roll-call vote for removal (to 

be made within five days of the executive session) would then be conducted publicly, 

with Commissioner Saul given the opportunity to be heard prior to removal.  

5. While this action is likely to garner publicity and attention (owing to Ms. Saul’s many 

connections and history within our community) the requirement is inescapable that action 

be taken, and in a timely manner.  As I have lost trust and confidence in Commissioner 

Saul’s suitability for service as a public official, I do not desire her continued retention as 

a Planning and Zoning Commissioner. 

6. Please contact me with any questions or concerns regarding this recommendation.  

XC: City Attorney 

        City Clerk 

 

Encl:  (1) Public social media post on “LeaAnn for Cedar Falls” Facebook page, dated August 24, 2020 

###  

83

Item 14.



4 
 

 

 

 

 

ENCLOSURE 1 
84

Item 14.



85

Item 14.



86

Item 14.



87

Item 14.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 

 DATE: August 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT:  Settlement Agreement—JKC Investments, LLC 
 
Attached to this Memorandum please find a proposed settlement agreement with JKC 

Investments, LLC.  This settlement arises out of a dispute related to a temporary 

grading easement necessary for the construction of a portion of Cyber Lane. 

 

This matter went to condemnation which resulted in an award of $30,000.00 in total to 

JKC Investments.  This amount has already been paid. 

 

At the same time there is pending in Black Hawk County District Court a companion 

lawsuit challenging the City’s right to condemn the property in the manner asserted.  

The parties have reached agreement on settlement of the separate lawsuit, and 

foreclosing appeal of the condemnation award, pending Council approval, in the amount 

of an additional $15,000.00 to be paid to JKC Investments. 

 

The proposed settlement would resolve all claims against the City involving JKC 

Investments in connection with the Cyber Lane project.  Staff recommends approval of 

the settlement. 

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  

 

88

Item 15.



89

Item 15.



90

Item 15.



91

Item 15.



92

Item 15.



93

Item 15.



94

Item 16.



95

Item 16.



96

Item 16.



97

Item 16.



98

Item 16.



99

Item 16.



100

Item 16.



101

Item 16.



102

Item 16.



103

Item 16.



104

Item 16.



105

Item 16.



106

Item 17.



107

Item 17.



108

Item 17.



109

Item 17.



110

Item 17.



111

Item 17.



112

Item 17.



113

Item 17.



114

Item 17.



115

Item 17.



116

Item 17.



117

Item 17.



118

Item 17.



119

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: September 3, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Purchase of New Document Management Software 

 
 

Optiview, our current document management software, has been sunset and will no longer have updates 
made to the software.  Its parent company is requiring that we migrate to their newer document 
management product, Filebound.  They proposed a migration plan that included charges for the 
migration.  We decided to look at other options if we were being forced to migrate out of our old system.  
 
We created an RFP and sent it out to vendors and published it on our website on May 13.  We had nine 
different RFP’s returned from eight different vendors.  We held demos for the three vendors that scored 
the highest with our scoring matrix.  
 
Below you will find the 1 year and 5 year purchase costs for the top three vendors:  

 
Vendor 1 year purchase and migration 

5 year purchase and ongoing support and maintenance 

LaserFische/Gordon Flesch $41100  

$84708  

Filebound/Upland Software $60953.60 

$161168 

Therefore/Infomax  $121800  

$176700 

 

We recommend approving the purchase of a subscription to Laserfische software, including an additional 

estimated $20,000 expenditure for migration.  We are still investigating whether additional migration costs 

are needed, I have included the estimated migration costs into the purchase costs listed above to be fair 

in comparison with Filebound which included migration costs.  If any additional service agreement is 

needed for the migration we will present at a future council meeting.  Gordon Flesh has provided a 

service agreement and statement of work.  I’ve included both for your reference.  Both have been 

reviewed by the city attorney, Kevin Rogers.  

 
If you have any questions or concerns regarding this purchase, please feel free to contact me at 268-
5111. 
 

120

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 1 

MANAGED CONTENT LICENSING AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BILLING INFORMATION 

Client City of Cedar Falls, Iowa Date 08-12-2020 

Project Name Laserfiche Document Management System 

Billing Contact Julie Sorensen 

Billing Address 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa   50613 

Billing Email Julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com Phone (319) 273-8600 

Laserfiche Subscription Software Licensing¹ Qty. One-Time Fees Annual Fees² 

• Full Users - $540/year each 10  $5,400 

• Participant Users - $68/year each 60  $4,080 

GFC Professional Services One-Time Fees Annual Fees 
As detailed in accompanying Statement of Work 
¹ Not to exceed cost; client will be billed actual hours used if less. 

$13,100¹  

Block of 50 hours – can be used for all GFC services; hours expire 12 months from 
date of final project billing. 

$8,000  

GFC Support Services One-Time Fees Annual Fees 

GFC Silver Support Plan 
• Unlimited Help Desk Support- 8:30 – 5:30 CST regular business days. 
• Software upgrades including professional services. 
• Access to online Laserfiche Training and Learning resources 

 $1,422 

Total Project Costs $21,100 $10,902 

¹ Software licenses are provided under the terms and conditions of the Laserfiche End User License Agreement provided as Attachment 1 to 

this document. 

²Software license prices are valid for thirty days. 

Agreement and Billing Terms 

• The term of agreement is 12 months, beginning on date the software licenses are ordered.  During the term of 

the agreement current Laserfiche license fees are valid for term of the agreement, including any additions. 

• Initial year annual fees are billed as part of the project; subsequent year annual fees are billed in advance on 

the annual license renewal date. 

• Agreement renews automatically unless client requests cancellation in writing ahead of service renewal date. 

• GFC will invoice client for 50% of total project costs above, which is the sum of one-time fees and one year of 

annual fees, upon receipt of signed agreement; the remaining project costs, including any Change Orders that 

may be agreed to, will be invoiced upon delivery of Training. 

 

GFC SUPPORT PLAN SERVICES 

The GFC support plan services our outlined in Attachment 2 to this document. 

 

ACCEPTANCE OF SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The signatures below indicate acceptance of terms of this agreement by the client. 

 

 

 

      

Client Authorized Signature  Client Authorized Printed Name  Date 

 

  

121

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 2 

ATTACHMENT 1 
LASERFICHE END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT 

 
This Laserfiche End User License Agreement (“EULA”) is between you and Compulink Management Center, Inc. dba 
Laserfiche or its affiliates (“Laserfiche,” “Licensor,” “we”, “our,” and “us”) and governs your use of the accompanying 
Laserfiche software, which includes updates or upgrades, if any, provided by us for such software (collectively, “Laserfiche 
Software” or “Software”), and associated Documentation (as defined below) (the Software and Documentation together, 
the “Laserfiche Product”). “You” and “your” and “Licensee” means the individual, company or other legal entity licensing 
the Laserfiche Product under this EULA.  
1. Acceptance of Terms.  THIS IS A LEGAL AGREEMENT THAT APPLIES TO ALL LASERFICHE PRODUCTS LICENSED ON AN 

ON-PREMISES BASIS.  THIS AGREEMENT ALSO CONTAINS AN AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE AND A CLASS ACTION 
WAIVER IN SECTION 18.8. BY DOWNLOADING, INSTALLING, COPYING, ACCESSING OR UTILIZING THE LASERFICHE 
SOFTWARE (“USE”), YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT YOU HAVE READ, UNDERSTOOD, AND AGREE TO BE BOUND BY THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS EULA. IF YOU ARE ACCEPTING THIS EULA ON BEHALF OF ANOTHER PERSON OR 
COMPANY OR OTHER LEGAL ENTITY, YOU REPRESENT AND WARRANT THAT YOU HAVE FULL AUTHORITY TO BIND 
THAT PERSON, COMPANY OR LEGAL ENTITY TO THIS EULA. 
IF YOU DO NOT AGREE TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS EULA OR DO NOT HAVE THE NECESSARY 
AUTHORITY, DO NOT USE THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT.  PROMPTLY RETURN THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT TO THE PARTY 
FROM WHOM IT WAS OBTAINED.  IF THE SOFTWARE OR ANY DOCUMENTATION WAS DOWNLOADED, DESTROY ALL 
COPIES OF THE SOFTWARE AND DOCUMENTATION. 

2. License  
2.1 Grant of License. For good and valuable consideration, Licensor grants you a limited, non-exclusive, non-

transferable license to Use such Software, solely in executable code, in accordance with the Documentation, and 
Use a reasonable number of copies of the Documentation, in each case subject to the terms and conditions of this 
EULA and the License Requisition (the “License”). The Laserfiche Product is owned by Laserfiche and is copyrighted 
and licensed, NOT SOLD. 

• “License Requisition” means our invoice, our written acceptance of an Order, or other written acceptance 
by us of an agreement, by which you acquire the License, which invoice, Order, or agreement, lists the 
specific Software product and component licenses that you purchase. The License Requisition may limit the 
scope of the License being granted or grant additional rights. For the avoidance of doubt, the reference 
hereinabove to, “Order, or other written acceptance by us of an agreement, by which you acquire the 
License, which invoice, Order, or agreement, lists the specific Software product and component licenses that 
you purchase”, does not include, and our acceptance of any Order or any other agreement by which you 
acquire the License does not constitute our acceptance of, any agreement between you and Laserfiche’s 
authorized reseller or distributor. 
  

• “Documentation” means getting started guides, user guides, product help, product sheets, quick reference 
guides, articles, white papers, and other technical and operations manuals and specifications published by 
Laserfiche for the Software. 
  

• “Order” means an order, purchase order, or similar document that is submitted to us by you or a Laserfiche 
authorized reseller or distributor on your behalf, which specifies the particular Software products and 
components that you intend to license, and which shall not bind us unless (a) such document incorporates 
the terms and conditions of this EULA and (b) is accepted by us. Acceptance of any Order by us for licensing 
Software is made only on the express condition that the terms and conditions of this EULA shall govern.  Our 
failure to object to provisions contained in any Order or communication from you will not be deemed a 
waiver of any provision herein.  Any additional or different terms proposed by you in any Order or 
communication shall be deemed material, are objected to, and are hereby rejected unless specifically 
accepted in a signed writing by an authorized representative of Laserfiche. For the avoidance of doubt, your 
agreement, if any, with Laserfiche’s authorized reseller or distributor, shall not constitute an Order. 

122

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 3 

 

2.2 License Scope.  Laserfiche Software may include, without limitation: (a) "Server Software" that provides document 
management services to other programs; (b) "Client Software" that allows a computer or workstation to access or 
utilize the services functionality provided by the Server Software; (c) "Stand-alone Software" that operates on a 
single computer; (d) "Demonstration Software" that is provided only for demonstration, testing and feedback 
purposes; (e) "Distributed Computing Cluster Software" that allows distribution of processing work for certain 
Laserfiche application tasks onto other machines; and/or (f) "Plug-in Software Modules" that can be added to the 
previously mentioned types of software.  Specific additional terms that accompany a software development kit or 
the Software designated for "application service provider" purposes will also apply to you.  Your Use of the 
Laserfiche Product shall be subject to the Usage Limitations described in Section 6. In addition, you agree to the 
restrictions set forth in Section 5 below. 

3. Evaluation License.  If the Laserfiche Software is furnished to you for evaluation purposes or other limited, temporary 
use as authorized by us (“Evaluation Product”), your Use of the Evaluation Product is only permitted: (a) for the period 
limited by the license key or otherwise stated by us in writing (“Evaluation Period”), and (b) by your employees, 
contractors, and consultants for no purposes other than demonstration of the capabilities of the Software to 
prospective licensees or evaluation and testing of the Software for suitability. No Evaluation Product may be used in a 
production environment.  An Evaluation Product is licensed “AS-IS” without support or warranty (including any 
warranty provided in Section 12.1) of any kind, expressed or implied.  Laserfiche does not assume any liability arising 
from any use of the Evaluation Product.  You may not publish any results of benchmark tests run on the Evaluation 
Product without first obtaining written approval from us.  Your receipt of the Evaluation Product does not constitute a 
license to use (other than as permitted in this Section), sell, distribute, or commercialize the Evaluation Product.  No 
compensation will be paid to you for any use of the Evaluation Product. You authorize Laserfiche and its affiliates and 
sublicensees to use, in any manner (including in any products or services) and without any duty of accounting or other 
obligation whatsoever, any feedback or ideas you provide to us in connection with your use of the Evaluation Product.  
In addition to the restrictions set forth in Section 5, you shall not attempt to circumvent, dismantle or otherwise 
interfere with any time-control disabling functionality in the Evaluation Product that causes the Evaluation Product to 
cease functioning upon the expiration of the Evaluation Period.  With respect to Evaluation Products, except to the 
extent this Section modifies this EULA, all other provisions stand and remain unaltered.  This Section shall apply only 
with respect to Evaluation Products.   

4. Ownership.  We retain all rights to ownership of all intellectual property rights in and to the Software and 
Documentation, including copies, improvements, enhancements, derivative works and modifications. No other rights 
with respect to the Laserfiche Product or any related intellectual property rights are granted except as explicitly stated 
in this EULA and the applicable License Requisition. No implied licenses are granted by us. 

5. License Restrictions.  Unless expressly authorized by Laserfiche in writing, you will not and you will not allow any third 
party to: (a) unbundle, transfer, sublicense, or assign your rights under this License to any other person or entity; (b) 
modify, adapt or create derivative works of the Software or Documentation; (c) reverse engineer, decompile, decrypt, 
disassemble or otherwise attempt to derive the source code for the Software, except as provided in Section 16 below; 
(d) make the functionality of the Software available to third parties, whether as an application service provider, or on a 
rental, service bureau, timeshare, cloud service, hosted service, or other similar basis unless expressly authorized by 
Laserfiche in writing, such as for read-only access by public users who utilize an authorized read-only Public Portal 
connection; (e) Multiplex (as defined herein below) the Software; (f) remove, modify, or conceal any product 
identification, copyright, proprietary, intellectual property notices or other marks on or within the Software or 
Documentation; (g) directly or indirectly attempt to challenge the validity of the copyrights, trademarks, and trade 
secrets in the Software claimed by Laserfiche or its suppliers; or (h) conduct any benchmark tests of the Software or 
disclose to a third party the results of any benchmark test of the Software. Neither Laserfiche nor any of its suppliers 
are obligated to provide any services (including any updates or upgrades to the Laserfiche Product) under this 
Agreement. To “Multiplex” the Software occurs when you utilize hardware, software, an automated process, or other 
technical means: (1) to pool connections, reroute information, or reduce the number of devices or users that directly 
access or use the Software; or (2) to permit access to more user connections than you have purchased; or (3) to 

123

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 4 

automatically, routinely, or systematically reallocate named user connections for the purpose of either reducing the 
number of named user connections you require, or avoiding the purchase of additional named user connections.   

6. Usage Limitations.  Your Use of the Software is subject to the usage limitations described at 
https://www.laserfiche.com/eula/usage6.6.2018 and set forth in the License Requisition (each, a “Usage Limitation”).  

7. Subscription Software 
7.1 Subscription License. A subscription license to on-premises Laserfiche Software allows you to Use such Software on 

a subscription basis (a “Subscription”, and such license, a “Subscription License”). If you purchase a Subscription 
License, subject to your compliance with the terms and conditions of this EULA, you may Use the Software covered 
by the Subscription (the “Subscription Software”) for the term of the Subscription set forth in your License 
Requisition until the Subscription expires or is otherwise terminated. After the Subscription expires or is 
terminated, the Subscription Software will stop functioning entirely, and your rights to Use the Subscription 
Software will terminate. 

7.2 Renewal of Subscription Term. Unless otherwise terminated according to the terms of this EULA, the Subscription 
will automatically renew for the term set forth in your invoice, unless (i) you fail to pay the renewal Subscription 
fee as invoiced to you by us or (ii) you give Laserfiche written notice of your intention not to renew the 
Subscription at least 45 days before the end of the then-current Subscription term. The renewal Subscription fee is 
due before the start of the renewal term.  If you do not notify us at least 45 days before the end of the then-
current Subscription term that you do not intend to renew the Subscription, you will owe Laserfiche the renewal 
Subscription fee. 

7.3 Modification of Fees upon Renewal. We may modify the Subscription fee by notifying you at least 90 days before 
the end of the then-current Subscription term. The Subscription fee increase will take effect upon the start of the 
next Subscription term. 

7.4 Consequences of Non-Payment. If you fail to make full payment of the Subscription fee and any outstanding 
balance remains unpaid 30 days after the due date, the Subscription Software will automatically stop functioning 
entirely. You must make full payment of the Subscription fee before the Subscription Software will resume 
functioning. 

7.5 Updates and Support. The Subscription includes Software updates, access to online support resources, and Basic or 
Premium support as described in the Laserfiche Software Assurance Plan (“LSAP”) during the term of the 
Subscription.  

8. Third Party Open Source Software.  Certain items of independent, third-party code may be included in the Laserfiche 
Software that are subject to open source licenses (“Open Source Software”).  Such Open Source Software is licensed 
under the terms of the license that accompanies such Open Source Software.  Nothing in this EULA limits your rights 
under, or grants you rights that supersede, the terms and conditions of any applicable end user license for such Open 
Source Software. 

9. Confidentiality and Other Restrictions   
9.1 Confidentiality Restrictions.  “Laserfiche Confidential Information” means: (a) the Laserfiche Software and 

Documentation; (b) Laserfiche’s source code, application programming interfaces, know-how, ideas, plans, 
designs, specifications, coding, programming, processes, production techniques, technology, methodology and 
trade secrets; (c) nonpublic information relating to Laserfiche’s business, customers, business plans, promotional 
and marketing activities, finances and other business affairs; (d) third-party information that we are obligated to 
keep confidential by agreement or by law; (e) the nature, content and existence of any agreements, discussions or 
negotiations between you and us, or our software resellers; (f) any information that is designated by Laserfiche as 
“confidential” or “proprietary” or with a similar legend; and (g) any other information that given the nature of the 
information or circumstances surrounding its disclosure by us to you, reasonably should be understood to be 
confidential. Laserfiche Confidential Information does not include any information that: (i) is or becomes publicly 
available without either a breach of this EULA or a breach of an obligation of confidentiality by someone else; (ii) 
can be shown by documentation to have been known by you when it received it from us; (iii) is received from a 
third party that lawfully acquired and disclosed it without any obligation of confidentiality; or (iv) can be shown by 
documentation to have been independently developed by you without reference to the Laserfiche Confidential 
Information. 
 

124

Item 18.

https://www.laserfiche.com/eula/usage6.6.2018


 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 5 

9.2 Additional Restrictions. You agree that, during the term of this EULA and after any termination or expiration of this 
EULA, you will not directly or indirectly, alone or in conjunction with any other person or company: (a) attempt to 
write or develop software in an effort to discover, copy or recreate the source code or any trade secrets contained 
or embodied in the source code of the Software; or (b) utilize the Software, Documentation, or Laserfiche 
Confidential Information, either directly or indirectly, to sell, market, develop or distribute any software product 
that competes with the Software; or (c) utilize the Software, Documentation, or Laserfiche Confidential 
Information, directly or indirectly, to assist, advise or consult with any other person or company in selling, 
marketing, developing or distributing any software product that competes with the Software; or (d) publish the 
Software for others to copy or use; or (e) utilize the Software, Documentation, or Laserfiche Confidential 
Information, directly or indirectly, to convert, or to assist, advise or consult with any other person or company to 
convert, any end user of the Software to a software product that competes with the Software; or (f) seek to 
discover or use our trade secrets or Laserfiche Confidential Information by reverse engineering, decompiling, 
disassembling, copying or any other technique, except as provided in Section 16 below.  

10. Term and Termination.  This EULA will remain effective until the expiration of the applicable license or Subscription 
term as set forth in your License Requisition, unless terminated earlier in accordance with this EULA.  You may 
terminate the EULA at any time by returning or destroying all versions and copies of the Software and the 
Documentation in your possession or control.  This EULA will immediately terminate if you breach any of its terms or 
conditions, or if you fail to pay any portion of the applicable license or Subscription fees and you fail to cure that 
payment breach within 30 days of receipt of a written notice from us.  Upon termination of this EULA, you must 
immediately cease all use of the Software and the Documentation and return to Laserfiche or destroy all versions and 
copies of the Software and the Documentation in your possession or control. You must remove and uninstall all 
Software programs and Documentation from all hard drives and other devices on which the Software or the 
Documentation may be found. The termination or expiration of this EULA will not terminate your obligations under this 
EULA, nor will it (i) release you from the obligation to pay any monies that you may owe Laserfiche; (ii) operate to 
discharge any liability that you incur before such termination or expiration; or (iii) waive any obligation which is 
intended to survive such termination or expiration.  The rights and obligations of a party which by their nature must 
survive termination or expiration of this Agreement in order to achieve its fundamental purposes shall survive any 
termination or expiration of this EULA including, without limitation, the following Sections: 1 (Acceptance of Terms), 4 
(Ownership), 5 (License Restrictions), 8 (Third Party Software), 9 (Confidentiality and Other Restrictions), 10 (Term and 
Termination), 11 (Indemnification), 12.2 (Exclusions), 12.3 (Disclaimer), 13 (Limitation of Liability), 14 (Application of 
Limitations and Disclaimers to Consumers), 15 (Basis of Bargain), 17 (Audit Rights), and 18 (Miscellaneous). 

11. Indemnification.  YOU HAVE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE RESPONSIBILTY FOR BACKING-UP YOUR DATA OR CONTENT OR 
THIRD-PARTY DATA OR CONTENT IN YOUR HARD DRIVE, SYSTEM, STORAGE OR DEVICE (collectively, “Your Data”) 
WHETHER OR NOT THE SOFTWARE INTERACTS WITH YOUR DATA.  LASERFICHE WILL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY 
LOSS OF DATA OR CONTENT.  You hereby agree to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Laserfiche, its affiliates and 
authorized resellers, and each of Laserfiche’s, its affiliates’ and authorized resellers’ employees, officers, directors, 
shareholders, and agents (each, an “Indemnified Party”), from and against all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, fines, 
penalties, costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees) arising from or relating to: (i) Your Data, including any loss of 
Your Data for any reason whatsoever, (ii) your actions, misuse of the Software, non-compliance with this EULA, or 
failure to operate the Software in accordance with this EULA; (iii) your use of the Software including, without limitation, 
in violation of any applicable laws.   

12. Limited Warranty; Exclusions; Disclaimer   
12.1 Limited Warranty. THE SOFTWARE IS WARRANTED SOLELY TO YOU, THE ORIGINAL LICENSEE, THAT, FOR A 

PERIOD OF 3 MONTHS FROM THE DATE THE SOFTWARE IS MADE AVAILABLE TO YOU (“Warranty Period”), IT 
SHALL SUBSTANTIALLY CONFORM TO ITS DOCUMENTATION WHEN USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS EULA.  At 
its own expense and as its sole obligation and your exclusive remedy for any breach of this warranty, Laserfiche 
will: (a) at Laserfiche’s option, correct any reproducible errors in such nonconforming Software so that it 
conforms to the foregoing warranty or replace such nonconforming Software with Software that conforms to 
the foregoing warranty; or (b) if the options in clause (a) hereof are not commercially reasonable, as determined 
in Laserfiche's sole discretion, Laserfiche will refund to you the fees paid to Laserfiche for such non-conforming 
Software, in which case your right to use such Software will terminate.  Any error correction provided to you will 

125

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 6 

not extend the original Warranty Period. 
  12.2 Exclusions.  Notwithstanding anything in this EULA, Laserfiche will have no responsibility or liability of any kind, 

whether for breach of warranty or otherwise arising or resulting from: (a) combination of the Software with 
products, equipment, software, or data not supplied by Laserfiche; (b) any use based on unauthorized 
distribution or sale of the Laserfiche Product; (c) any use of the Laserfiche Product other than in accordance with 
this EULA; (d) any modification of the Laserfiche Product by anyone other than Laserfiche or contractors 
authorized in writing by Laserfiche; (e) any Laserfiche Product rendered defective or non-conforming, in whole 
or in part, due to: (i) abnormal physical or electrical stress, abnormal environmental conditions, neglect, misuse, 
accident, fire or other hazard, (ii) improper testing, handling, storage, transportation, operation, 
interconnection, or installation by anyone other than Laserfiche or contractors authorized in writing by 
Laserfiche, (iii) failure to continually provide a suitable installation or operation environment, or (iv) any other 
cause beyond the range of normal use of such Laserfiche Product; or (v) any Evaluation Product. 

12.3 Disclaimer. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 12.1, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, 
LASERFICHE LICENSES THE SOFTWARE TO YOU "AS IS" AND WITH ALL FAULTS AND DEFECTS AND EXPRESSLY 
DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS AND IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED 
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, SATISFACTORY PURPOSE, TITLE, 
NONINFRINGEMENT, INTEGRATION, ACCURACY, AND COMPLETENESS. LASERFICHE DOES NOT WARRANT OR 
GUARANTEE THAT (A) THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS, ACHIEVE ANY INTENDED 
RESULTS, OR BE COMPATIBLE OR (B) THAT THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT WILL OPERATE FAIL SAFE, 
UNINTERRUPTED OR FREE FROM ERRORS OR DEFECTS OR THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL PROTECT AGAINST ALL 
POSSIBLE THREATS.   

13. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
13.1 EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN TYPES OF DAMAGES.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES WILL LASERFICHE OR ITS AFFILIATES, RESELLERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AGENTS, 
EMPLOYEES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, CONSULTANTS, OR SUPPLIERS (COLLECTIVELY, "REPRESENTATIVES") BE 
LIABLE TO YOU OR ANYONE ELSE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES OR FOR LOST PROFITS, LOSSES FROM BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF BUSINESS REVENUES, 
GOODWILL,  INFORMATION OR DATA, COSTS OF RECREATING LOST OR CORRUPTED INFORMATION OR DATA, OR 
COSTS OF SUBSTITUTE SOFTWARE, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER LASERFICHE OR ITS 
REPRESENTATIVES HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR LOSSES, AND WHETHER 
BASED ON A BREACH OF CONTRACT OR WARRANTY, OR NEGLIGENCE, MISREPRESENTATION OR OTHER TORT, 
OR ON ANY OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS EULA, THE LASERFICHE 
PRODUCT, ANY SERVICES, DELIVERY OF SUPPORT, OR THE PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF THE 
LASERFICHE PRODUCT OR ANY SERVICES. 

13.2 LIMITATIONS ON DAMAGES.  TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, ANY AND ALL 
DAMAGES SUFFERED BY YOU, ANY USER, AND ANYONE ELSE, FOR WHICH LASERFICHE OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES 
ARE LIABLE, WHETHER ARISING FROM OR RELATING TO THIS EULA, THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT, ANY SERVICES, 
OR THE PERFORMANCE OR NON-PERFORMANCE OF THE LASERFICHE PRODUCT OR ANY SERVICES, WHETHER 
BASED ON A BREACH OF CONTRACT OR WARRANTY, OR NEGLIGENCE, MISREPRESENTATION OR OTHER TORT, 
OR ON ANY OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, WILL BE STRICTLY LIMITED TO THE DOLLAR AMOUNT THAT 
YOU ACTUALLY PAID FOR THE DEFECTIVE SOFTWARE COMPONENT WITHIN THE 12 MONTH PERIOD 
IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE DATE THAT LASERFICHE RECEIVES NOTICE OF AN EXISTING OR POTENTIAL CLAIM 
OR SUIT AGAINST IT. NO CLAIM OR SUIT MAY BE BROUGHT AGAINST LASERFICHE OR ITS REPRESENTATIVES 
BASED ON A BREACH OF CONTRACT, BREACH OF WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, MISREPRESENTATION OR OTHER 
TORT, OR ON ANY OTHER LEGAL OR EQUITABLE THEORY, MORE THAN 1 YEAR AFTER YOU FIRST DISCOVERED OR 
SHOULD HAVE DISCOVERED ANY OF THE FACTS THAT GAVE RISE TO THE CLAIM OR SUIT. THIS LIMITATION OF 
LIABILITY IS CUMULATIVE AND NOT PER INCIDENT. THIS LIMITATION APPLIES EVEN IF THE DAMAGES AVAILABLE 
TO YOU OR ANY OTHER CLAIMANT DO NOT FULLY COMPENSATE THEM FOR ANY OR ALL OF THEIR LOSSES OR 
LASERFICHE WAS ADVISED, KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN, ABOUT THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES OR 
LOSSES.   

 

126

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 7 

14. Application of Limitations and Disclaimers to Consumers.  Certain states and/or jurisdictions do not allow the 
exclusion of implied warranties or limitation of liability for incidental or consequential damages with respect to 
consumers (i.e., a person acquiring goods otherwise than in the course of a business), so the exclusions set forth in 
Sections 12.3 and 13 above may not apply to you if you are a consumer. The limitations or exclusions of warranties and 
liability contained in this EULA do not affect or prejudice the statutory rights of a consumer.  If you are a consumer, the 
limitations or exclusions of warranties and remedies contained in this Agreement shall apply to you only to the extent 
such limitations or exclusions and remedies are permitted under the laws of the jurisdiction where you are located. 

15. Basis of Bargain.  The warranty disclaimer in Section 12.3 and limitation of liability set forth in Section 13 are 
fundamental elements of the basis of the agreement between Laserfiche and you.  Laserfiche would not be able to 
provide the Laserfiche Product on an economic basis without such limitations.  The warranty disclaimer and limitation 
of liability inure to the benefit of Laserfiche’s Representatives. 

16. Interoperability.  To the extent required by applicable law, Laserfiche shall provide you with the interface information 
needed to achieve interoperability between the Software and another independently created program.  Laserfiche will 
provide this interface information at your written requested after you pay Laserfiche’s licensing fees. You will keep this 
information in strict confidence and strictly follow any applicable terms and conditions upon which Laserfiche makes 
such information available.   

17. Audit Rights.  During the term of this EULA and for 1 year thereafter, you agree that we or our designated agent may 
inspect and audit the use of the Laserfiche Product licensed by you, including inspecting and auditing your and your 
affiliates’, and each of your and your affiliates’ contractors’, facilities, systems, and records, to verify compliance with 
this EULA. Any such inspection and audit will take place only during your and your affiliates’ normal business hours and 
upon no less than 10 days prior written notice to you. Laserfiche will give you written notice of any non-compliance, 
including any underpayment of fees, and you will have 15 days from the date of such notice to make payment to 
Laserfiche for such underpayment. If the shortfall in the amount payable by you exceeds 5% of the total amount that 
would otherwise be payable by you, you will also pay us for the cost of such inspection and audit.  You will promptly 
pay us for any amounts shown by such audit to be due and owing to us plus interest at 1.5% per month, or the 
maximum amount permitted by applicable law, whichever is lower, from the due date until paid. You agree to take 
reasonable steps to maintain complete and accurate records of the use of the Laserfiche Product sufficient to verify 
compliance with this EULA. 

18. Miscellaneous 
18.1 Waiver; Severability.  The failure of either party to exercise or enforce any right or provision of this Agreement 

will not constitute a waiver of such right or provision.  All waivers by Laserfiche must be in writing to be 
effective. If any provision of this EULA is for any reason held unenforceable or invalid, then this EULA will be 
construed as if such provision were not contained in this EULA.  No course of performance, course of dealing, or 
usage of trade will override the written terms of this EULA. 

18.2 Entire Agreement and Order of Precedence.  This EULA is the entire agreement between you and us regarding 
your use of the Laserfiche Product and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, proposals or 
representations, written or oral, concerning its subject matter.  In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 
among the following documents, the order of precedence will be: (1) the License Requisition and (2) this EULA.  
Any agreement between you and Laserfiche’s authorized reseller or distributor: (a) does not modify the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement, the License Requisition, or any document comprising the License Requisition, 
and (b) does not create obligations for, or otherwise bind, Laserfiche.   

18.3 Modifications to the EULA.  If you install a new version of the Software, or any update, modification, or upgrade 
of the Software, the EULA applicable to the new updated, modified or upgraded version of the Software will 
modify this EULA upon such installation, if or to the extent that the new EULA is different than this EULA. A 
revised version of the EULA will be available at www.laserfiche.com/eula/home. By continuing to use the 
Software after the effective date of any modifications to this EULA, you agree to be bound by the modified 
terms. 

18.4 Limitation on Actions.  Any suit, claim, action or proceeding based on or related to this EULA, its terms, 
provisions or warranties, or arising out of its performance or breach, whether in contract or tort, must be 
instituted by you against us within 1 year after the occurrence of any 1 or more of the acts, omissions, facts, 
conduct, events, claims or allegations upon which the action, proceeding or claim is based. You waive the benefit 

127

Item 18.

http://www.laserfiche.com/eula/home


 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 8 

of any statute of limitations which specifies a period longer than 1 year for filing an action or proceeding. 
18.5 U.S. Government End Users.  Laserfiche Software is commercial computer software, as such term is defined in 48 

C.F.R. §2.101. Accordingly, if you are part of the US Government or are a contractor for the U.S. Government, 
you shall receive only those rights with respect to the Software and Documentation as are granted to all other 
end users under license, in accordance with (a) 48 C.F.R. §227.7201 through 48 C.F.R. §227.7204, with respect to 
the Department of Defense and their contractors, or (b) 48 C.F.R. §12.212, with respect to all other U.S. 
Government licensees and their contractors. 

18.6 Export Restrictions.  You acknowledge that Laserfiche Software and Documentation may be subject to applicable 
U.S. and international import and export restrictions, including restrictions imposed by the U.S. Export 
Administration Regulations as well as end-user, end-use and destination restrictions issued by the U.S. 
government and the governments of other nations.  You agree to comply with all applicable national and 
international laws that apply to the transport of the Software across national borders or to its use in any such 
jurisdiction. 

18.7 Notices.  Should you have any questions concerning this EULA, or if you desire to contact Laserfiche for any 
reason, please write to either: Laserfiche, 3545 Long Beach Blvd., Long Beach, CA 90807, U.S.A. or 
notices@laserfiche.com. 

18.8 Governing Law, Arbitration, Jurisdiction and Venue.  If you acquired Laserfiche Software in a country or territory 
listed below, this table identifies your Laserfiche “Licensor,” the law that governs the EULA and the specific 
arbitration venue that have exclusive jurisdiction over any claim arising under this EULA.   Except as otherwise 
specified below, you and your Licensor agree to arbitrate any and all disputes in any way related to this EULA by 
final and binding arbitration as set forth below.  You further waive the right to bring a class action against 
Laserfiche, or to serve as a representative of a class in a class action against Laserfiche, whether in arbitration or 
in court. This EULA will not be governed by the following, the application of which is hereby expressly excluded: 
(x) the conflict of law rules of any jurisdiction, (y) the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the 
International Sale of Goods, and (z) the Uniform Computer Information Transactions Act, as enacted in any 
jurisdiction.  All arbitration proceedings will be held and a transcribed record prepared in English.  The number 
of arbitrators shall be 1.  The seat, or legal place, of arbitration shall be as indicated below. The award rendered 
by the arbitrator shall include costs of arbitration, reasonable attorney’s fees and reasonable costs for expert 
and other witnesses, and judgment on such award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing nothing in this Addendum will be deemed to prevent Laserfiche/Licensor from 
seeking injunctive relief (or any other provisional remedy) from any court of competent jurisdiction as necessary 
to protect its rights pursuant to this EULA.  The prevailing party in any suit will recover its reasonable attorney's 
fees and costs, including expert costs, from the other party. 
Country or Territory: United States and its territories, Latin America (except Mexico), or the Caribbean 
Licensor: Compulink Management Center, Inc., 3545 Long Beach Blvd., Long Beach, CA 90807 USA 
Governing Law: State of California, United States of America 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard at JAMS offices in Los Angeles County, California in accordance with 
JAMS' Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures in effect at the time of the arbitration. 
Country or Territory: Canada 
Licensor: Laserfiche Strategic Services Canada Corporation, 306, 1 Valleybrook Drive, North York, Toronto, 
Ontario, M3B2S7 CANADA 
Governing Law: State of California, United States of America 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard at JAMS offices in Los Angeles County, California in accordance with 
JAMS' Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures in effect at the time of the arbitration. 
Country or Territory: Mexico 
Licensor: Laserfiche Solutions Mexico, S. de R.L. De C.V., Av. Patria 2085, Piso Mezzanine, Colonia Puerta de 
Hierro, Zapopan, Jalisco, 45116 MEXICO 
Governing Law: State of California, United States of America 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard at JAMS offices in Los Angeles County, California in accordance with 
JAMS' Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures in effect at the time of the arbitration. 
 

128

Item 18.

mailto:notices@laserfiche.com


 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 9 

Country or Territory: Asia and Australia 
Licensor: Laserfiche International Limited, 2307, Westlands Centre, 20 Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, HONG 
KONG 
Governing Law: Hong Kong 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard at the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre in accordance with 
its Domestic Arbitration Rules in effect at the time of the arbitration. 
Country or Territory: United Kingdom, European Union, and Eastern Europe 
Licensor: Laserfiche UK Services Ltd, Unit 15B, Building 6, Croxley Green Business Park, Hatters Lane, Watford 
WD18 8YH UNITED KINGDOM 
Governing Law: Laws of England and Wales 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard in London, United Kingdom at the London International Arbitration 
Centre in accordance with its rules in effect at the time of the arbitration. 
Country or Territory: All other countries or territories 
Licensor: Compulink Management Center, Inc., 3545 Long Beach Blvd., Long Beach, CA 90807 USA 
Governing Law: State of California, United States of America 
Arbitration: The arbitration will be heard at JAMS offices in Los Angeles County, California in accordance with 
JAMS' Streamlined Arbitration Rules and Procedures in effect at the time of the arbitration. 

18.9 Legal Effect.  This EULA describes certain legal rights. You may have other rights under the laws of your state or 
country. This EULA does not change your rights under the laws of your state or country if the laws of your state 
or country do not permit it to do so. 

18.10 Assignment.  Neither this EULA, nor the rights or obligations arising under this EULA, are assignable by you, and 
any such attempted assignment or transfer shall be void and without effect.  We may assign or transfer this 
Agreement without your consent. 

18.11 Construction.  The headings of Sections of this EULA are for convenience and are not to be used in interpreting 
this EULA. As used in this EULA, the word “including” means “including but not limited to.” You agree that this 
EULA will not be construed against Laserfiche by virtue of having drafted them. The official text of this EULA (and 
any License Requisition, Addendum, or notice submitted hereunder) will be in English. The parties acknowledge 
that they require that this Agreement be drawn up in the English language only. Les parties reconnaissent 
qu’elles ont exigé que la présente convention soit rédigée en language anglaise seulement.   In the event of any 
dispute concerning the construction or meaning of this Agreement, reference will be made only to this 
Agreement as written in English and not to any translation into another language.   

 
* * * * * 

 
October 2018. 
  

129

Item 18.



 
 

 
   COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 

Project Scope Statement Form - 031720 CONFIDENTIAL P a g e  | 10 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

130

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 1 

  

 

 

 

 

 

STATEMENT OF WORK 
Prepared for: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

Laserfiche Implementation for City Records 

August 11, 2020 

 

 

  

COMMITTED TO HELPING BUSINESS RUN SMOOTHLY 
G O R D O N  F L E S C H  C O M P A N Y ,  I N C 

131

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 2 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

PROJECT SCOPE 

1. Design Phase 

a. Conduct requirements gathering process 

b. Create final Statement of Work (SOW). 

2. Installation and Configuration 

a. Install/Configure Laserfiche 10.4.2 on server/s provided by client. 

b. Configure up to five (5) document filing business processes: 

c. Configure up to ten (10) full user accounts and sixty (60) participant user accounts. 

d. Configure repository of up to 250 folders/sub-folders. 

3. Training and User Acceptance Testing 

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

• All items listed in the final Statement of Work Project Scope section have been completed 

PROJECT EXCLUSIONS 

• This project does not include the correction of preexisting conditions whether or not discovered during the Design 

Phase or prior to project start.  This includes, but is not limited to, computer/machine lockups, error messages, 

intermittent hardware or software failures, and/or poor performance. 

• Installation of Laserfiche Windows Client or Laserfiche Connector for end users 

• Access to Laserfiche software beyond that specified in accompanying License and Services agreement. 

• Import of legacy images and associated data from current document management system. 

• Anything not specifically detailed in this SOW 

PROJECT CONSTRAINTS 

• No project constraints identified at this time 

PROJECT REQUIREMENTS OF CLIENT 

• Review the System Requirements (Appendix B), and consult with GFC on the buildout of server/s 

• Confirm all users that will have access to Laserfiche 

• Finalize group security to be applied at the folder (record type) and subfolder (record subtype) levels 

• Administration and Backup of the Laserfiche system 

• Ensure Windows licenses are obtained by and licensed to Client to cover all servers recommended in this SOW. 

PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

• GFC personnel will have remote access (with prior approval) to necessary resources for installation during normal 

business hours and will be notified in advance by Customer of any high security and/or hazardous areas. Access 

includes, but is not limited to, servers, domains, and workstations necessary for this project installation.  

• Customer has performed complete backups on all systems prior to beginning work. GFC strongly recommends that 

all computer workstation and server data is backed up prior to GFC coming onsite to ensure Customer data integrity 

is not compromised during site visits or during installation of hardware, software, or updates to software.   

• All of Customer’s computer workstations and software are up-to-date and in good working condition. If any changes 

are made to a computer workstation or server after GFC makes the necessary adjustments, it is the Customer’s 

132

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 3 

responsibility to make those adjustments again. These adjustments can be provided by GFC; however, if GFC 

provides such adjustments, those services will be billed to the Customer at GFC’s then current hourly service rate 

(currently $ 225.00/hour).  

• The Customer’s designated resources (as hereinafter defined) must be available to the GFC Business Analyst(s), 

Project Engineer(s) and/or its designated subcontractor(s) during the phases of the installation and training specified 

herein.  

• Software installations often require(s) rebooting of Customer’s servers. The Customer is prepared for these necessary 

reboots. If the reboots substantially interfere with Customer’s business, the rebooting may be scheduled after 

business hours.   

• The Customer’s Project Coordinator (someone who has the authority to make decisions related to changes in the 

installation and training) must be available to GFC and/or its designated subcontractor(s) during all phases of the 

installation and training specified herein. GFC will obtain authorization to use subcontractors prior to utilization. 

Such authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.   

• In the event work on the project is not be completed in accordance with the proposed schedule due to unavailability 

of the Customer’s resources or due to an inability to perform required work (including but not limited to system 

reboots), additional labor costs may, at GFC’s option, be billed to the customer at its current hourly onsite rate. The 

service rate on the date hereof is $225.00 per hour. If the GFC Business Analysts, Project Engineer(s) and/or its 

designated subcontractor(s) will not be available for installation or training at the scheduled time, every reasonable 

effort will be made to provide the Customer with at least 24 hours prior notice and in any event GFC will provide 

Customer with at least 8 hours’ notice for any rescheduled installation or training. 

• All software supplied by the Customer for the project is properly licensed to the Customer and not in default under 

the terms of any such software licenses. All hardware supplied by the Customer for the project is in good working 

condition. 

• Customer is responsible for creating, configuring, and maintaining back-ups of their Laserfiche solution server(s) 

and database(s). GFC will provide, at the customer’s request, Laserfiche’s documentation on best practices on 

backing-up the Laserfiche environment.  

 

SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS 

SERVER HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS 

Client is responsible for providing the server equipment pre-configured, in good working condition, and with the minimal 

system requirements outlined in Appendix B of this SOW.  GFC requires that the installation of servers be completed and 

tested prior to the installation of Laserfiche. 

MFD/SCANNER HARDWARE REQUIREMENTS 

Client will continue to use the currently connected MFD/scanner equipment provided by GFC. 

133

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 4 

PROJECT DELIVERABLES 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

The GFC project management methodology works with the Customer to plan and configure the desired design and 

implementation. The GFC Project Manager will work with all parties and resources to coordinate the numerous tasks to be 

completed during design and implementation. The project manager will assist with the definition of requirements, 

identification of tasks, manage issues, and schedule the implementation of products and/or services. 

NAMED USER ACCOUNTS AND SECURITY 

The GFC Business Analyst and Project Engineer team will work with Client to define up to ten (10) full and sixty (60) participant 

users that will have access to the system.  Once the users have been identified, A GFC Project Engineer will create the 

accounts within Laserfiche using Active Directory username and passwords. 

BUSINESS FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS 

Laserfiche software enables the following functionalities, though configuration of all is not part of this initial project scope. 

Intake variety of content types from a variety of content sources (scanning, faxing, emailing, applications, bulk imports, etc.). 

Index content upon arrival into content repository from a variety of sources. 

Browse and search content based on meta data and text searches using Mac or PC. 

Results of text search should show partial documents in the result and allow for cntrl-F functionality inside the document. 

Wildcard searched must be allowed 

Create and save user-defined search templates. 

Link to content in repository via URLs for communication or distribution. 

Must be able to logically if not physically separate all police documents from other documents, using the same instance of the software 

Track content events (read, write, delete, etc.) and report for compliance and audit purposes. 

Easily track paper copies of digitized content objects (e.g. receipts). 

Perform cross-departmental automated processing and workflows. 

Integration with MS Office and Outlook 

Allow centralized governance, retention, and destruction policies for archived content at folder and document level. 

Allow records managers to override or modify policies or schedules on case-by-case basis.  

Generate disposition workflows.  

Enact legal holds, fulfill eDiscovery requests, and produce defensible disposal audit trails (i.e. deleted content). 

134

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 5 

Create task-based ad hoc workflows. 

Must have the capability to integrate with our existing software, by pulling up related documents based on information on a screen. 

Integrate with existing software where based on information on screen the document management system knows what index to scan 

the document into. 

Integrate with software to directly store content in document storage solution (bypassing need for F: Drive storage in certain cases). 

Security available at the user and group of users 

Security applied at document and folder levels  

FOLDER STRUCTURE 

To be determined in the Design Phase, up to 250 folders or subfolders.  Departments as outlined in the client RFP included: 

• City council and boards and commissioner agenda, packets and minutes 

• Police records 

• Financials 

• Human resources 

• Licenses and permits 

• Plats and plans 

METADATA MANAGEMENT 

Based on  information specified in the Design Phase, a GFC Project Engineer will create and configure up to ten (10) templates 

and up to eighty (80) corresponding fields, which will be used for entry naming/routing, search/retrieval, etc. 

BUSINESS PROCESSES 

A GFC Project Engineer will configure five (5) business processes within Laserfiche, to be identified in the requirements 

gathering process of the Design Phase.   Each workflow may utilize multiple Laserfiche modules.  Additionally, some 

workflows will require further access to external applications or data sources.   

MFD/SCANNER CONFIGURATION 

Requirements to be determined in Design Phase; up to twenty-one devices included. 

TRAINING 

 Laserfiche Resources Administrator Training Power User Training End User Training 

Level 3 Included 2 Hours (Remote) 2 Hours onsite (includes 

Analyst) 

2 Hours onsite 

2 Hours Post-cutover 

onsite 

Laserfiche Resources 
• Online Video Gallery 

• Quick Start Guide 

• Business Process Guide 

135

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 6 

o GFC will provide Client a training guide for each business process configured within the system.  This training 

guide will provide users with information on logging into Laserfiche, processing documents through the 

system, and core system functionality.  It will be given to power users prior to the User Acceptance Testing 

period. 

Administrator Training 
GFC will provide Client up to two (2) total hours of administrator training and is recommended for Information Technology 

personnel within the Client organization.  Topics include: 

• Overview of Laserfiche Server 

• Laserfiche Security Configured 

• Laserfiche Client Overview 

• Overview of Laserfiche Workflow Modules 

• Laserfiche Workflows Configured 

• Overview of Laserfiche Modules Purchased 

• Backing-up of Laserfiche Environment 

Power User Training 
GFC will provide Client up to two (2) total hours of training on the business process configured within the system prior to 

the User Acceptance Testing period.  The training is recommended for functional / process leads.  These individuals will 

conduct “Train the Trainer” sessions for all remaining users. 

End User Training 
GFC will provide Client two onsite sessions.  (1) Two hours of training for users focused on how they use the system. This 

can be onsite or remote, based on client requirements; (2) Two-hour additional training, planned for approximately thirty 

days after project closure, focused on needs at that time. 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN 

ESTIMATED PROJECT TIMELINES 

 Description 

Est. Time 

(days/stage) 

Design Phase 

Requirement gathering work and meeting with client to create the 

Statement of Work. GFC will create detailed framework and specific 

configurations for the final solution. 

30-40 

Implementation 

Phase 

Installation and configuration of the Laserfiche software for 

implementation, testing and delivery of a working solution. 
30-40 

Training and UAT Training and user testing as specified in the Statement of Work. 5-7 

USER ACCEPTANCE TESTING 

Upon completion of Power User Training, Client has a period of five (5) business days for User Acceptance Testing 

(UAT).  During this time, Client power users are expected to perform the core functions presented as part of training in a 

timely and disciplined manner, document any issues, and communicate them to the GFC Project Manager.  GFC will 

immediately work to resolve those issues related to Statement of Work (SOW) functionalities.  For issues communicated that 

are outside the SOW scope, the GFC Project Manager will document for subsequent, post-project discussions with Client. 

136

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 7 

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE AND CLOSURE 

Upon completion of User Acceptance Testing (UAT), Client will be sent a Project Acceptance Form to sign and return.  This 

form will detail project deliverables completed and note any deliverables that are to be completed by GFC within the next 

thirty (30) days.  Signature and return of the form will activate GFC Support Plan Help Desk services for 

Client.  Acknowledgement of Project Acceptance terms can also be approved via email reply. 

ACCEPTANCE OF STATEMENT OF WORK 
By signing below, I confirm the accuracy of the description of this project, as specified throughout the document, and 

acknowledge that I have read and understand this Statement of Work and agree to its terms.  

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

   

By: Name 

 

 

   

Signature 

 

   

Title 

 

   

Date 

 

 

Gordon Flesch Company, Inc. 

 

 

   

By: Name 

 

 

   

Signature 

 

   

Title 

 

   

Date 

 

 

 

  

137

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 8 

APPENDIX A: PROJECT CHANGE REQUEST FORM SAMPLE 

CUSTOMER & PROJECT INFORMATION 
Customer Name  Change Request Date  

Project Name  Change Request Number  

Note: Upon approval, the solution outlined below will be provided in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the original Statement of Work 

(SOW) and imageCARE Master Agreement, between Gordon Flesch Company and the client. 

CATEGORY OF CHANGE 

☐ Scope  

☐ Cost 

☐ Schedule 

☐ Requirements 

☐ Business Process 

☐ Documents 
 

REQUESTOR INFORMATION 
Name E-Mail Address Phone Number 

   
 

CHANGE DESCRIPTION 
 
 
 

 

 

IMPACT OF CHANGE 

Scope 
☐ Increase 

☐ Decrease 

☐ Modify 

☐ No Impact  
Schedule 

☐ Increase 

☐ Decrease 

☐ Modify 

☐ No Impact 

Cost 
☐ Increase 

☐ Decrease 

☐ Modify 

☐ No Impact  
Requirements 

☐ Increase 

☐ Decrease 

☐ Modify 

☐ No Impact 

Cost ($): $ x,xxx.xx  

 

CHANGE AUTHORIZATION 

The signatures below indicate acceptance of the requested Project Change. GFC is authorized to begin work on the Project Change 

identified above.  

 

    

  

GFC Project Manager Signature  By: GFC Project Manager   Date 

 

 

    

  

Customer Authorized Signature  By: Name of Authorized Representative of Customer   Date 

  

138

Item 18.



 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 1 

APPENDIX B: SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS 
Laserfiche is a server-based solution that requires component software.  Depending on system 

configuration, multiple servers may be required to make more efficient use of all available server resources.  

It is the responsibility of the customer to provide the required server(s), as well as the server licenses 

required.  If needed, please consult with a Project Engineer to validate configuration prior to building 

servers.  For information on designing a backup and recovery plan, click here. 

The Laserfiche Application server must be dedicated and have the originally installed operating system, not 

an upgrade from a previous version of Windows.  If the server is being re-purposed e.g. domain controller 

or application server, then the operating system must be re-installed to eliminate any legacy configuration.  

Installation of the Laserfiche Application server on client operating systems are not supported and Domain 

Controllers are not recommended. 

LASERFICHE SERVER 

Recommended requirements for the Application Server, assuming the server is managing the core 

application. Specifications may need to be adjusted based on the configuration of the system and system 

performance.  For additional information on Laserfiche 10.4.1, click here. 

Specification Description 

Operating System 

Windows Server 2008 or later, x64 editions only 

If Full-Text Indexing and Search Service will be installed on the same computer, 

then Windows Server 2008 R2 requires Service Pack 1 to be installed. 

CPU 

Intel Core 2 Duo or Athlon Phenom or more recent dual-core processor (at least 

1.8 GHz); a 64-bit CPU is required. 

If Full-Text Indexing and Search Service will be installed on the same computer, 

then a quad core CPU is recommended. 

Virtual Cores 
1 to 100 users: 4 cores 

101 to 200 users: 8 cores 

Memory 

*1 to 24 users: 4 GB RAM 

25 to 100 users: 16 GB RAM 

101 to 200 users: 32 GB RAM 

*If Laserfiche Full-Text Indexing and Search Service will be installed on the 

same computer, then 8 GB of RAM is recommended. 

 

  

139

Item 18.

https://support.laserfiche.com/resources/3891/designing-a-laserfiche-10-backup-and-recovery-plan
https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1014049/release-notes-for-laserfiche-10-4-1


 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 2 

LASERFICHE WORKFLOW 

For additional information on Workflow 10.4.1, click here. 

Specification Description 

Laserfiche Application 

Server 

9 or higher 

Operating System 

Windows Server 2008 (Service Pack 2), Windows Server 2008 R2 (Service Pack 1), 

*Windows Server 2012, *Windows Server 2012 R2, Windows Server 2016, 

Windows Server 2019 

*.NET Framework 4.5, 4.6, or 4.7 required 

Database 
SQL Server 2008, SQL Server 2008 R2, SQL Server 2012, SQL Server 2014, SQL 

Server 2016, SQL Server 2017, SQL Server 2019 

Virtual Cores 
2, 4, 6, or 8-core CPU, based on need. More CPU cores allow more workflows to 

run simultaneously. 

Memory 4GB RAM or higher 

LASERFICHE DATABASE SERVER 

Specification Description 

Database 

Microsoft SQL Server 2008 (Service Pack 1), Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2, 

Microsoft SQL Server 2012, Microsoft SQL Server 2014, Microsoft SQL Server 

2016.  For Microsoft SQL Server requirements, see Microsoft's SQL Server home 

page. 

Virtual Cores 
1 to 100 users: 4 cores 

101 to 200 users: 8-16 cores 

Memory 

1 to 24 users: 4 GB RAM 

25 to 100 users: 32 GB RAM 

101 to 200 users: 64 GB RAM 

 

  

140

Item 18.

https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1014051/release-notes-for-workflow-10-4-1
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/sql-server/sql-server-2017
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/sql-server/sql-server-2017


 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 3 

LASERFICHE FORMS 

For additional information on Forms 10.4.1, click here. 

Specification Description 

Laserfiche Application 

Server 

9 or higher 

Operating System 
Windows Server 2008 (SP 2+), Windows Server 2008 R2, Windows Server 2012, 

Windows Server 2012 R2, Windows Server 2016, Windows Server 2019 

Database 

Microsoft SQL Server 2008, Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2, Microsoft SQL Server 

2012, Microsoft SQL Server 2014, Microsoft SQL Server 2016, Microsoft SQL 

Server 2017, Microsoft SQL Server 2019 

Virtual Cores 4+ 

Memory 8 GB RAM 

Internet Information 

Services (IIS) 

IIS 7 (Windows 7, Windows Server 2008), IIS 7.5 (Windows 7, Windows Server 

2008 R2), IIS 8 (Windows 8, Windows Server 2012), IIS 8.5 (Windows 8.1, 

Windows Server 2012 R2), IIS 10 

ASP.NET 4.x must be enabled 

User Client 

Workstation 

- Users can fill out forms that start a process in Chrome (latest version), 

Safari(Mac only), Firefox (latest version), Internet Explorer 11 and later, Edge, 

Opera. 

- The Laserfiche Forms Inbox, Form Designer, Process Designer, Administrative 

pages, etc. must be viewed in Internet Explorer 11, Edge, Firefox (latest version), 

or Chrome (latest version). 

- Laserfiche Forms also supports mobile browsing (Chrome, Firefox, and Safari 

recommended). 

 

 

  

141

Item 18.

https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1014053/release-notes-for-laserfiche-forms-10-4-1


 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 4 

LASERFICHE WEB ACCESS 

For additional information on Web Access 10.4.1, click here. 

Specification Description 

Laserfiche Application 

Server 

10.4 or higher 

Operating System Windows Server 2008 or later, x64 only 

CPU 2.8 GHz or faster processor 

Virtual Cores 

1 to 75 users: 4 cores 

76 to 150 users: 8 cores 

151 to 250 users: 16 cores 

Memory 8 GB RAM 

Internet Information 

Services (IIS) 

IS 7 (Windows Vista or Windows Server 2008), IIS 7.5 (Windows 7 or Windows 

Server 2008 R2), IIS 8 (Windows 8, Windows Server 2012), IIS 8.5 (Windows 8.1, 

Windows Server 2012 R2), IIS 10 (Windows 10, Windows Server 2016) 

User Client 

Workstation 

Internet Explorer 11 or later, Microsoft Edge, Firefox, Safari for iOS, and 

Chrome 

LASERFICHE DIRECTORY SERVER (LFDS) 

Directory Server is required if Laserfiche Rio is implemented within a multi Laserfiche environment e.g. 

development, testing, and production.  For additional detail on LFDS 10.4.2, click here. 

Specification Description 

Operating System 

LFDS is only supported on 64-bit versions of Microsoft Windows: Windows 

Server 2008 R2 Service Pack 1, Windows Server 2012, Windows Server 2012 R2, 

Windows Server 2016, Windows Server 2019 

Database 

Microsoft SQL Server 2008 (Service Pack 3), Microsoft SQL Server 2008 R2 

(Service Pack 2), Microsoft SQL Server 2012 (Service Pack 2), Microsoft SQL 

Server 2014, Microsoft SQL Server 2016, Microsoft SQL Server 2017, Microsoft 

SQL Server 2019 

Windows 

Components 

.Net Framework 4.7.2 or later, IIS 7.5 or later, HTTPS 

CPU Dual-core processor 

Memory 2 GB RAM 

 

  

142

Item 18.

https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1014049/release-notes-for-laserfiche-10-4-1
https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1014044/release-notes-for-directory-server-10-4-2


 

CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220   

Project Change Request -v2.0 – REV 09012016 

P a g e  | 5 

LASERFICHE IMPORT AGENT 

For additional information on Import Agent 10.3.1, click here. 

Specification Description 

Laserfiche Application 

Server 

10.2 or higher 

Operating System 
Windows Server 2008 R2 (Service Pack 1), Windows Server 2012, Windows Server 

2016, Windows 7 (Service Pack 1), Windows 8, Windows 10 

CPU Quad-core 2.8 GHz processor or faster 

Memory 2+ GB RAM 

LASERFICHE WINDOWS CLIENT 

For installation instructions, click here. 

Specification Description 

Operating System 
Microsoft Windows 7, Microsoft Windows 8, Microsoft Windows 8.1, or 

Microsoft Windows 10 

CPU 
Intel Core 2 Duo or Athlon Phenom or more recent dual-core processor (at 

least 2.8 GHz) 

Memory 4 GB RAM 

Microsoft Office 

Integration 

Microsoft Office 2007 (32-bit only), Microsoft Office 2010 (32-bit and 64-bit), 

Microsoft Office 2013 (32-bit and 64-bit), Microsoft Office 2016 (32-bit and 64-

bit) 

LASERFICHE CONNECTOR 

For additional information on Connector 10.3, click here.  For installation instructions, click here. 

Specification Description 

Operating System Windows Server 2008 (SP 2+) and later, or Windows Vista (SP2+) and later 

CPU 2.93GHz or faster processor 

Memory 4 GB RAM 

 

143

Item 18.

https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1013938/release-notes-for-import-agent-10-3-1
https://www.laserfiche.com/support/webhelp/Laserfiche/10/en-us/administration/Default.htm#../Subsystems/LFAdmin/Content/Installation/installing_the_laserfiche_client.htm%3FTocPath%3DLaserfiche%2520Administration%2520Guide%7CLaserfiche%2520Installation%7CLaserfiche%2520Client%7CInstallation%2520Procedures%7CInstalling%2520the%2520Laserfiche%252
https://support.laserfiche.com/kb/1013897/release-notes-for-laserfiche-connector-10-3
https://www.laserfiche.com/support/webhelp/Laserfiche/10/en-us/administration/Default.htm#../Subsystems/Connector/Content/Installation.htm%3FTocPath%3DConnector%7CInstalling%2520Laserfiche%2520Connector%7C_____0


144

Item 19.



145

Item 19.



146

Item 19.



147

Item 19.



148

Item 19.



149

Item 19.



150

Item 19.



151

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: September 3, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Campus Street Bridge Replacement 
   Project No.: BR – 101 – 3043 
   Project Final Out 
 
The Campus Street Bridge Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This 
project involved the removal of an existing bridge structure, and placement of a new 
double cell 14’ x 6’ precast RCB culvert, creek channel excavation, erosion control 
measures, and reconstruction of portions of one (1) City street and was under contract 
with Peterson Contractors Inc. of Reinbeck, Iowa. Attached please find the following 
final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
  -  Final Breakdown of Costs 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Peterson Contractors Inc. 
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division 
and are on file with the City Clerk: 
 
Peterson Contractors Inc. Suppliers: 
Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
Cedar Valley Trucking  
BMC Aggregates LC. 
Forterra 
Leymaster Tile LLC 
Manatts Inc DM 
Wieser Concrete Products, Inc 
Utility Equipment Company 
Hi-Way Products Inc. 
 

 

Peterson Contractors Inc.  
Subcontractors including subcontractor suppliers: 
Cunningham Construction Co. 
   - Benton’s Ready Mixed Concrete Inc. 
   -Construction Materials, Inc. 
Matthias Landscaping Co 
   - Oleson Sod Farm  
Service Signing, LC 
 

 152

Item 20.



This project was primarily funded by the “Storm Water Bond”. Below is a breakdown of 
final contract costs for items that were not funded by the “Storm Water Bond” and their 
funding source: 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Storm Water Bond  $362,018.00 

Sanitary Sewer Rental Fund (SRF) $ 40,280.00 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the Campus Street Bridge Replacement 
Project were completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and 
specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Brett Armstrong   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Finance Manager  
 
 
 
 

9/3/2020 

153

Item 20.



154

Item 20.

tolanm
PowerPoint Presentation

tolanm
Text Box
7/27/2020



PAY ESTIMATE : #9 (RETAINAGE RELEASE)

DATE : 7/22/2020

CONTRACT AMOUNT : $317,558.60

CONTRACTOR : Peterson Contractors, Inc.

PROJECT NAME : CAMPUS STREET BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

CITY PROJECT # : BR-101-3043

1 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1.0 14,000.00$ $14,000.00 1.0 $14,000.00 100.00% x

2 CLEARING & GRUBBING L.S. 1.0 1,375.00$   $1,375.00 1.0 $1,375.00 100.00% x

3 REMOVAL OF EXISTING BRIDGE STRUCTURE L.S. 1.0 10,500.00$ $10,500.00 1.0 $10,500.00 100.00% x

4 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT S.Y. 352.0 6.25$          $2,200.00 755.0 $4,718.75 214.49% x

5* REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 0.0 11.00$        $0.00 130.0 $1,430.00 100.00% x

6 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 91.0 7.50$          $682.50 133.6 $1,002.00 146.81% x

7 REMOVALS AS PER PLAN UNITS 0.75 700.00$      $525.00 0.8 $525.00 100.00% x

8 SAWCUTTING FOR REMOVALS L.F. 70.0 7.50$          $525.00 241.0 $1,807.50 344.29% x

9 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY WASTE C.Y. 102.0 10.50$        $1,071.00 102.0 $1,071.00 100.00% x

10 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, UNSTABLE MATERIAL C.Y. 11.0 21.50$        $236.50 11.0 $236.50 100.00% x

11 EXCAVATION, CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. 1.0 175.00$      $175.00 1.0 $175.00 100.00% x

12 COMPACTION OF SUBGRADE, ROADWAY STA. 0.71 1,000.00$   $710.00 0.7 $710.00 100.00% x

13 EXCAVATION, CLASS 13, CHANNEL C.Y. 123.0 10.50$        $1,291.50 123.0 $1,291.50 100.00% x

14 EXCAVATION, CLASS 23, STRUCTURE C.Y. 409.0 9.00$          $3,681.00 409.0 $3,681.00 100.00% x

15 GRANULAR SUBBASE, BACKFILL CULVERT C.Y. 93.0 44.00$        $4,092.00 93.0 $4,092.00 100.00% x

16 GRANULAR BEDDING, CULVERT C.Y. 125.0 52.50$        $6,562.50 125.0 $6,562.50 100.00% x

17 FLOWABLE MORTAR, CULVERT C.Y. 52.0 120.00$      $6,240.00 52.0 $6,240.00 100.00% x

18 DOUBLE CELL, 14' X 6' CULVERT, PRECAST P.C.C. L.F. 78.0 1,600.00$   $124,800.00 78.0 $124,800.00 100.00% x

19 DOUBLE CELL, 14' X 6' CULVERT APRON, 2:1 SLOPED END SECTION, PRECAST P.C.C., INCLUDING PARAPETEA 2.0 20,000.00$ $40,000.00 2.0 $40,000.00 100.00% x

20 1' X 4' X 36' PRECAST P.C.C. CURTAIN WALL EA 2.0 3,300.00$   $6,600.00 2.0 $6,600.00 100.00% x

21 HANDRAIL, 2 IN. DIA. STEEL PIPE, HOT-DIP GALVANIZED L.F. 103.5 127.00$      $13,144.50 103.5 $13,144.50 100.00% x

22 REVETMENT, CLASS E TONS 207.0 36.50$        $7,555.50 207.0 $7,555.50 100.00% x

23 ENGINEERING FABRIC, POLYMER GRID S.Y. 307.0 3.50$          $1,074.50 307.0 $1,074.50 100.00% x

24 GRANULAR SUBBASE, 12 IN., ROADWAY S.Y. 512.0 14.00$        $7,168.00 649.0 $9,086.00 126.76% x

25* GRANULAR SUBBASE, 4 IN., DRIVEWAY S.Y. 25.0 13.00$        $325.00 130.0 $1,690.00 520.00% x

26 PAVEMENT, STAND., P.C.C. 7", TYPE "C", CLASS III S.Y. 460.0 40.25$        $18,515.00 908.3 $36,560.28 197.46% x

27* DRIVEWAY, PCC, 6", TYPE "M", CLASS III S.Y. 25.0 57.50$        $1,437.50 130.0 $7,475.00 520.00% x

28 SIDEWALK, PCC, 4", TYPE "C", CLASS III S.Y. 158.0 36.00$        $5,688.00 158.0 $5,688.00 100.00% x

29 PATCH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 13.0 225.00$      $2,925.00 0.0 $0.00 0.00% x

30 INTAKE, SW-507 EA 2.0 4,450.00$   $8,900.00 2.0 $8,900.00 100.00% x

31 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MINOR, FURNISH NEW CASTING EA 1.0 1,000.00$   $1,000.00 1.0 $1,000.00 100.00% x

32 SEWER, STORM, 12" DIA. RCP 2000D L.F. 7.5 50.00$        $375.00 7.5 $375.00 100.00% x

33 SEWER, STORM, 15" DIA. RCP 2000D L.F. 35.0 54.50$        $1,907.50 35.0 $1,907.50 100.00% x

34 SEWER, STORM, 18" DIA. PERF HDPE L.F. 27.0 46.25$        $1,248.75 27.0 $1,248.75 100.00% x

35 SEWER, STORM, 24" DIA. RCP 2000D L.F. 7.5 79.00$        $592.50 15.0 $1,185.00 200.00% x

36 SEWER, STORM, 30" DIA RCP 2000D L.F. 7.5 101.00$      $757.50 15.0 $1,515.00 200.00% x

37 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EA 4.0 500.00$      $2,000.00 4.0 $2,000.00 100.00% x

38 GRANULAR BACKFILL, INTAKES TONS 10.0 39.00$        $390.00 10.0 $390.00 100.00% x

39 SUBDRAIN, HDPE STAND., PERF., 6 IN. DIA. L.F. 258.0 11.00$        $2,838.00 258.0 $2,838.00 100.00% x

40 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, 2' X 6 IN. DIA CMP EA 1.0 190.00$      $190.00 1.0 $190.00 100.00% x

41 SUBDRAIN OUTLET, 6' X 6 IN. DIA CMP EA 2.0 250.00$      $500.00 2.0 $500.00 100.00% x

42 SEDIMENT FILTER, INTAKE WELL EA 2.0 150.00$      $300.00 2.0 $300.00 100.00% x

43 SEDIMENT FILTER, INTAKE L.F. 18.0 150.00$      $2,700.00 18.0 $2,700.00 100.00% x

44 CLEANING SEDIMENT FILTER, BASIN EA 2.0 50.00$        $100.00 2.0 $100.00 100.00% x

45 TOPSOIL, FURNISH & SPREAD C.Y. 81.0 14.00$        $1,134.00 81.0 $1,134.00 100.00% x

46 FERTILIZING, SEEDING, & MULCHING ACRE 0.10 15,000.00$ $1,500.00 0.1 $1,500.00 100.00% x

47 SOD, PROVIDE & PLACE S.F. 3,173.0 0.85$          $2,697.05 8,300.0 $7,055.00 261.58% x

48 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT, EXTENDED TERM (RECP) S.Y. 279.0 1.90$          $530.10 450.0 $855.00 161.29% x

49 STREET SWEEPING HR. 2.0 150.00$      $300.00 2.0 $300.00 100.00% x

50 TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 1,500.00$   $1,500.00 1.0 $1,500.00 100.00% x

51 WATTLES L.F. 320.0 3.50$          $1,120.00 320.0 $1,120.00 100.00% x

52 SIDEWALK, PCC, 6", TYPE "C" S.Y. 11.7 96.00$        $1,123.20 17.8 $1,706.88 151.97% x

53 PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, DETECTABLE WARNING S.F. 48.0 30.00$        $1,440.00 48.0 $1,440.00 100.00% x

8000 EWO #1 L.S. 1.0 $40,280.00 $40,280.00 1.0 $40,280.00 100.00% x $40,280.00

8001 EWO #2 TONS $19.50 $0.00 75.6 $1,474.20 100.00% x

8002 Non-Woven Permeable Fabric Over Box (CO#3) S.Y. 117.0 $19.80 $2,316.60 117.0 $2,316.60 100.00% x

8003 Additional Pavement Thickness Over Box (CO#3) C.Y. 21.0 $105.00 $2,205.00 21.0 $2,205.00 100.00% x

8004 Additional PCC Curb (CO#3) L.F. 30.0 $19.23 $576.90 30.0 $576.90 100.00% x

8005 Hydro-Mulch (CO#3) ACRE 0.06 $9,900.00 $594.00 0.06 $594.00 100.00% x

$40,280.00

ENGINEERING DIVISION

DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS 

Division 1                                        

Storm Water Bond

Division 2           

SRF

$14,000.00

$1,375.00

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

BID ITEMS

BID ITEM COSTS

ITEM 

NUMBER

ESTIMATED 

QUANTITY

UNIT                

PRICE

VALUE 

COMPLETED

ITEM % 

COMPLETE

INSTALLED 

UNITS TO 

DATE

UNITS
EXTENDED 

PRICE
DESCRPTION

BI-WEEKLY

$10,500.00

$4,718.75

$1,430.00

$1,002.00

$525.00

$1,807.50

$1,071.00

$236.50

$175.00

$710.00

$1,291.50

$3,681.00

$4,092.00

$6,562.50

$6,240.00

$124,800.00

$40,000.00

$6,600.00

$13,144.50

$7,555.50

$1,074.50

$9,086.00

$1,690.00

$36,560.28

$7,475.00

$5,688.00

$0.00

$8,900.00

$1,000.00

$375.00

$1,907.50

$1,248.75

$1,185.00

$1,515.00

$2,000.00

$390.00

$2,838.00

$190.00

$500.00

$300.00

$2,700.00

$100.00

$1,134.00

$1,500.00

$7,055.00

$855.00

$300.00

$1,500.00

$1,120.00

$1,706.88

$1,440.00

$1,474.20

$2,316.60

$2,205.00

$576.90
$594.00

$362,018.36Sub-Total:

Project Total: $402,298.36

155

Item 20.



156

Item 20.



157

Item 20.



158

Item 20.



159

Item 20.



160

Item 20.



161

Item 20.



162

Item 20.



163

Item 20.



164

Item 20.



165

Item 20.



166

Item 20.



167

Item 20.



168

Item 20.



169

Item 20.



170

Item 20.



171

Item 20.



172

Item 20.



173

Item 20.



174

Item 20.



175

Item 20.



176

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: September 3, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Prairie Winds 4th Addition 
  Final Acceptance of Improvements 
  Project No. SU-197-3134 
 
Construction work has been completed on the public improvements for Prairie Winds 4th 
Addition. The project was designed by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc., and has 
been completed in accordance with the project plans and the City of Cedar Falls 
standard specifications.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed and approved the project plans and 
specifications, inspected the project through the construction process, and has received 
and reviewed the project reports and certifications. The project documentation is in 
order and the project is complete and ready for City Council acceptance. Attached are 
copies of the maintenance bond from the developer, Panther Farms, LLC, and the 
Prairie Winds 4th final plat. 
 
Prairie Winds 4th Addition has been constructed in reasonable compliance with the 
project plans and specifications. The Engineering Division recommends that the City 
Council approve and accept the public improvements for Prairie Winds 4th Addition. 
 
 
 
            September 3, 2020 

Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II     Date 
 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

177

Item 21.



178

Item 21.



179

Item 21.



180

Item 21.



181

Item 21.



182

Item 21.



183

Item 21.



184

Item 21.



185

Item 21.



186

Item 21.



187

Item 21.



188

Item 21.



189

Item 21.



190

Item 21.



191

Item 21.



192

Item 21.



193

Item 21.



194

Item 21.



195

Item 21.



196

Item 21.



197

Item 21.



198

Item 21.



199

Item 21.



200

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Lake Street Recreational Trail – Central Ave E to Big Woods Trail Connection 
  City Project Number: RT-819-3247 
  City-State Agreement – TAP-U-1185(655)-8I-07 
 
Attached is the Lake Street Trail Federal-Aid Agreement for review and approval. This city-state 
agreement will provide funding for the Recreation Trail project. The Lake Street Trail project will 
construct a ten-foot wide recreational trail from Central Ave east to the Big Woods Trail 
connection (approx. 0.6 miles).  
 
The Lake Street Trail Project engineer’s estimate is $350,000. The Transportation Alternative 
Program Programming Agreement, which is funded by the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG), administered through the Iowa Department of Transportation, will provide $302,000, 
and the City of Cedar Falls General Obligation Bonds will provide remaining funding.  

 

The Engineering Division recommends approval of the Union Road Recreational Trail Agreement 
with the Iowa Department of Transportation. Please sign and return both originals to the 
Engineering Division for further processing.  
 
If you have any questions or comments, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Stephanie Sheetz, Community Development Director 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

201

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 1 of 13 
 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Federal-Aid Agreement for a  

Iowa’s Transportation Alternatives Program (Iowa’s TAP) Project 
 
 
Subrecipient:  Cedar Falls 
Subrecipient DUNS Number:  169846912 
Project Number(s):  TAP-U-1185(655)—8I-07 
Iowa DOT Agreement Number:  21-TAP-146 

 
This agreement, made as of the date of the last party’s signature below, is between the City of Cedar 
Falls (hereinafter referred to as Subrecipient) and the Iowa Department of Transportation, the federal 
pass-through entity (hereinafter referred to as the Department).  Iowa Code Sections 306A.7 and 307.44 
provide for the Subrecipient and the Department to enter into agreements with each other for the 
purpose of financing transportation improvement projects in Iowa with federal funds.  Federal 
regulations require federal funds to be administered by the Department.  The federal-aid highway funds 
included in this agreement are jointly implemented by the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and 
the Department. 

The Subrecipient has received federal funding through the Iowa’s Transportation Alternatives Program 
(Iowa’s TAP), which is funded by the Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG), as codified in 
Section 133 of Title 23, United States Code (U.S.C.), which are hereinafter referred to as STBG funds.  
The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and title for this funding is 20.205 Highway 
Planning and Construction.   

Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, applicable statutes, and administrative rules, the Department 
agrees to provide the funding named above to the Subrecipient for the authorized and approved costs 
for eligible items associated with the project. 

Under this agreement, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. The Subrecipient shall be responsible for carrying out the provisions of this agreement. 

All notices required under this agreement shall be made in writing to the appropriate contact person.  
The Department's contact person shall be Pamella Lee, Office of Systems Planning, 800 Lincoln Way, 
Ames, Iowa 50010, 515-239-1810.  The Subrecipient's contact person shall be Jonathan Fitch, P.E., City 
of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613, 319-268-5165. 
 
2.  The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the development and completion of the following 

described project: 
 
On Lake Street Trail, from Central Ave E 0.6 miles to existing trail  
 

  

202

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 2 of 13 
 

3. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement for costs of authorized and approved eligible project 
activities under the Iowa’s TAP program from STBG funds.  The portion of the project costs 
reimbursed with STBG funds shall be limited to a maximum of either 80 percent of eligible costs 
(other than those reimbursed with other federal funds) or the amount listed ($302,000) in the [insert 
name of RPA or MPO] current Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and approved in the 
current Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), whichever is less.  Eligible project 
activities will be as described in Section 133(h) of Title 23, United States Code (U.S.C.), and 
determined by the Department to be eligible.   

4. Eligible project costs in excess of the amount reimbursed by the Department above will be 
considered the local contribution and may include cash, non-cash or approved state fund 
contributions, subject to Department approval.  The local contribution must equal a minimum of 20 
percent of eligible project costs.  The subrecipient shall certify to the Department the value of any 
non-cash contribution to the project prior to it being incurred and in accordance with the procedures 
outlined in the applicable Instructional Memorandum to Local Public Agencies (I.M.s).  The 
Department retains the sole authority to determine the eligibility and value of the Subrecipient’s 
non-cash contribution for the purposes of this agreement.  If the Subrecipient’s total cash and non-
cash contribution is determined by the Department to be less than that required by this agreement, 
the Subrecipient shall increase its cash contribution or the grant amount associated with this project 
shall be reduced accordingly. 

5. The Subrecipient must have let the contract or have construction started within two years of 
October 1, 2020.  If the Subrecipient does not do this, they will be in default for which the 
Department can revoke funding commitments.  The Department may approve extensions of this 
agreement for periods up to six months upon receipt of a written request from the Subrecipient at 
least sixty (60) days prior to the deadline.  

6. If the Subrecipient fails to perform any obligation under this agreement, the Department shall have 
the right, after first giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Subrecipient by certified mail return 
receipt requested, to declare any part or all of this agreement in default.  The Subrecipient shall have 
thirty (30) days from date of mailing of the notice to cure the default.  If the Recipient cures the 
default, the Subrecipient shall notify Department no later than five (5) days after cure or before the 
end of said thirty (30) day period given to cure the default.   The Department may thereafter 
determine whether the default has, in fact, been cured, or whether the Subrecipient remains in 
default.    

7. This agreement may be declared to be in default by the Department if the Department determines 
that the Subrecipient's application for funding contained inaccuracies, omissions, errors or 
misrepresentations; or if the Department determines that the project is not developed as described 
in the application and according to the requirements of this agreement. 

8. In the event a default is not cured the Department may do any of the following:  a) revoke funding 
commitments of funds loaned or granted by this agreement; b) seek repayment of funds loaned or 
granted by this agreement; or c) revoke funding commitments of funds loaned or granted by this 
agreement and also seek repayment of funds loaned or granted by this agreement.  By signing this 
agreement, the Subrecipient agrees to repay said funding if they are found to be in default.  

203

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 3 of 13 
 

Repayment methods may include cash repayment, installment repayments with negotiable interest 
rates, or other methods as approved by the Department. 

9. The Subrecipient shall comply with Exhibit 1, General Agreement Provisions for use of Federal 
Highway Funds on Non-primary Highways, which is attached hereto and by this reference is 
incorporated into this agreement. 

10. The Subrecipient shall maintain, or cause to be maintained for the intended public use, the 
improvement for twenty (20) years from the completion date in a manner acceptable to the 
Department.   

11. This agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of the Department. 

12. If any part of this agreement is found to be void and unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this 
agreement shall remain in effect. 

13. It is the intent of both parties that no third-party beneficiaries be created by this agreement. 

14. This agreement shall be executed and delivered in two or more copies, each of which so executed 
and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and shall constitute but one and the same 
agreement. 

15. This agreement and the attached exhibit constitute the entire agreement between the Department 
and the Subrecipient concerning this project.  Representations made before the signing of this 
agreement are not binding, and neither party has relied upon conflicting representations in entering 
into this agreement.  Any change or alteration to the terms of this agreement shall be made in the 
form of an addendum to this agreement.  The addendum shall become effective only upon written 
approval of the Department and the Subrecipient. 

 

204

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 4 of 13 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed this agreement as of the date shown 
opposite its signature below. 
 
 
SUBRECIPIENT: City of Cedar Falls 
 
 
By:                                                ___________                     Date                                               , _______ 
 
Title: ___Mayor_______________________________ 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
I,  , certify that I am the Clerk of the city, and that 
                                            (Name of City Clerk) 

 
 , who signed said Agreement for and on behalf of  
                                  (Name of Mayor/Signer Above) 

the city was duly authorized to execute the same by virtue of a formal resolution duly passed 

and adopted by the city, on the          day of                                    , _______. 

 

Signed: ___________________________________________ 

    City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Planning, Programming and Modal Division 
800 Lincoln Way, Ames, Iowa 50010  
Tel. 515-239-1664 
 
 
By:  __________________________________________    Date_______________________, ________ 
 Craig Markley 
 Director 
 Office of Systems Planning 

205

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 5 of 13 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
General Agreement Provisions for use of Federal Highway Funds on Non-primary Projects 

 
Unless otherwise specified in this agreement, the Subrecipient shall be responsible for the following: 

1. General Requirements.   

a. The Subrecipient shall take the necessary actions to comply with applicable state and federal 
laws and regulations. To assist the Subrecipient, the Department has provided guidance in the 
Federal-aid Project Development Guide (Guide) and the Instructional Memorandums to Local 
Public Agencies (I.M.s) that are referenced by the Guide. Both are available on-line at: 
http://www.iowadot.gov/local_systems/publications/im/lpa_ims.htm. The Subrecipient shall 
follow the applicable procedures and guidelines contained in the Guide and I.M.s in effect at the 
time project activities are conducted.  

b. In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and associated subsequent 
nondiscrimination laws, regulations, and executive orders, the Subrecipient shall not discriminate 
against any person on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In 
accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 216, the Subrecipient shall not discriminate against any 
person on the basis of race, color, creed, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national 
origin, religion, pregnancy, or disability. The Subrecipient agrees to comply with the 
requirements outlined in I.M. 1.070, Title VI and Nondiscrimination Requirements which includes 
the requirement to provide a copy of the Subrecipient’s Title VI Plan or Agreement and Standard 
DOT Title VI Assurances to the Department. 

c. The Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of Title II of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1990 (ADA), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), the associated 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) that implement these laws, and the guidance provided in I.M. 
1.080, ADA Requirements. When bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities are constructed, 
reconstructed, or altered, the Subrecipient shall make such facilities compliant with the ADA and 
Section 504 following the requirements set forth in Chapter 12A for sidewalks and Chapter 12B 
for Bicycle Facilities of the Iowa DOT Design Manual. 

d. To the extent allowable by law, the Subrecipient agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the 
Department harmless from any claim, action or liability arising out of the design, construction, 
maintenance, placement of traffic control devices, inspection, or use of this project. This 
agreement to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless applies to all aspects of the Department's 
application review and approval process, plan and construction reviews, and funding 
participation. 

e. As required by 2 CFR 200.501 “Audit Requirements”, a non-federal entity expending $750,000 or 
more in federal awards in a year shall have a single or program-specific audit conducted for that 
year in accordance with the provision of that part. Auditee responsibilities are addressed in 
Subpart F of 2 CFR 200. The federal funds provided by this agreement shall be reported on the 
appropriate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) using the Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number and title as shown in this agreement. If the Subrecipient will 

206

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 6 of 13 
 

pay initial project costs and request reimbursement from the Department, the Subrecipient shall 
report this project on its SEFA. If the Department will pay initial project costs and then credit 
those accounts from which initial costs were paid, the Department will report this project on its 
SEFA.  In this case, the Subrecipient shall not report this project on its SEFA.  

f. The Subrecipient shall supply the Department with all information required by the Federal 
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 and 2 CFR Part 170. 

g. The Subrecipient shall comply with the following Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
requirements: 

i. The Subrecipient shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in 
the award and performance of any Department-assisted contract or in the administration of 
its DBE program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. The Subrecipient shall take all 
necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the 
award and administration of Department-assisted contracts.  

ii. The Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of I.M. 5.010, DBE Guidelines. 

iii. The Department’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by the 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), is incorporated by reference in this agreement. 
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be 
treated as a violation of this agreement. Upon notification to the Subrecipient of its failure to 
carry out its approved program, the Department may impose sanctions as provided for under 
Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 
and the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

h. Termination of funds. Notwithstanding anything in this agreement to the contrary, and subject to 
the limitations set forth below, the Department shall have the right to terminate this agreement 
without penalty and without any advance notice as a result of any of the following: 1) The federal 
government, legislature or governor fail in the sole opinion of the Department to appropriate 
funds sufficient to allow the Department to either meet its obligations under this agreement or 
to operate as required and to fulfill its obligations under this agreement; or 2)  If funds are de-
appropriated, reduced, not allocated, or receipt of funds is delayed, or if any funds or revenues 
needed by the Department to make any payment hereunder are insufficient or unavailable for 
any other reason as determined by the Department in its sole discretion; or 3)  If the 
Department’s authorization to conduct its business or engage in activities or operations related 
to the subject matter of this agreement is withdrawn or materially altered or modified. The 
Department shall provide the Subrecipient with written notice of termination pursuant to this 
section.  

207

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 7 of 13 
 

2. Programming and Federal Authorization. 

a.   The Subrecipient shall be responsible for including the project in the appropriate Regional 
Planning Affiliation (RPA) or Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Transportation 
Improvement Program (TIP). The Subrecipient shall also ensure that the appropriate RPA or 
MPO, through their TIP submittal to the Department, includes the project in the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). If the project is not included in the appropriate 
fiscal year of the STIP, federal funds cannot be authorized. 

b. Before beginning any work for which federal funding reimbursement will be requested, the 
Subrecipient shall contact the Department to obtain the procedures necessary to secure FHWA 
authorization. The Subrecipient shall submit a written request for FHWA authorization to the 
Department. After reviewing the Subrecipient’s request, the Department will forward the 
request to the FHWA for authorization and obligation of federal funds. The Department will 
notify the Subrecipient when FHWA authorization is obtained. The cost of work performed prior 
to FHWA authorization will not be reimbursed with federal funds. 

c. Upon receiving FHWA authorization, the Subrecipient must show federal aid funding activity to 
receive the programmed amount authorized for the project. If there is no funding activity for 
nine or more months after the previous activity, the remaining unused programmed amount will 
be de-obligated from the project and there will be no further federal aid reimbursement issued 
for the project. If the Subrecipient knows in advance that funding activity will not occur for the 
nine months, the Contract Administrator needs to be notified to determine if programming of 
funds can be adjusted or other options can be explored. 

d. Upon receipt of Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) authorization a Federal Award 
Identification Number (FAIN) will be assigned to this project by the FHWA based on a 
methodology that incorporates identifying information about the federal award such as the 
federal funding program code and the federal project number. This FAIN will be used to identify 
this project and award on the federal government’s listing of financial assistance awards 
consistent with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 (FFATA) at 
usaspending.gov.  

e. A period of performance for this federal funding award will be established at the time of FHWA 
authorization. The start date of the period of performance will be the FHWA authorization date.  
The project end date (PED) will be determined according to the methodology in I.M. 1.200, 
Federal Funds Management. Costs incurred before the start date or after the PED of the period 
of performance will not be eligible for reimbursement. 

3. Federal Participation in Work Performed by Subrecipient Employees. 

a. If federal reimbursement will be requested for engineering, construction inspection, right-of-way 
acquisition or other services provided by employees of the Subrecipient, the Subrecipient shall 
follow the procedures in I.M. 3.330, Federal-aid Participation in In-House Services.  

208

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 8 of 13 
 

b. If federal reimbursement will be requested for construction performed by employees of the 
Subrecipient, the Subrecipient shall follow the procedures in I.M. 6.010, Federal-aid Construction 
by Local Agency Forces. 

c. If the Subrecipient desires to claim indirect costs associated with work performed by its 
employees, the Subrecipient shall prepare and submit to the Department an indirect cost rate 
proposal and related documentation in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200. Before 
incurring any indirect costs, such indirect cost proposal shall be certified by the FHWA or the 
federal agency providing the largest amount of federal funds to the Subrecipient. If approved, 
the approved indirect cost rate shall be incorporated by means of an addendum to this 
agreement.  

4. Design and Consultant Services 

a. The Subrecipient shall be responsible for the design of the project, including all necessary plans, 
specifications, and estimates (PS&E). The project shall be designed in accordance with the design 
guidelines provided or referenced by the Department in the Guide and applicable I.M.s. 

b. If the Subrecipient requests federal funds for consultant services, the Subrecipient and the 
Consultant shall prepare a contract for consultant services in accordance with 23 CFR Part 172. 
These regulations require a qualifications-based selection process. The Subrecipient shall follow 
the procedures for selecting and using consultants outlined in I.M. 3.310, Federal-aid 
Participation in Consultant Costs.  

c. If Preliminary Engineering (PE) work is federally funded, and if right-of-way acquisition or actual 
construction of the project is not started by the close of the tenth fiscal year following the fiscal 
year in which the federal funds were authorized, the Subrecipient shall repay to the Department 
the amount of federal funds reimbursed to the Subrecipient for such PE work. PE includes work 
that is part of the development of the PS&E for a construction project. This includes 
environmental studies and documents, preliminary design, and final design up through and 
including the preparation of bidding documents. PE does not include other activities that are not 
intended to lead to a construction project such as planning, conceptual, or feasibility studies. 

5. Environmental Requirements and other Agreements or Permits. 

a. The Subrecipient shall take the appropriate actions and prepare the necessary documents to 
fulfill the FHWA requirements for project environmental studies including historical/cultural 
reviews and location approval. The Subrecipient shall complete any mitigation agreed upon in 
the FHWA approval document. These procedures are set forth in I.M. 3.020, Concept Statement 
Instructions; 4.020, NEPA Class of Action Process; 4.030, Environmental Data Sheet Instructions; 
4.110, Threatened and Endangered Species; and 4.120, Cultural Resource Regulations. 

b. If farmland is to be acquired, whether for use as project right-of-way or permanent easement, 
the Subrecipient shall follow the procedures in I.M. 4.170, Farmland Protection Policy Act. 

209

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 9 of 13 
 

c. The Subrecipient shall obtain project permits and approvals, when necessary, from the Iowa 
Department of Cultural Affairs (State Historical Society of Iowa; State Historic Preservation 
Officer), Iowa Department of Natural Resources, U.S. Coast Guard, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
the Department, or other agencies as required. The Subrecipient shall follow the procedures in 
I.M. 4.130, 404 Permit Process; 4.140, Storm Water Permits; 4.150, Iowa DNR Floodplain Permits 
and Regulations; 4.160, Asbestos Inspection, Removal and Notification Requirements; and 4.190, 
Highway Improvements in the Vicinity of Airports or Heliports. 

d. In all contracts entered into by the Subrecipient, and all subcontracts, in connection with this 
project that exceed $100,000, the Subrecipient shall comply with the requirements of Section 
114 of the Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, and all their 
regulations and guidelines. In such contracts, the Subrecipient shall stipulate that any facility to 
be utilized in performance of or to benefit from this agreement is not listed on the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) List of Violating Facilities or is under consideration to be 
listed. 

6. Right-of-Way, Railroads and Utilities. 

a. The Subrecipient shall acquire the project right-of-way, whether by lease, easement, or fee title, 
and shall provide relocation assistance benefits and payments in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in I.M. 3.600, Right-of-Way Acquisition, and the Department's Office of Right of Way 
Local Public Agency Manual. The Subrecipient shall contact the Department for assistance, as 
necessary, to ensure compliance with the required procedures, even if no federal funds are used 
for right-of-way activities. The Subrecipient shall obtain environmental concurrence before 
acquiring any needed right-of-way. With prior approval, hardship and protective buying is 
possible. If the Subrecipient requests federal funding for right-of-way acquisition, the 
Subrecipient shall also obtain FHWA authorization before purchasing any needed right-of-way. 

b. If the project right-of-way is federally funded and if the actual construction is not undertaken by 
the close of the twentieth fiscal year following the fiscal year in which the federal funds were 
authorized, the Subrecipient shall repay the amount of federal funds reimbursed for right-of-way 
costs to the Department. 

c. If a railroad crossing or railroad tracks are within or adjacent to the project limits, the 
Subrecipient shall obtain agreements, easements, or permits as needed from the railroad. The 
Subrecipient shall follow the procedures in I.M. 3.670, Work on Railroad Right-of-Way, and I.M. 
3.680, Federal-aid Projects Involving Railroads.   

d. The Subrecipient shall comply with the Policy for Accommodating Utilities on City and County 
Federal-aid Highway Right of Way for projects on non-primary federal-aid highways. For projects 
connecting to or involving some work inside the right-of-way for a primary highway, the 
Subrecipient shall follow the Department’s Policy for Accommodating Utilities on Primary Road 
System. Certain utility relocation, alteration, adjustment, or removal costs to the Subrecipient for 
the project may be eligible for federal funding reimbursement. The Subrecipient should also use 
the procedures outlined in I.M. 3.640, Utility Accommodation and Coordination, as a guide to 
coordinating with utilities.  

210

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 10 of 13 
 

e. If the Subrecipient desires federal reimbursement for utility costs, it shall submit a request for 
FHWA authorization prior to beginning any utility relocation work, in accordance with the 
procedures outlined in I.M. 3.650, Federal-aid Participation in Utility Relocations. 

7. Construction Contract Procurement. 

The following provisions apply only to projects involving physical construction or improvements to 
transportation facilities: 

a. The project plans, specifications, and cost estimate (PS&E) shall be prepared and certified by a 
professional engineer, architect, or landscape architect, as applicable, licensed in the State of 
Iowa. 

b. For projects let through the Department, the Subrecipient shall be responsible for the following: 

i. Prepare and submit the PS&E and other contract documents to the Department for review 
and approval in accordance with I.M. 3.700, Check and Final Plans and I.M. 3.500, Bridge or 
Culvert Plans, as applicable. 

ii. The contract documents shall use the Department's Standard Specifications for Highway and 
Bridge Construction. Prior to their use in the PS&E, specifications developed by the 
Subrecipient for individual construction items shall be approved by the Department. 

iii. Follow the procedures in I.M. 5.030, Iowa DOT Letting Process, to analyze the bids received, 
make a decision to either award a contract to the lowest responsive bidder or reject all bids, 
and if a contract is awarded, execute the contract documents and return to the Department. 

c. For projects that are let locally by the Subrecipient, the Subrecipient shall follow the procedures 
in I.M. 5.120, Local Letting Process, Federal-aid.   

d. The Subrecipient shall forward a completed Project Development Certification (Form 730002) to 
the Department in accordance with I.M. 5.050, Project Development Certification Instructions. 
The project shall not receive FHWA authorization for construction or be advertised for bids until 
after the Department has reviewed and approved the Project Development Certification.  

e. If the Subrecipient is a city, the Subrecipient shall comply with the public hearing requirements of 
the Iowa Code Section 26.12. 

f. The Subrecipient shall not provide the contractor with notice to proceed until after receiving 
written notice the Department has concurred in the contract award. 

8. Construction.  

a. A full-time employee of the Subrecipient shall serve as the person in responsible charge of the 
construction project. For cities that do not have any full-time employees, the mayor or city clerk 
will serve as the person in responsible charge, with assistance from the Department. 

211

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 11 of 13 
 

b. Traffic control devices, signing, or pavement markings installed within the limits of this project 
shall conform to the "Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways" per 
Iowa Administrative Code 761 Chapter 130. The safety of the general public shall be assured 
through the use of proper protective measures and devices such as fences, barricades, signs, 
flood lighting, and warning lights as necessary. 

c. For projects let through the Department, the project shall be constructed under the 
Department's Standard Specifications for Highway and Bridge Construction and the Subrecipient 
shall comply with the procedures and responsibilities for materials testing according to the 
Department's Materials I.M.s. Available on-line at: 
http://www.iowadot.gov/erl/current/IM/navigation/nav.htm.    

d. For projects let locally, the Subrecipient shall provide materials testing and certifications as 
required by the approved specifications.  

e. If the Department provides any materials testing services to the Subrecipient, the Department 
will bill the Subrecipient for such testing services according to its normal policy as per Materials 
I.M. 103, Inspection Services Provided to Counties, Cities, and Other State Agencies. 

f. The Subrecipient shall follow the procedures in I.M. 6.000, Construction Inspection, and the 
Department’s Construction Manual, as applicable, for conducting construction inspection 
activities. 

9. Reimbursements. 

a. After costs have been incurred, the Subrecipient shall submit to the Department periodic 
itemized claims for reimbursement for eligible project costs. Requests for reimbursement shall 
be made at least every six months but not more than bi-weekly.  

b. To ensure proper accounting of costs, reimbursement requests for costs incurred prior to June 30 
shall be submitted to the Department by August 1 if possible, but no later than August 15. 

c. Reimbursement claims shall include a certification that all eligible project costs, for which 
reimbursement is requested, have been reviewed by an official or governing board of the 
Subrecipient, are reasonable and proper, have been paid in full, and were completed in 
substantial compliance with the terms of this agreement. 

d. Reimbursement claims shall be submitted on forms identified by the Department along with all 
required supporting documentation. The Department will reimburse the Subrecipient for 
properly documented and certified claims for eligible project costs.  The Department may 
withhold up to 5% of the federal share of construction costs or 5% of the total federal funds 
available for the project, whichever is less. Reimbursement will be made either by state warrant 
or by crediting other accounts from which payment was initially made. If, upon final audit or 
review, the Department determines the Subrecipient has been overpaid, the Subrecipient shall 
reimburse the overpaid amount to the Department. After the final audit or review is complete 

212

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 12 of 13 
 

and after the Subrecipient has provided all required paperwork, the Department will release the 
federal funds withheld.  

e. The total funds collected by the Subrecipient for this project shall not exceed the total project 
costs. The total funds collected shall include any federal or state funds received, any special 
assessments made by the Subrecipient (exclusive of any associated interest or penalties) 
pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 384 (cities) or Chapter 311 (counties), proceeds from the sale of 
excess right-of-way, and any other revenues generated by the project. The total project costs 
shall include all costs that can be directly attributed to the project. In the event that the total 
funds collected by the Subrecipient do exceed the total project costs, the Subrecipient shall 
either:  

i. in the case of special assessments, refund to the assessed property owners the excess special 
assessments collected (including interest and penalties associated with the amount of the 
excess), or  

ii. Refund to the Department all funds collected in excess of the total project costs (including 
interest and penalties associated with the amount of the excess) within 60 days of the receipt 
of any excess funds. In return, the Department will either credit reimbursement billings to 
the FHWA or credit the appropriate state fund account in the amount of refunds received 
from the Subrecipient.   

10. Project Close-out. 

a. Within 30 days of completion of construction or other activities authorized by this agreement, 
the Subrecipient shall provide written notification to the Department and request a final audit, in 
accordance with the procedures in I.M. 6.110, Final Review, Audit, and Close-out Procedures for 
Federal-aid Projects. Failure to comply with the procedures will result in loss of federal funds 
remaining to be reimbursed and the repayment of funds already reimbursed.  The Subrecipient 
may be suspended from receiving federal funds on future projects. 

b. For construction projects, the Subrecipient shall provide a certification by a professional 
engineer, architect, or landscape architect as applicable, licensed in the State of Iowa, indicating 
the construction was completed in substantial compliance with the project plans and 
specifications.   

c. Final reimbursement of federal funds shall be made only after the Department accepts the 
project as complete. 

d. The Subrecipient shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, reports, and 
other evidence pertaining to costs incurred for the project. The Subrecipient shall also make 
these materials available at all reasonable times for inspection by the Department, FHWA, or any 
authorized representatives of the federal government. Copies of these materials shall be 
furnished by the Subrecipient if requested. Such documents shall be retained for at least 3 years 
from the date of FHWA approval of the final closure document. Upon receipt of FHWA approval 

213

Item 22.



September 2018  21-TAP-146 

Page 13 of 13 
 

of the final closure document, the Department will notify the Subrecipient of the record 
retention date. 

e. The Subrecipient shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, the completed improvement in a 
manner acceptable to the Department and the FHWA.  

 

214

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: August 26, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Snyder & Associates, Inc.   
  Supplemental Agreement No. 2 

Union Road Recreation Trail – 12th St to 27th St 
  City Project No. RT-000-3217 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Snyder & Associates, Inc. for Union 
Road Recreation Trail Engineering Services. This supplemental agreement provides 
services for obtaining easements (temporary or permanent) for each of the neighboring 
property’s impacted by the construction of the trail. Services will include: preparing 
appraisals and brokers opinion of value; coordinate the appraisal process with the Iowa 
DOT appraisal valuations for consistence; retain and coordinate the services of an 
abstractor; Prepare Certificates of Title as required; make personal and private contacts 
with each property owner and tenant or their representative; present a written offer and 
consider counter offers; and deliver all signed acquisition documents and title clearing to 
Client for payment and closing tasks.     
  
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for the Recreation Trail Project on December 16, 2019.  The 
Supplemental Agreement No. 1 will utilize the Surface Transportation Block Grant 
(STBG) Programming Agreement with 80% funding through the grant and 20% Local 
Match funding sources.  
 
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Snyder & Associates, Inc. for obtaining easements 
of the Union Road Recreation Trail project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

David Wicke, City Engineer 

215

Item 23.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls  
220 Clay Street  
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613   
www.cedarfalls.com  

 

Engineering Division  
Phone: 319-268-5161  Fax: 319-268-5197 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2 

 
Union Road Recreational Trail – 12th St to 27th St Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number RC-000-3217 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
(CLIENT), and Snyder & Associates, Inc. (CONSULTANT), of Cedar Rapids, Iowa, dated 
December 16, 2019 for the professional engineering services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement(s) to include 
Scope of Services and Compensation for additional items required,  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement 
as follows:  
 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services and basis for Compensation derivation are as follows: 
 

Complete a parcel file for each property involved with the Project in accordance with the 
needs of CLIENT and/or the Project requirements; 
 
If necessary, retain and coordinate the services of a licensed, certified appraiser 
(hereinafter referred to as “Appraiser”) who, subject to the approval of the CLIENT, will be 
a Subconsultant to PROFESSIONAL. The Appraiser or Broker will prepare appraisals, 
project data books and of brokers opinion of value, as needed.  The Appraisers’ work will 
be reviewed by a second party as approved by the CLIENT and as required by Local, State 
and /or Federal Right-of-Way acquisition procedures.  The Appraiser will prepare, sign and 
furnish to the PROFESSIONAL and CLIENT appraisal documentation following accepted 
appraisal principles and techniques in accordance with the Iowa DOT “Appraisal Policy & 
Procedures Manual”.  The CLIENT will review and forward written approval of all findings 
by the Appraiser;  The PROFESSIONIAL will attempt to coordinate the appraisal process 
with the Iowa DOT appraisal valuations for consistency with same and neighboring 
properties.    
 
If necessary, retain and coordinate the services of an abstractor, who will be a 
Subconsultant to PROFESSIONAL, who will prepare Certificates of Title for parcels where 
fee title and permanent easements are required. 
 

216

Item 23.



Use acquisition forms and documents provided by CLIENT or prepare acquisition 
documents under the direction, review and approval of the CLIENT’s legal department.  
Acquisition documents may include, but not be limited to: (1) Offer to Purchase, (2) 10 day-
waiver, (3) Easements, and (4) release of tenant interest and leasehold claims; 
 
Make (through the Appointed Agent) personal and private contacts with each property 
owner and tenant (the Parties) or their representative to explain the effect of the acquisition, 
answer questions, present a written offer, and consider counter offers and to make 
approved offers for administrative settlements.  Non-resident property owners will be 
contacted by certified or registered mail or by U.P.S. 
 
Make a good faith effort to acquire the necessary property within 90 days after a written 
offer has been submitted to the owner and tenant.  Negotiations will be considered 
complete upon occurrence of one of the following: (1) the parties accept the offer, (2) the 
parties accept an administrative settlement, (3) the parties fail or refuse to accept the offer 
or administrative settlement, and/or (4) in the judgment of the PROFESSIONAL, 
negotiations have reached an impasse; 
 
Notify the CLIENT of every parcel on which negotiations have reached an impasse or which 
cannot be acquired by negotiated Agreement at the completion of the negotiations phase 
of the work.  If the CLIENT is to condemn, the PROFESSIONAL will deliver as much of the 
file to the CLIENT as is necessary for the CLIENT’s condemnation attorneys to begin 
preparation for the condemnation of the parcel.  The CLIENT will provide written notice to 
the parties that the parcel is being prepared for condemnation.  The PROFESSIONAL, 
when notified in writing by the CLIENT, will continue in an attempt to negotiate an 
Agreement after notice has been sent that condemnation is being prepared, but before 
notice of condemnation has been served.  Once notice of condemnation has been served, 
negotiations will cease unless requested by CLIENT to continue as additional services. 
 
Deliver all signed acquisition documents and title clearing (as directed by CLIENT’s 
attorney), to CLIENT for payment and closing tasks. 

 
II.  CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

CLIENT understands and agrees that it will be responsible for and will provide the 
following, in a timely manner: 
 
Unless produced by Snyder & Associates, Inc. survey and engineering staff, provide to 
PROFESSIONAL all known and existing plans, specifications and data pertaining to the 
project that may affect PROFESSIONAL’s Services to be provided.  Unless otherwise 
noted by CLIENT, PROFESSIONAL may rely upon the plans, specifications and data 
provided being accurate and complete; 
 
Provide all licenses, permits, and government or agency approvals that may be necessary 
to complete the Work and/or Project; 

 
Provide all necessary forms and/or documents to complete each acquisition and/or provide 
the services of CLIENT’s attorney to supervise, review and approve any and all legal 
documents prepared by PROFESSIONAL.   
 

217

Item 23.



Coordinate the timing and sequence of PROFESSIONAL’s Services with the Services of 
others to the Project;  
 
Make interim and final decisions utilizing information supplied by PROFESSIONAL. 
 
Process Council Roll Calls/Requisitions. 
 
Perform the following task for closings: Provide title opinions; prepare and distribute 
proceed checks to owners and tenants; prepare closing statements; prepare 1099 tax 
forms; update abstracts; record all pertinent documents. 

 
A. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 
1. The CLIENT may request Additional Services from the CONSULTANT not included 

in the Scope of Services as outlined. Additional Services may include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, additional site visits, attending a preconstruction meeting, 
construction observation, construction survey, assistance with payment requests, 
shop drawing preparation, change orders, substantial completion documentation, 
assistance with calendar day and liquidated damages documentation and final 
project acceptance; expanding the scope of the project or the work to be completed; 
requesting the development of various documents; extending the time to complete 
a project through no fault of the CONSULTANT; or requesting additional work items 
that increase the Engineering Services and corresponding costs. 

 
 
II.  COMPENSATION 
 
 Compensation for the Services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly 

fees and other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total 
compensation is a not to exceed fee of Twenty-Three Thousand Six Hundred Dollars 
$23,600. The compensation for this supplemental agreement is to be integrated into the 
original agreement. The total compensation of the original contract and supplemental 
agreement is not to exceed the fee of Eighty-Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Fifty Dollars  
$89,850. 

 
 
 

III.  ASSIGNABILITY 
 

 
1. The CONSULTANT shall not assign any interest in this AGREEMENT and shall not 

transfer any interest in the same without the prior written consent of the CLIENT. 
Subconsultants designated as part of this AGREEMENT shall be deemed to be 
approved when this AGREEMENT is executed. No subconsultants are anticipated. 

 
IV. In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain as 

specified in the Professional Services Agreement dated December 16, 2019.  
 

 
 
 

218

Item 23.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year 
written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT. 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  Printed Name:   Lindsay Beaman               
 
 
Title:  Title:        Business Unit Leader                       
 
 
Date:  Date: _____August 3, 2020____________ 

219

Item 23.



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 3, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Brick Paver Upgrade: Sidewalk at River Place Plaza 

 

Downtown streetscape improvements started in 2019, with Peter Melendy Park and the 
sidewalk in front of MU2, after Council approved the brick concept design and 
requested it be expanded beyond the Parkade to include side streets such as 2nd St. 
and 3rd Street.  In 2020, construction in 2 blocks of the Parkade, reconstruction of W 2nd 
St. and W 3rd St., and brick sidewalks added to E 2nd St. has been occurring.   A revised 
Site Plan for the Plaza was approved in March 2020, which included matching the new 
brick pattern started in the downtown into the Plaza but also along the public sidewalk.  
The 2016 Plaza and sidewalk site plan was approved with a troweled joint concrete 
sidewalk (4’x4’).  The 2020 staff report noted that the developer proposed increased 
costs to provide full brick be covered by the City, similar to the arrangement with the 
MU2 sidewalk in 2019. 
 
Attached is a detailed proposal from the developer on the sidewalk costs.  Staff has 
quotes for each item, supporting this summary.  The proposal includes the developer 
completing this area, including ordering the brick needed to do so. 
 
Staff has reviewed the proposal and met with the developer’s team to discuss 
questions.  Staff recommends approving up to $88,930.00.  There are a couple of line 
items that were adjusted from the proposal, after discussion with the developer, as 
follows: 

 $12,941 for Sub grade and Rock 
While there is different sub grade work for the bricks, there would have been 
prep work and fill required for the sidewalk to match surrounding areas, to meet 
ADA requirements, meet street grades, and meet Plaza grades/stairs.  The 
developer estimates ½ day prep work with the existing situation.  Therefore, $500 
was deducted from this line item.  Staff recommends reimbursing up to $12,440. 

  

220

Item 24.



 

 

 $8,132.52 Construction Management (CM) Fee 
Some construction management would be required no matter what type of 
sidewalk is installed.  Private development is responsible for creating 
connections and a safe environment for the public, if that’s been changed as a 
result of the development.  The fee proposed is 10% of the project cost, after the 
credit on a concrete sidewalk.  With the reduction for sub grade and rock, this 
calculates to $8,084.16. 
 

Council may recall discussions on a parking ramp and potential Development 
Agreement Amendment with River Place Properties.  Resolution 22,054 dated July 20, 
2020 supported a Term Sheet, which included the brick sidewalk upgrade costs as part 
of the rebates with that amendment.  An Amended Development Agreement is 
anticipated later this year.  Therefore, staff recommends cash payment not to exceed 
$88,930.00 to River Place Properties after acceptance of the improvements, with 
invoices documenting the work covered in this memo, and if the Amended Development 
Agreement is not completed.  A Development Agreement Amendment is currently 
underway. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

221

Item 24.



Area Contractor Item Cost Source Notes 
Streetscape MU2 Bowers Paving & Sidewalks 19,435.00$   Email 6/18/19

EVP>City Previous credit for sidewalks (7,700.00)$    EVP .xls
Credit Due EVP>City 11,735.00$   

Plaza Streetscape Bentons Sub grade & Rock 12,941.00$   Quote 3/23/20
Cunningham Planter Box Curb 7,700.00$     Quote 4/1/20
Matthias 2020 Plaza Brick City ROW 69,457.16$   Estimate 9/2/20 Matthias provides brick
Chapman Planter Box Conduits & Receptacles 2,982.00$     Quote 6/25/20 Planter box moved after conduit was in
EVP Credit (11,735.00)$  
EVP Credit Additional Site Preparation (500.00)$       
Total 80,845.16$   

CM Fee - 10% EVP 8,084.52$     EVP Quote

Due from City 88,929.68$   

222

Item 24.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 1, 2020 

SUBJECT: CDBG-CV Service Agency Contract: Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc. 
  
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  Part of the Act 
provides additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support 
activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus.  Cedar Falls received 
$160,662 for CDBG-CV.  The City amended its FFY19 Annual Action Plan in June 
2020, to indicate how the CDBG-CV funds would be utilized.  The plan calls for utilizing 
20% of the funds, $32,132, to support service agency activities during the pandemic.  
The City contacted the service agencies under contract for FFY19 for proposals.  Since 
only one agency responded requesting $20,000, staff distributed a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) from service agencies, seeking to utilize the remaining funding 
available ($12,132).  We received requests totaling $215,581.00.  
 
Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc. has annually been funded through the City’s CDBG 
program.  Staff proposes utilizing the remaining Cedar Falls CDBG-CV service agency 
allocation to support Pathways.  Other requests can be considered utilizing the 
anticipated funds from the State’s CDBG-CV program. 
 
Attached is a proposed contract amendment with the Pathways Behavioral Services, 
Inc. for support to individuals seeking substance abuse treatment and the costs 
associated with providing a safe treatment environment during the pandemic. 
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council adopt a 
resolution approving the amendment. 
 
 
Xc:  Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

      
          

223

Item 25.



224

Item 25.



225

Item 25.



226

Item 25.



227

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 1, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Request to Set Date of Public Hearing: State award of CARES Act  
  Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG-CV)  
 
 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The State notified 
us in mid-May that a portion of the State’s CDBG funds were anticipated to be 
proportionally allocated to Entitlement Communities.  Cedar Falls is a CDBG 
Entitlement Community and could receive $369,432 of State CDBG-CV funds.  On 
August 14th we were notified that the crucial Federal Register Notice occurred and 
applications were due to the State by September 1, 2020.   We are required to hold a 
local public hearing related to the projects requested for funding. 
 
CDBG-CV funds are to support activities that prevent, prepare for, and respond to 
coronavirus.  Because they are CDBG funds, we must also meet a National Objective 
such as benefit to low- and moderate- income (LMI) persons; aid in the prevention or 
elimination of slums or blight; and/or meet an urgent need.  During the pandemic, many 
CDBG programs have looked to fund public service agencies.  This includes a range of 
non-profit organizations that provide services such as job training, fair housing 
counseling, health services, services for senior citizens, housing for homeless, and the 
like.  Cedar Falls distributed a Request for Proposals (RFP) for service agencies, 
seeking proposals to be used by the local CDBG-CV funds we received and approved 
in May 2020 ($32,132).  The response to the RFPs was well over the funds we have 
available, therefore we propose utilizing State funding of $88,250 toward service 
agencies and the staff time needed to monitor contracts and report compliance. 
 
The remainder of the funding is proposed for park upgrades at Gateway Park and 
Seerley Park.  Both are within low to moderate income census block groups.  
Improvements would include changing the woodchip surface to rubber mats to make the 
areas cleaner and more accessible for those with physical challenges.  Each park would 
also have two additional play structures that can be used by kids with disabilities.  The 

228

Item 26.



proposed funding for the improvements and staff time to develop bid documents and 
ensure federal compliance would total $281,182. 
 
Staff recommends setting the public hearing for September 21, 2020 on the proposed 
funding distribution of the State’s CDBG-CV funding to Cedar Falls.  Attached is the 
application submitted to the State. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Attachments:  Cedar Falls Entitlement Application 

229

Item 26.



 

 

Entitlement CDBG-CV Application 

Name of City: Cedar Falls 
 
Allocation Amount: $369,432.00 
 
General Considerations:  

1. 70% of funds must be for Low-to Moderate Income Activities.    
2. Include maps of targeted areas (if applicable) 
3. Estimate the amount of funds allocated to activity delivery cost per unit or individual activity.   Activity delivery 

cost will be the source of administration dollars for your city to administer these funds.  HUD put out a CPD 
Notice about activity delivery costs vs. general administration costs:  
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-
Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf.   

4. This is a non-competitive application.   IEDA is seeking information on how you will expend your allocation 
(referenced above) of IEDA’s CDBG-CV second allocation funds. 

5. Funds will need to be expended by 7/20/25 
6. 80% of the funds must be spent by 7/20/23 
7. Unless waived or modified by the Federal Register Notice, all state CDBG regulations will govern these funds.   

 
Submit with the Application: 

1. Cover Page:  The application must be accompanied by a letter on City letterhead signed by the Chief Elected 
Official authorizing IEDA to consider the application 

2. Applicant Disclosure Report:   https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/2880.PDF 
3. Federal Assurances Signature Page:  

http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAG
E.doc  

4. Public Hearing minutes and the notification of the public hearing.  Instructions for the public hearing can be 
found on the next page. 

 
Origin of Funds:  HUD announced on May 11,2020 the availability of a second round of $1 billion in CDBG-CV funds for 
states which allowed them to fund activities in entitlement areas:  
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Revised_CDBG-CV2_Methodology.pdf.    The state decided to 
allocate these funds to entitlements based upon population.    
 
HUD has also released a Federal Register notice about the funds https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-
6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf  
 
Program Descriptions:   Please answer the questions starting on the next page for each program.   There can be more 
than three programs, complete the questions for as many programs as you plan to fund.   The programs should meet the 
needs of the COVID-19 response for your community. 
It will be important to remember that a Duplication of Benefits will be required for these funds.   IEDA will work with you 
on developing forms and submission requirements to assure that funds will not be duplicated and that there is still an 
unmet need that these CDBG-CV dollars can meet.   
 
Next Steps:   After your community submits the entitlement application, it will be reviewed by IEDA staff and approved 
by our Director.   IEDA will be unable to send an award letter or contract until HUD issues the CDBG-CV funds Federal 
Register notice.   Once published, IEDA will notify you to determine in any other application materials will need to be 
submitted before IEDA can send you an award letter and contract.       
 
 

230

Item 26.

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/Notice-CPD-13-07-Allocating-Staff-Costs-Program-Administration-Delivery-Costs-CDBG.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/2880.PDF
http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAGE.doc
http://www.iowaeconomicdevelopment.com/userdocs/documents/ieda/FEDERALASSURANCESSIGNATUREPAGE.doc
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/Revised_CDBG-CV2_Methodology.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf
https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FR-6218-N-01-CDBG-CV-clean-8-7-20-header-for-posting.pdf


 

 

 
 
Overall Budget (add as many lines as you need): 

 

Program Amount of Funds Activity Delivery Cost Per Unit or 
Individual Activity 

National objective 

1-Service Agencies Support $81,000 $7,250 Low-to Moderate Income 

2- Neighborhood 
Recreational Amenities (i.e 
Parks, Playgrounds, Trees) 

$261,500 $19,682 Low-to Moderate Income 

3-  _____ ____ NA 

Total amount $344,500 $29,250  

 

Public Hearing Instructions:      

The purpose of the hearing is to make the public aware of the application to IEDA to spend the CDBG-CV funds allocated 

to the City.   

Publication: The public hearing notice must be published no more than 20 days and no less than 4 days from the date of 

the public hearing.   The notification should follow the Cities normal protocols for publication.   These can be in the 

paper, posted, or electronically posted.  

Public Hearing:  The City should follow their normal public hearing protocols.   These can be virtual or in-person.  The 

public hearing must include:  

1. Need for the CDBG project  
2. Description of the CDBG funded project & activities 
3. The amount of CDBG funds for the project 
4. Estimated amount of CDBG assistance that will benefit low-and moderate-income persons 
5. The location of project activities 
6. Any relocation that will have to take place because of the CDBG project  
7. City/ County contact information for residents to contact with concerns or complaints regarding the project 
8. Community Development and Housing Needs of low to moderate persons in the City and any planned or 

potential activities to address these needs.    The City should ask for public input on this item and include public 
comments in the minutes. 

9. Other Community Development and Housing needs and any planned or potential activities to address these 
needs.  The City should ask for public input on this item and include public comments in the minutes. 
 

Minutes:   The public hearing minutes from the hearing must include the information provided at the hearing on the 9 

points listed above.   

 

  

231

Item 26.



 

 

  

Program Descriptions (add as many as you need): 

Program 1 Name: Local Service Agencies Support 
 

1. Eligible Activity:  Cedar Falls requested proposals from service agencies to support work with Low-to Moderate 

Income persons needing assistance either preparing, preventing, or responding to the coronavirus.  In Cedar 

Falls’ FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Action Plan it was noted that “...the City is financially supporting service 

providers that can accommodate special needs populations using their expertise and facilities, thus preventing 

duplication of services in the community.  An additional strength is the sheer number of agencies, organization, 

and entities that can offer services to the community.  Gaps include those caused by funding limitations and an 

apparent lack of service education for residents and provider coordination.”   Cedar Falls would like to utilize a 

portion of the CDBG-CV funds through the State to respond to needs created by COVID-19, that we received 

from Pathways Behavioral Services, Jesse Cosby Neighborhood Center, Exceptional Persons, Inc., Ethnic 

Minorities of Burma Advocacy & Resource Center (EMBARC), and Eastside Ministerial Alliance, Inc. 

 

2. National Objective (if LMI, discuss how you will determine LMI): LMI – Each service agency will complete income 

verification for individuals/family served using the 2020 income limits: 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Extremely 
Low Income 

$15,250 $17,400 $21,720 $26,200 $30,680 $35,160 $39,640 $44,120 

Very Low 
Income 

$25,400 $29,000 $32,650 $36,250 $39,150 $42,050 $44,950 $47,850 

Low Income $40,600 $46,400 $52,200 $58,000 $62,650 $67,300 $71,950 $76,600 

 

3. Funds allocated to the Program: $88,250 

 

4. Description of the program: 

 Pathways Behavioral Services – Funding to support the costs of providing substance abuse treatment and 
detox at their residential units.  To prevent the spread of COVID-19, they have reduced room capacity from 
the normal two occupants per bedroom to one per bedroom.  Facility and staff costs remain the same, 
however.  Therefore, support is needed to continue to provide this facility and service to income-eligible 
Cedar Falls residents.  This is a need that would not have occurred but for COVID-19 impacts. 

 Jesse Cosby Neighborhood Center – Serves low and no income individuals and families who are at or below 
the poverty level.  They target individuals who have either lost their jobs, been laid off work, have lost their 
homes and are struggling to support themselves and their families.  The Center proposes to expand their No 
One With Out A Home program, to meet the needs of clients impacted by COVID-19. The CDBG-CV funds 
will be used for deposits, rent and utilities.  This is a new service by this agency in Cedar Falls. 

 Exceptional Persons, Inc. (EPI) – This agency provides residential services to persons with behavioral health 
concerns, intellectual disabilities, & brain injuries, typically in group home settings.  Rental assistance to 
income-eligible existing clients and new clients in Cedar Falls is requested.  Many have been out of work 
since mid-March due to temporary business closure and reduced staffing needs.  This is an increase in 
service due to the need for financial support covering rents that would not have been needed but for 
COVID-19 impacts. 

 Ethnic Minorities of Burma Advocacy & Resource Center (EMBARC) – This organization helps refugees 
integrate and become self-sufficient.  Income-eligible interns would be paid a stipend in return for helping 
refugees in the area to meet their basic needs like food and shelter as well as to reduce their language and 
literacy barriers by translating.  In addition, interns would translate information for increasing awareness, as 
well as prevention and response efforts to coronavirus, for refugees in Cedar Falls.  This is a new service by 
this agency in Cedar Falls. 

232

Item 26.



 

 

 Eastside Ministerial Alliance, Inc. (EMA) – Funding to mitigate the impacts of poverty is requested.  CDBG-
CV funds would be used to provide financial assistance for those with a three-day notice of eviction, due to 
late rent or mortgage.  The requests for support have greatly increased, with many unemployed 
individuals/families seeking assistance.  Households in crisis, complete an application where their income 
eligibility is determined and based on that, a payment of $100-250 is made to support their needs.  This is a 
new service by this agency in Cedar Falls. 

 
5. Describe the criteria that will be used to select applications and the relative importance of these criteria:  Cedar 

Falls received seven responses to the Request for Proposals.  Initially, we had only our local CDBG-CV 

entitlement funds.  These have been quickly used and more need exists.  With the State CDBG-CV funds, we 

would fund five of the agencies.  Their work closely aligned with preparing, preventing and responding to 

coronavirus showing an increased need due to the pandemic.  These agencies also demonstrated an 

understanding of the local community and how to track their services including completing income eligibility 

determinations. 

 

6. Describe threshold factors and anticipated award amounts:  The requests for funding ranged from $6,000 - 
$40,000.  We would like to fund all of them, at the amount requested. 
 

7. Estimate on the number of families assisted: 100 

 

8. Describe how the planned activity targets public health, coronavirus, and housing and economic disruption 

needs directly:  The services the agencies provide range from substance abuse treatment; homelessness; 

support to individuals with behavioral health concerns, intellectual disabilities, & brain injuries; refugees; and 

rent/mortgage payments after eviction notice.  These are some of our most vulnerable populations when it 

comes to economic disruption.  Assistance is targeted to those affected by the coronavirus, having lost a job 

(Jesse Cosby, EPI, EMA) or working to support others (Pathways, EMBARC). 

 

9. Describe how this program will help you expend 80% of your funding by 7/20/2023:  All service agencies 

anticipate the funding requested would be utilized by the end of 2021.  Not knowing the extent or length of the 

pandemic, none wished to request more at this time.  The service agency request by Cedar Falls is $88,250 (24% 

of the overall funds). 

 

10. Please list dates and percentages to reach 80% by 7/20/2023: The service agency request by Cedar Falls’ is 

$88,250 (24% of the overall funds). 

 

Date Amount of Funds Percentage of Funds 

7/20/2021 $58,833 66% 

7/20/2022 $29,417 100% 

 

  

233

Item 26.



 

 

Program 2 Name: Neighborhood Recreational Amenities 

1. Eligible Activity: Cedar Falls FFY2019-2023 Consolidated Action Plan described the need for additional and 
improved public facilities.  This included bus shelters, park playground, sidewalk and trail improvements.  Since 
the City has a $70,000 sidewalk infill project in LMI areas contracted currently and with its FFY20 Annual Action 
Plan plans another $160,000 toward this, park playground improvements is our next priority.    This is especially 
important during the pandemic, as emphasis on outdoor interactions (versus indoor) and social distancing are 
key actions. HUD allows the use of CDBG funds for public facilities and improvements (24 CFR 570.201(c)).  This 
includes improvements to parks and playgrounds.  Such facilities are integral to the quality of life for community 
residents and open to the general public. 
 

2. National Objective (if LMI, discuss how you will determine LMI) Two parks under consideration are shown on the 
attached map.  Within Gateway Park’s service area, 8 block groups with an LMI over 51% are served.  This is also 
within the elementary school boundary that has the highest percentage of free/reduced lunches: North Cedar 
Elementary.  Seerley Park’s service area serves 4 block groups with an LMI over 51%.  Both of these parks are in 
LMI target areas. 
 

Park Type Size Service Area 

Gateway Community 13.2 1-2 miles 

Seerley Neighborhood 2.5 .25-.5-miles 

 
3. Funds allocated to the Program: $281,182 

 
4. Description of the program:  We have playgrounds that need improvements to their play surface and additional 

equipment to better serve the children in our community, especially to allow those with disabilities to use our 

playgrounds.  These improvements would be in parks specifically benefitting individuals and families within LMI 

target areas.  Children of all ages and abilities should be able to play in our parks.  The City proposes to remove 

woodchip surfaces in two playgrounds, replacing it with rubber mats.  This has been met with much success in 

the elementary school playgrounds.  We also propose to add at least two play structures that can be used by 

kids with disabilities, in each park.  Cedar Falls recently opened an inclusive park and it has been wildly popular.  

It attracts kids and families from all over the community.  We would repeat popular elements of that 

playground, with this proposal to expand into other parks with inclusive play structures.  A solid play surface 

under the expanded playground area would be installed.  If any additional sidewalk connection is needed from 

parking lot or existing playground, to the expanded area, that would be part of this project.  The cost for 

equipment, materials, and time to construct/install would be part of this program.  Activity delivery time 

includes preparing plans for bidding, following federal requirements in bidding and construction, and processing 

payments.  If the program is approved, the City would create detailed plans and cost estimates for the projects, 

within the funding available.  After that, the project would be bid for work to occur in 2021.   

 

5. Describe the criteria that will be used to select applications and the relative importance of these criteria:  This 
project proposes improvements to City facilities open to the public, with a focus in Low to-Moderate Income 
areas.   It would be publicly bid to select equipment, materials, and a contractor to complete the work. 

 
6. Describe threshold factors and anticipated award amounts: The amount available for parks projects has been 

based on remaining CDBG-CV funds after first supporting the full requests of area service agencies.  The 
remainder is then proposed toward park projects aimed at improving parks that are in LMI areas and serve 
several LMI block groups.  The enhancements will allow kids of all physical and mental abilities to play on the 
playground, supporting getting outdoors and supporting physical and emotional wellbeing during the pandemic. 

234

Item 26.



 

 

 
7. Estimate on the number of families assisted:  Gateway and Seerley Parks will be improved.  Within Gateway 

Park’s service area (2 miles), 8 block groups with an LMI over 51% are served.  We estimate 9,185 households.  
Seerley Park’s service area (1/2 mile) includes 1,649 households and serves 4 block groups with an LMI over 
51%.  Both of these parks are in LMI target areas. 
 

8. Describe how the planned activity targets public health, coronavirus, and housing and economic disruption 
needs directly:  Humans need both interaction and physical activity.  A park is the perfect place for kids and 
families to meet this need.  Therefore this project is a direct way to provide for such needs, in a way that 
responds to the coronavirus, while encouraging outdoor interaction and physical distancing.  Therefore, it can 
also be a way to prevent spread.  Parks serve nearby neighborhoods.  They can be used whether sheltering in 
place or simply trying to reduce or distance interactions since they are in a larger outdoor space.  Families are 
looking for outdoor recreation where a picnic lunch, afternoon laying under a tree, or kids playing on the 
playground can occur.  In addition, parks are free and available from sunrise to sunset.  Families of any income 
may use any of the parks.  Families that are unemployed may be more likely to use parks as a way to provide 
activities for their kids that do not cost anything.  The City’s parks directly respond to economic disruption by 
providing opportunities for all.  
 

9. Describe how this program will help you expend 80% of your funding by 7/20/2023:  The project(s) would be bid 

in Spring 2021, for completion no later than November 2021.  This program request by Cedar Falls is $281,182 

(76% of the overall funds). 

 

10. Please list dates and percentages to reach 80% by 7/20/2023: 

Date Amount of Funds Percentage of Funds 

7/20/2021 $70,295.50 25% 

7/20/2022 $210,886.50 100% 

 

235

Item 26.



ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Owen 5, LLC 
  1325 Rail Way in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
Staff would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the above 
referenced project that was approved by a Development Agreement in June 2019.  The 
requested date of public hearing will be September 21, 2020.  Additional information 
regarding the partial property tax exemption and project construction status will be 
provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 

236

Item 27.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO OWEN 5, LLC, FOR A NEW 

INDUSTRIAL USE SHOP/OFFICE FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT 1325 

RAIL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Owen 5, LLC, to the City Council of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to Owen 5, LLC, in connection with an industrial use shop/office facility to be 

constructed at 1325 Rail Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of Owen 5, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a partial property 

tax exemption to Owen 5, LLC, in connection with an approximate 10,000 square 

foot industrial use shop/office facility to be constructed on property located at 

1325 Rail Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 16, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of 

Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.90 acres more or less). 

 

To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be 

included in the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at 

www.cedarfalls.com. 

237

Item 27.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

238

Item 27.



CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

239

Item 27.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO OWEN 5, LLC, 

FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE SHOP/OFFICE FACILITY TO BE 

CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1325 RAIL WAY, CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 

Notice is hereby given that on the 21st day of September, 2020, a public hearing will be 

held by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the request by Owen 5, LLC, 

for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of an approximate 10,000 

square foot industrial use shop/office facility to be constructed on property located at 

1325 Rail Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lot 16, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.90 acres more or less). 
 

To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be included in 

the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. 
 

A copy of the proposed Ordinance is now on file in the office of the City Clerk of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the adoption of said Ordinance granting 

a partial property tax exemption may be filed with the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on 

or before the date of hearing, and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

240

Item 27.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Zuidberg NA, LLC 
  2700 Capital Way in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
Staff would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the above 
referenced project that was approved by a Development Agreement in April 2019.  The 
requested date of public hearing will be September 21, 2020.  Additional information 
regarding the partial property tax exemption and project construction status will be 
provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 

241

Item 28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO ZUIDBERG NA, LLC, FOR A NEW 

INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND OFFICE FACILITY TO BE 

CONSTRUCTED AT 2700 CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Zuidberg NA, LLC, to the City Council 

of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial property tax 

exemption to Zuidberg NA, LLC, in connection with an industrial use warehouse and 

office facility to be constructed at  2700 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of Zuidberg NA, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a partial 

property tax exemption to Zuidberg NA, LLC, in connection with an approximate 

30,000 square foot industrial use warehouse and office facility to be constructed 

on property located at 2700 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Lot 21 and 22, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, City of Cedar 

Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.54 acres more or less). 

 

To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be 

242

Item 28.



included in the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at 

www.cedarfalls.com. 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

243

Item 28.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

244

Item 28.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO ZUIDBERG 

NA, LLC, FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE WAREHOUSE AND OFFICE 

FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2700 

CAPITAL WAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 

Notice is hereby given that on the 21st day of September, 2020, a public hearing will be 

held by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the request by Zuidberg NA, 

LLC, for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of an approximate 

30,000 square foot industrial use warehouse and office facility to be constructed on 

property located at 2700 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more particularly described as 

follows: 
 

Lot 21 and 22, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase IV, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 3.54 acres more or less). 
 

To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be included in 

the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. 
 

A copy of the proposed Ordinance is now on file in the office of the City Clerk of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the adoption of said Ordinance granting 

a partial property tax exemption may be filed with the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on 

or before the date of hearing, and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

245

Item 28.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 20, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Partial Property Tax Exemption for Tjaden Properties, LLC 
  2800 Technology Parkway in the Cedar Falls Industrial Park 
 
Staff would like to request that City Council set a date of public hearing for the above 
referenced project that was approved by a Development Agreement in July 2019.  The 
requested date of public hearing will be September 21, 2020.  Additional information 
regarding the partial property tax exemption and project construction status will be 
provided to City Council prior to the public hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this project, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 

246

Item 29.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING PUBLIC HEARING AND DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE GRANTING A 

PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO TJADEN PROPERTIES, LLC, FOR A 

NEW INDUSTRIAL USE MANUFACTURING/SHOP FACILITY TO BE 

CONSTRUCTED AT 2800 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

 WHEREAS, a request was submitted by Tjaden Properties, LLC, to the City 

Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to adopt an Ordinance granting a partial 

property tax exemption to Tjaden Properties, LLC, in connection with an industrial use 

manufacturing/shop facility to be constructed at  2800 Technology Parkway, Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a public hearing should be 

scheduled on said request, and notice of said public hearing should be published as 

required by law. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

1. That the request of Tjaden Properties, LLC, to pass an Ordinance granting a 

partial property tax exemption to Tjaden Properties, LLC, in connection with an 

approximate 19,000 square foot industrial use manufacturing/shop facility to be 

constructed on property located at 2800 Technology Parkway, Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

more particularly described as follows: 

 

Parcel “A” of “Replat of Lot 16 and Tract “B”, West Viking Road Industrial 

Park Phase IV” in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

(Contains 2.70 acres more or less). 

 

247

Item 29.



To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be 

included in the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at 

www.cedarfalls.com. 

 

2. That the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of said 

public hearing in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier once, not less than four (4) nor 

more than twenty (20) days before the date of said hearing. 

 

 

 INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of September 2020. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

248

Item 29.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of 

Resolution Number _______ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on 

the ________ day of ______________, 2020. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, this _______ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

  

 

 

 

249

Item 29.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED ORDINANCE 

GRANTING A PARTIAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION TO TJADEN 

PROPERTIES, LLC, FOR A NEW INDUSTRIAL USE 

MANUFACTURING/SHOP FACILITY TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2800 TECHNOLOGY PARKWAY, CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 

Notice is hereby given that on the 21st day of September, 2020, a public hearing will be 

held by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on the proposal to adopt an 

Ordinance granting a partial exemption from property taxation as provided in Article II, 

Tax Exemptions of Chapter 21, Taxation of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, and Section 427B.1, Code of Iowa, based on the request by Tjaden 

Properties, LLC, for the actual value added to real estate by the construction of an 

approximate 19,000 square foot industrial use manufacturing/shop facility to be 

constructed on property located at 2800 Technology Parkway, Cedar Falls, Iowa, more 

particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel “A” of “Replat of Lot 16 and Tract “B”, West Viking Road Industrial Park 

Phase IV” in the City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa. (Contains 2.70 

acres more or less). 
 

To protect against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via 

videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting will be included in 

the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. 
 

A copy of the proposed Ordinance is now on file in the office of the City Clerk of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.  Written objections to the adoption of said Ordinance granting 

a partial property tax exemption may be filed with the City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa, on 

or before the date of hearing, and all objections will be heard at the time of said hearing. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

250

Item 29.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


     ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: August 25, 2020 

SUBJECT:      Agreement for Private Development – Panther Builders, LLC 
    
 
Staff would like to request that a public hearing be scheduled for September 21, 2020 to 
address a proposed Agreement for Private Development with Panther Builders, LLC. 
The project consists of the construction of a new 3,500 square foot commercial building 
at 616 Clay Street. Additional information pertaining to this project and corresponding 
agreement terms will be provided to City Council prior to the public hearing.   
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
  
 
         
        
 
 
 

251

Item 30.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, (319) 268-5160 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING TO 

CONSIDER ENTERING INTO A PROPOSED AGREEMENT FOR 

PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA, AND PANTHER BUILDERS, LLC 

 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 7418, adopted November 24, 1986, and amended by 

Amendment No. 1, approved by Resolution No. 12,795 on May 14, 2001, by Amendment No. 2, 

approved by Resolution No. 18,165 on July 16, 2012, by Amendment No. 3, approved by Resolution 

No. 18,837 on November 11, 2013, by Amendment No. 4, approved by Resolution 20,864 on December 

18, 2017, and by Amendment No. 5, approved by Resolution 21,367 on December 17, 2018, this 

Council found and determined that certain areas located within the City are eligible and should be 

designated as an urban renewal area under Iowa law, and approved and adopted the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Plan ("Plan" or “Urban Renewal Plan”) for the Downtown 

Development Area Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or "Urban Renewal Area") described therein, which 

Plan, as amended, is on file in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Area be redeveloped as part of the overall 

redevelopment area covered by said Plan; and 

 

WHERAS, the City has received a proposal from Panther Builders, LLC (the "Developer"), in 

the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and between the City 

and the Developer, pursuant to which, among other things, the Developer would agree to construct 

certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within 

the Downtown Development Area Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the 

Agreement and consisting of the construction of an approximate 3,500 square foot commercial building, 

together with all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Agreement; and   

 

WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City will make up to five (5) consecutive 

annual payments of Economic Development Grants to Developer consisting of 100% of the Tax 

Increments pursuant to Iowa Code Section 403.19 and generated by the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, the cumulative total for all such payments not to exceed the lesser of $68,100, or the 

amount accrued under the formula outlined in the proposed Agreement for Private Development, under 

the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement; and 

252

Item 30.



 

WHEREAS, one of the obligations of the Developer relates to employment retention and/or 

creation; and 

 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities to 

make grants for economic development and blight remediation in furtherance of the objectives of an 

urban renewal project and to appropriate such funds and make such expenditures as may be necessary to 

carry out the purposes of said Chapter, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council has determined that the Agreement is in the best interests of the City 

and the residents thereof and that the performance by the City of its obligations thereunder is a public 

undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that 

the Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 

development and blight remediation activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 

15A and 403 of the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, neither the Urban Renewal Law nor any other Code provision sets forth any 

procedural action required to be taken before said economic development activities can occur under the 

Agreement, and pursuant to Section 364.6 of the Code of Iowa, it is deemed sufficient if the action 

hereinafter described be taken and the City Clerk publish notice of the proposal and of the time and 

place of the meeting at which the Council proposes to take action thereon and to receive oral and/or 

written objections from any resident or property owner of said City to such action; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as required by law, a hearing is to be held by the City Council of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, to consider entering into the proposed Agreement for Private Development with the 

Developer pursuant to the terms of said Agreement.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, that a hearing be held on the 21st day of September, 2020, at 7:00 p.m., to 

consider entering into a proposed Agreement for Private Development between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, and Panther Builders, LLC, on certain terms as set forth in the proposed Agreement. To protect 

against the spread of COVID-19, said meeting will be conducted via videoconference and directions on 

how to participate in the meeting will be included in the meeting agenda, which will be available on the 

city web site at www.cedarfalls.com. A copy of the proposed Agreement is on file in the Office of the 

Cedar Falls City Clerk.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish said notice of said public hearing. 

 

ADOPTED this _____ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

   

  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
   

ATTEST:   
   

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk   

  

253

Item 30.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


CERTIFICATE 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

     ) SS: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 

 

 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby certify that the above 

and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution No. _______________ duly and 

legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official seal of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2020. 

   

  

Jacqueline Danielsen 

City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

254

Item 30.



 

 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS IN THE STATE OF IOWA, ON THE 

MATTER OF THE PROPOSAL TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT WITH PANTHER BUILDERS, 

LLC, AND THE HEARING THEREON 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the Council of the City of Cedar Falls in the State of 

Iowa, will hold a public hearing on September 21, 2020, at 7:00 P.M at which meeting the Council 

proposes to take action on the proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development (the 

"Agreement") with Panther Builders, LLC (the "Developer"). To protect against the spread of COVID-19, 

said meeting will be conducted via videoconference and directions on how to participate in the meeting 

will be included in the meeting agenda, which will be available on the city web site at 

www.cedarfalls.com. 

 

The Agreement would obligate the Developer to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as 

defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Downtown Development Area 

Urban Renewal Area as defined and legally described in the Development Agreement, consisting of the 

construction of an approximate 3,500 square foot commercial building, together with all related site 

improvements, under the terms and following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement.  

One of the obligations of Developer relates to employment retention and/or creation. 

 

The Agreement would further obligate the City to make up to five (5) consecutive annual 

payments of Economic Development Grants to Developer consisting of 100% of the Tax Increments 

pursuant to the Iowa Code Section 403.19 and generated by the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, the cumulative total for all such payments not to exceed the lesser of $68,100, or the 

amount accrued under the formula outlined in the proposed Development Agreement, under the terms and 

following satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

 

A copy of the Agreement is on file for public inspection during regular business hours in the 

office of the City Clerk, City Hall, City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

At the above meeting the Council shall receive oral or written objections from any resident or 

property owner of said City, to the proposal to enter into the Agreement with the Developer.  After all 

objections have been received and considered, the Council will at this meeting or at any adjournment 

thereof, take additional action on the proposal or will abandon the proposal to authorize said Agreement. 

 

This notice is given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls in the State of Iowa, as 

provided by Section 364.6 of the City Code of Iowa. 

 

Dated this 8th day of September, 2020. 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

By: Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

255

Item 30.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/


DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Jon Fitch, PE, Principal Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 25, 2020 
 
 SUBJECT: Update to City Code Section 23-231 – Through Streets Designated 
 
 
 
The intended street crossing at W 12th St and Walnut will be marked with a 4-way stop 
at the completion of the reconstruction project in early October to match the study and 
final design of this intersection. Walnut Street was lowered to help with sightlines from 
W 12th St. 
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-231 – Through 
Streets Designated so the code matches what has been designed and constructed. 
Please see the attached changes for City Code Section 23-231 – Through Streets 
Designated.  
 
The Engineering Division recommends approval of the 4-way intersection at W 12th St 
and Walnut St. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  

256

Item 31.



 
Prepared By: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, Phone: (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE MAINTAINING  WALNUT STREET AS AN ARTERIAL THROUGH 
STREET FROM FIRST STREET TO THE END OF THE STREET SOUTH OF 29TH 
STREET, BUT ADDING AN EXCEPTION AT 12TH STREET TO THE EXCEPTIONS AT 
SIXTH STREET, 18TH STREET, SEERLEY BOULEVARD AND UNIVERSITY AVENUE  
BY STRIKING THE UNNUMBERED SUBSECTION ENTITLED WALNUT STREET AND 
CORRESPONDING DESIGNATION IN SECTION 23-231, THROUGH STREETS 
DESIGNATED, OF DIVISION 3, RIGHT-OF-WAY, OF ARTICLE III, OPERATION, OF 
CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA,  AND ENACTING A NEW UNNUMBERED 
SUBSECTION ENTITLED WALNUT STREET AND CORRESPONDING  DESIGNATION 
IN LIEU THEREOF. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 
Section 1. The unnumbered Subsection entitled Walnut Street and corresponding designation, of 

Section 23-231, Through Streets Designated, of Division 3, Right-of-Way, of Article III, Operation, of 
Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 
hereby repealed in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection entitled Walnut Street, and 
corresponding designation, are hereby enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

 

Street                                                                  Portion of Street                                                                        

Designated as Arterial                                                                           

Through Street 

                   Walnut Street                                             From First Street to the end of the street south of 

29th Street, except at Sixth Street, 12th Street, 18th 

Street, Seerley Boulevard and University Avenue. 

INTRODUCED:     ____________    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:   ____________    
 
ADOPTED:      ____________    
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

                                                                             Robert M Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

257

Item 31.



258

Item 32.



259

Item 32.



260

Item 32.



261

Item 32.



262

Item 32.



263

Item 32.



264

Item 32.



265

Item 32.



266

Item 32.



267

Item 32.



268

Item 32.



269

Item 32.



270

Item 32.



271

Item 32.



272

Item 32.



273

Item 32.



274

Item 32.



275

Item 32.



276

Item 32.



277

Item 32.



278

Item 32.



279

Item 32.



280

Item 32.



281

Item 32.



282

Item 32.



283

Item 32.



284

Item 32.



285

Item 32.



286

Item 32.



287

Item 32.



288

Item 32.



289

Item 32.



290

Item 32.



291

Item 32.



292

Item 32.



293

Item 32.



294

Item 32.



295

Item 32.



296

Item 32.



297

Item 32.



298

Item 32.



299

Item 32.



300

Item 32.



301

Item 32.



302

Item 32.



303

Item 32.



304

Item 32.



305

Item 32.



306

Item 32.



307

Item 32.



308

Item 32.



309

Item 32.



310

Item 32.



311

Item 32.



312

Item 32.



313

Item 32.



314

Item 32.



315

Item 32.



316

Item 32.



317

Item 32.



318

Item 32.



319

Item 32.



320

Item 32.



321

Item 32.



322

Item 32.



323

Item 32.



324

Item 32.



325

Item 32.



326

Item 32.



327

Item 32.



328

Item 32.



329

Item 32.



330

Item 32.


	Top
	1.	Minutes 08-17-20 & 08-19-20
	200817MINUTES
	200819MINUTES-SPECIAL

	2.	PH-2020 Street Patching Project
	1. PH Memo - 2020 Street Patching
	Engineers Estimate - Street Patching Project

	3.	2969-Rezone CFHS property
	2_CC Staff Report for CF High school
	3. ZoningLocationMap
	4. CFHS - Rezoning Plat-20200605
	2969-Rezoning-CF High School

	4.	Resolution adopting a face mask mandate
	2020-08-07_Mask_Mandate_Mayor Memo
	Res-CF Face Mask-FINAL
	Black Hawk County Board of Health Face Covering Regulation_ Process Doc

	5.	Proclamation-Suicide Prevention
	2930_001

	6.	Proclamation-Constitution
	2934_001

	7.	Appointment to Historic Preservation Commission
	2020-08-02_HPC_Arndt_Appoint
	P&Z - Arndt 2-22-19
	HPC-Arndt - Questionnaire 7-15-20

	8.	8/17 Work Session Minutes
	Comm of the Whole 08 17 2020

	9.	8/26 Work Session Minutes
	Comm of the Whole (Special) 08 26 2020 

	10.	8/31/20 Work Session Minutes
	08-31-20 City Council Work Session Minutes

	11.	Monthly Report - July 2020
	2020_07_Monthly_Department_Reports
	Monthly Report - July 2020

	12.	Tobacco Permits 9/8/2020
	09082020 Tobacco Applications

	13.	Liquor Beer 9-8-20
	Liquor Beer 9-8-20

	14.	Removal of P&Z Commissioner
	2020-09-01_PZ_Removal_Recommendation
	2020.9.3 Letter to Cedar Falls Mayor and Council

	15.	JKC Settlement and Release
	Memo to Mayor, Council JKC Investments
	Settlement and Release (JKC signature) (01757514x7F7E1)

	16.	Assessment-1227 West 22nd
	Supporting Docs for CC

	17.	Assessment-2208 Coventry Lane
	Supporting docs for CC

	18.	Gordon Flesch Agreement
	Laserfische Council Memo
	CF_GFC License and Svc Agr - 081220
	CF_GFC Statement of Work- 081220

	19.	Res-Flood Buyout Lease
	Ohrt - Flood Buyout Lease

	20.	Final Out  - Campus Street Box Culvert
	1. Campus Street Bridge Replacement Final Out Memo
	2. Retainage Release Signed
	3. Campus Box Replacement Cost Breakdown
	4. Bond
	5. Lien Waivers

	21.	Final - Prairie Winds 4th Addition
	1. Memo - Prairie Winds 4th Final Acceptance
	2. Final Plat - Prairie Winds 4th Addition
	3. Maintenance Bond - Prairie Winds 4th
	4. Lien Waivers - Prairie Winds 4th

	22.	IDOT TAP Agreement-Lake St. Rec. Trail
	1. Memo - Union Road Trail City-State Agreement
	FA Agreement Sept 2018 2CFR200 compliant

	23.	Union Road Rec. Trail Project
	1. Memo_jpf
	2. PSA_2020-08-03_SuppAgr2_UnionTrail

	24.	Paver Upgrade: RiverPlace Plaza
	1. CC on brick expense 9-2-20 V2
	2. Brick upgrade sidewalk plaza budget 9-3-20

	25.	Pathways Behavioral Services, Inc.-Funding
	1. Pathways CDBG-CV contract amendment 9-1-20
	Pathways contract amendment signed 9-1-20

	26.	Set PH: State CDBG-CV Funds
	1  Council set PH for State CDBG-CV 9-1-20
	Cedar Falls Entitlement Application 9-1-20

	27.	Set PH-PPTE Owen 5, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 09-08-20
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Owen 5, LLC
	Notice of Public Hearing - Owen 5, LLC

	28.	Set PH-PPTE Zuidberg NA, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 09-08-20
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Zuidberg NA, LLC
	Notice of Public Hearing - Zuidberg NA, LLC

	29.	Set PH-PPTE Tjaden Properties, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting PH on PPTE Ordinance 09-08-20
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Tjaden Properties, LLC
	Notice of Public Hearing - Tjaden Properties, LLC

	30.	Set PH-Agreement PD - Panther Builders, LLC
	1_Memo to Council Setting Date of Public Hearing 09-08-20
	2_Resolution Setting Public Hearing - Panther Builders, LLC
	PH Ntc-Panther Builders, LLC

	31.	Ord.-12th St and Walnut St
	1  W 12th_Walnut Stop signs Ordinance Memo
	2  W 12th_Walnut Stop Sign Ordinance Change

	32.	Allow Bills and Payroll of 9/8/20
	1 Daily Invoices 090820
	2 Council Invoices 090820

	Bottom

